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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS PROCES-VERBAUX

TUESDAY, MARCH 13, 1990 LE MARDI 13 MARS 1990

(18) (18)

[Text] [Traduction|

The Legislative Committee on Bill C-43, An Act
respecting abortion, met at 11:09 o'clock a.m. this day, in
Room 308 West Block, the Chairman, Andrée
Champagne, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: Edna Anderson,
Gabrielle Bertrand, Lise Bourgault, Barbara Greene,
Robert Kaplan, Shirley Maheu, Brian O’Kurley, Rey
Pagtakhan, John Reimer, Svend Robinson, Beth Phinney
and Stan Wilbee.

Other Member present: Coline Campbell.

In auendance: From the Library of Parliament
Research Branch: Mollie Dunsmuir, Research Officer.

Witnesses: From the Atlantic Advisory Councils on the
Status of Women: Jeanne d’Arc Gaudet, Chairperson,
New Brunswick; Debi Forsyth-Smith, President, Nova-
Scotia; Linda Gallant, Chairperson, Prince Edward [sland
and Wendy Williams, President, Newfoundland. From the
Women’s Legal Education and Action Fund: Lynn Smith,
Chairperson, British Columbia and Martha Jackman,
Ottawa.

The Committee resumed consideration of its Order of
Reference dated Tuesday, November 28, 1989 relating to
Bill C-43, An Act respecting abortion. (See Minutes of
Proceedings and Evidence, Tuesday, December 5, 1989,
Issue No. 1)

The Committee resumed consideration of Clause 1

Jeanne d’Arc Gaudet and Debi Forsyth-Smith from the
Atlantic Advisory Councils on the Status of Women made
statments.

At 11:38 o’clock p.m., the sitting was suspended.
At 12:15 o’clock p.m., the sitting resumed.

The witnesses from the Atlantic Advisory Councils on
the Status of Women answered questions and withdrew.

It was agreed,—That the brief submitted by the Atlantic
Advisory Councils on the Status of Women be printed as
an appendix to this day’s Minutes of Proceedings and
Evidence. (See Appendix “C-43/30")

Lynn Smith and Martha Jackman from the Women'’s
Legal Education and Action Fund made statements and
answered questions.

It was agreed—That the brief submitted by the
Women’s Legal Education and Action Fund be printed as
an appendix to this day’s Minutes of Proceedings and
Evidence. (See Appendix “C-43/31")

At 1:25 o'clock p.m., the Committee adjourned until
3:30 o’clock p.m. this day.

Le Comité législatif sur le projet de loi C-43, Loi
concernant l'avortement, se réunit aujourd’hui a 11 h 09,
dans la piece 308 de [I'édifice de 1'Ouest, sous la
présidence d’Andrée Champagne (présidente).

Membres du Comité présents: Edna Anderson,
Gabrielle Bertrand, Lise Bourgault, Barbara Greene,
Robert Kaplan, Shirley Maheu, Brian O’Kurley, Rey
Pagtakhan, John Reimer, Svend Robinson, Beth Phinney
et Stan Wilbee.

Autre députée présente: Coline Campbell.

Aussi  présente: Du Service de recherche de la
Bibliothéque du Parlement: Mollie Dunsmuir, attachée de
recherche.

Témoins: Des Conseils consultatifs de la situation de la
femme de la région atlantique: Jeanne d’Arc Gaudet,
présidente (N.-B.); Debi Forsyth-Smith, présidente
(N.-E.); Linda Gallant, présidente (I.P-E.); Wendy
Willams, présidente (T.-N.). Du Fonds d’action et
d’éducation juridiques pour les femmes: Lynn Smith,
présidente (C.-B.); Martha Jackman, Ottawa.

Le Comité reprend les travaux prévus a son ordre de
renvoi en date du mardi 28 novembre 1989, soit I'étude
du projet de loi C-43, Loi concernant |’avortement (voir
les Procés-verbaux et témoignages du mardi 5 décembre
1989, fascicule n° 1).

Le Comité poursuit ['étude de I'article 1.

Jeanne d’Arc Gaudet et Debi Forsyth‘Smith,' fies
Conseils de la situation de la femme de la région
atlantique, font des exposés.

A 11 h 38, la séance est suspendue.
A 12 h 15, la séance reprend.

Les témoins des Conseil consultatifs de la situatin de la
femme de la région atlantique, répondent aux questions
puis se retirent.

Il est convenu,—Que le mémoire présenté par les
Conseils consultatifs de la situation de la femme de la
région atlantique, soit imprimé en annexe aux Proces-
verbaux et témoignages d’aujourd’hui (Appendice
«C-43/30»).

Lynn Smith et Martha Jackman, du Fonds d’action et
d’éducation juridiques pour les femmes, font des exposes
et répondent aux questions.

Il est convenu,—Que le mémoire présenté par le Fonds
d’action et d’éducation juridiques pour les femmes, soit
ajouté en annexe aux Proces-verbaux et témoignages
d’aujourd’hui (Appendice «C-43/31»).

A 13 h 25, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a 15 h
30.
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AFTERNOON SITTING
(19)

The Legislative Committee on Bill C-43, An Act
respecting abortion, met at 3:35 o’clock P.m. this day, in
Room 308 West Block, the Chairman, Andrée
Champagne, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: Gabrielle
Bertrand, Lise Bourgault, Barbara Greene, Robert
Kaplan, Shirley Maheu, Peter McCreath, Brian O’Kurley,
Rey Pagtakhan, John Reimer, Svend Robinson, Beth
Phinney and Stan Wilbee.

In auendance: From the Library of Parliament
Research Branch: Mollie Dunsmuir, Research Officer.

Witnesses: From the Catholic Women’s League of
Canada: Doreen Ferraton, National Convener of
Legislation, Manitoba; Lucille Cullen, President Elect,
Sudbury, Ontario; Sheila Howard, National Secretary-
Treasurer, London, Ontario. From Physicians for Choice:
Cynthia Carver, Private Consultant, Ottawa; Kathryn
Gauthier, Family Physician, Ottawa and Frances
Kilbertus, Member, Family Physician, Ottawa.

The Committee resumed consideration of its Order of
Reference dated Tuesday, November 28, 1989 relating to
Bill C-43, An Act respecting abortion. (See Minutes of
Proceedings and Evidence, Tuesday, December 5, 1989,
Issue No. 1)

The Committee resumed consideration of Clause 1

The witnesses from the Catholic Women’s League of
Canada made statements and answered questions.

It was agreed,—That the brief submitted by the
Catholic Women’s League of Canada be printed as an
appendix to this day’s Minutes of Proceedings and
Evidence. (See Appendix “C-43/32”)

The witnesses withdrew.

The Chairman presented the FOURTH REPORT of
the Sub-committee on Agenda and Procedure, which is as
follows:

Your Sub-Committee met on Tuesday, March 13, 1990,
to plan its future business and has agreed to make the
following recommendation:

That the Canadian Association for Community Living
be invited to appear.

Barbara Greene moved,—That the FOURTH REPORT
of the Sub-Committee on Agenda and Procedure be
concurred in.

Rey Pagtakhan moved,—That the Sub-Committee
Report be amended by adding two organizations who
should be invited to appear:

1. The Canadian College of Medical Geneticists,
University of Manitoba;

2. The Catholic School Trustees Association.

SEANCE DE L’APRES-MIDI
(19)

Le Comité législatif sur le projet de loi C-43, Loi
concernant 1’avortement, se réunit aujourd’hui a 15 h 35,
dans la piéce 308 de UI'édifice de I’Ouest, sous la
présidence d’Andrée Champagne (présidente).

Membres du Comité présents: Gabrielle Bertrand, Lise
Bourgault, Barbara Greene, Robert Kaplan, Shirley
Maheu, Peter McCreath, Brian O’Kurley, Rey Pagtakhan,
John Reimer, Svend Robinson, Beth Phinney et Stan
Wilbee.

Aussi présente: Du Service de recherche de la
Bibliothéque du Parlement. Mollie Dunsmuir, attachée de
recherche.

Témoins: De la Ligue canadienne des femmes
catholiques: Doreen Ferraton, directrice nationale,
Législation (Manitoba); Lucille Cullen, présidente élue,
Sudbury (Ontario); Sheila Howard, secrétaire-trésoriere
nationale, London (Ontario). Des Physicians for Choice:
Cynthia Carver, conseillere privée, Ottawa; Kathryn
Gauthier, médecin de famille, Ottawa; Frances Kilbertus,
membre, médecin de famille, Ottawa.

Le Comité reprend les travaux prévus a son ordre de
renvoi en date du mardi 28 novembre 1989, soit I’étude
du projet de loi C-43, Loi concernant 1’avortement (voir
les Procés-verbaux et témoignages du mardi 5 décembre
1989, fascicule n° 1).

Le Comité poursuit ’étude de I’article 1.

Les témoins de la Ligue canadienne des femmes
catholiques, font des exposés et répondent aux questions.

Il est convenu,—Que le mémoire présenté par la Ligue
canadienne des femmes catholiques soit imprimé en
annexe aux Procés-verbaux et témoignages d’aujourd’hui
(Appendice «C-43/32»).

Les témoins se retirent.

Le président présente le Quatrieme rapport du Sous-
comité du programme et de la procédure dont le texte
suit:

Le Sous-comité s’est réuni le mardi 13 mars 1990 et a
convenu de faire les recommandations suivantes:

Que la Canadian Association for Community Living
soit invitée a témoigner.

Barbara Greene propose,—Que le Quatriéme rapport
du Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
adopté.

Rey Pagtakhan propose,—Que le rapport du Sous-
comité soit modifié en ajoutant les noms des organismes
suivants:

1. Le College canadien des généticiens médicaux.

2. L’Association des commissaires d’écoles catholiques.
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And debate arising thereon;

Cynthia Carver and Kathryn Gauthier from Physicians
for Choice made statements.

Cynthia Carver, Frances Kilbertus and Kathryn
Gauthier answered questions.

It was agreed,—That the brief submitted by Physicians
for Choice be printed as an appendix to this day’s Minutes
of Proceedings and Evidence (See Appendix “C-43/33")

At 5:45 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned until
3:30 o’clock p.m., Wednesday, March 14, 1990.

Santosh Sirpaul
Clerk of the Commiutee

Sur quoi, un débat s’ensuit.

Cynthia Carver et Kathryn Gauthier, des Physicians for
Choice, font des exposés.

Cynthia Carver, Frances Kilbertus et Kathryn Gauthier
répondent aux questions.

Il est convenu,—Que le mémoire présenté par
Physicians for Choice, soit ajouté en annexe aux Procés-
verbaux et témoignages d’aujourd’hui (Appendice
«C-43/33»).

A 17 h 45, le Comité s’ajourne au mercredi 14 mars
1990, a 15 h 30.

La greffiére du Comiié
Santosh Sirpaul
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EVIDENCE

|Recorded by Electronic Apparatus|
| Texte]

Tuesday, March 13, 1990

- 1106

The Chairman: Order, please. We shall now resume
consideration of Bill C-43, an act respecting abortion, and
we shall resume consideration of clause 1.

I would like to welcome the delegation from the
Atlantic Advisory Councils on the Status of Women.

Jinvite M™¢ Jeanne d’Arc Gaudet, la présidente, a
nous présenter les autres membres de sa délégation et a
faire une courte déclaration préliminaire qui sera suivie
des questions des membres du Comité.

Mme Jeanne D’Arc Gaudet (présidente du Conseil
consultatif sur la situation de la femme du Nouveau-
Brunswick): Madame la présidente, je suis accompagnée
des présidentes des conseils consultatifs des trois autres
provinces Atlantiques. Ce sont Linda Gallant, présidente
du Conseil consultatif de I'Ile-du-Prince-Edouard;

Debi Forsyth-Smith, President of the Nova Scotia
Advisory Council on the Status of Women; and Wendy
Williams, President of the Newfoundland Advisory
Council on the Status of Women.

We are giving a joint presentation today and we will
alternate in French and English.

Nous voudrions remercier les membres du Comité
d’avoir accepté de nous entendre ce matin. On aura le
temps de ne lire qu'une partie de notre mémoire.

La présidente: Je peux vous assurer que les membres
du Comité en ont pris connaissance. Si vous pouvez en
faire un résumé, cela permettra a tout le monde de poser
des questions.

Mme Gaudet: En janvier 1988, la Cour supréme du

Canada a invalidé les dispositions législatives sur
I’avortement, statuant que celles-ci étaient
inconstitutionnelles du fait que le processus

d’approbation, par un comité d’avortement thérapeutique,
occasionnait des retards inutiles, et que tout le processus
en soi constituait un obstacle fondamental aux droits de la
femme, a la liberté et a la sécurité de sa personne, droits
qui sont garantis par la Charte canadienne des droits et
libertés.

= 1110

De I'avis des quatre conseils consultatifs sur la situation
de la femme de la région Atlantique, la loi proposée en
matiere d’avortement ne difféere pas beaucoup en
substance du texte législatif de 1968. Donc, nos quatre
conseils consultatifs sur la condition de la femme des
provinces Atlantiques rejettent catégoriquement la loi
proposée pour les motifs suivants.

TEMOIGNAGES
[Enregistrement électronique|
|Traduction]

Le mardi 13 mars 1990

La présidente: Je déclare la séance ouverte. Nous
reprenons I'étude a l'article 1 du projet de loi C-43, Loi
concernant I’avortement.

J’aimerais souhaiter la bienvenue aux représentantes
des conseils consultatifs des provinces atlantiques sur la
situation de la femme.

I would now invite Mrs. Jeanne d’Arc Gaudet,
Chairperson, to introduce the other members of her
delegation and to make short opening remarks, which will
be followed by questions from committee members.

Mrs. Jeanne d’Arc Gaudet (Chairperson, New
Brunswick Advisory Council on the Status of Women):
Madam Chairman, with me today are the presidents of the
advisory councils from the three other Atlantic provinces:
Linda Gallant, president of the Prince Edward Island
Advisory Council;

Debi Forsyth-Smith, présidente du Conseil consultatif de
la Nouvelle-Ecosse, et Wendy Williams, présidente du
Conseil consultatif de Terre-Neuve.

Nous vous présenterons aujourd’hui un exposé
conjoint et nous passerons du frangais a ’anglais.

We would like to thank the Committee Members for
agreeing to hear us this morning. We will only have time
to read part of our brief.

The Chairman: [ can assure you that the committee
members have read it. If you could summarize it for us, it
would enable everyone to ask questions.

Mrs. Gaudet: In January 1988, the Supreme Court of
Canada struck down Canada’s abortion law, ruling it
unconstitutional because the therapeutic abortion
committee process caused unnecessary delays and the
whole process itself was a profound interference with a
woman’s right to freedom and security of person, as
guaranteed by the Canadian Charter of Rights and
Freedoms.

The four Atlantic councils believe that the substance of
the proposed abortion legislation does not differ
significantly from the 1968 law struck down in January
1988. Therefore, our four Atlantic advisory councils on
the status of women categorically reject the proposed
legislation on the following grounds.
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[Texte]

Tout d’abord, du fait que les services d’avortement
tombent sous le coup du Code criminel du Canada, les
femmes et leurs médecins ou d’autres professionnels de la
santé peuvent faire ’'objet d'accusations criminelles. Ni les
femmes, ni les professionnels de la santé ne sont des
criminels.

Deuxiemement, elle n’a pas pour effet de garantir
I’égalité d’accés aux services d’avortement partout dans le
pays, et plus précisément dans les provinces Atlantiques.

Troisiemement, elle n’assure pas la réglementation, a
I’échelle nationale, de la prestation des services
d’avortement dans le pays. En ce sens, le projet de loi va
carrément a ’encontre de l'esprit de la décision rendue
par la Cour supréme en 1988.

Nous croyons qu’obliger une femmme a subir une
grossesse contre son gré constitue une violation des droits
fondamentaux et porte atteinte a notre dignité et a notre
liberté de conscience.

Dans la loi proposée, I'avortement demeure un acte
criminel 3 moins que la santé de la femme ne soit
menacée. Ce projet de loi n’assure absolument pas a
toutes les femmes canadiennes qui choisissent de se faire
avorter l’acces a des services d’avortement sirs a un prix
abordable. Donc, nos conseils consultatifs des provinces
de I’Atlantique recommandent que [I’avortement soit
soustrait & I'application du Code criminel puisqu'’il s’agit
d’une question de santé et non d’une question d’ordre
criminel.

Mrs. Debi Forsyth-Smith (President, Nova Scotia
Adyvisory Council on the Status of Women: With regard to
accessibility, in the 1988 Supreme Court ruling
concerning section 251 of the Criminal Code, women’s
access to abortion services was an important
consideration. If a woman experiences delays after making
a decision to seek an abortion, or must travel outside of
her area to find a doctor or a hospital where she can
obtain this medical procedure, it increases the risk to the
woman’s physical and psychological health. Women,
particularly young, poor, rural or married women, may
not be able to obtain therapeutic abortions without great
trauma, expense and inconvenience.

For obvious examples of restricted access, we can look
to the refusal of Prince Edward Island hospital boards to
allow any legal ‘abortions to be performed there or to that
provincial government’s refusal to fund any abortions
performed outside Prince Edward Island; the attempts by
the Government of Nova Scotia to limit access by
preventing the opening of a free-standing clinic in
Halifax; and a recent decision by a British Columbia
hospital to ban abortions, despite the opposition of an
overwhelming majority of the medical staff—in fact
87%—to say nothing of the numerous other Canadian
regional and tertiary-care hospitals, which have the

[Traduction]

Firstly, by regulating abortion services through the
Criminal Code of Canada, it makes women and their
doctors or other medical professionals liable for criminal
charges. Neither women nor medical professionals are
criminals.

Secondly, it fails to ensure equal access to abortions
across the country, and more particularly in the Atlantic
provinces.

Thirdly, it does not regulate nationally the provision of
abortion services in this country. In this way, the
proposed bill definitely contradicts the spirit of the 1988
Supreme Court decision.

We believe that to force a woman to go through a
pregnancy against her will is a violation of her
fundamental rights, her dignity and her freedom of
conscience.

In the proposed legislation, abortion remains a
criminal offense unless a woman’s health is endangered. It
does nothing to ensure that all Canadian women have
access to safe, affordable abortions if they so choose.
Therefore, the Atlantic advisory councils recommend that
abortion be removed from the Criminal Code since it is a
health matter, not a criminal one.

Mme Debi Forsyth-Smith  (présidente, Comité
consultatif sur le statut de la femme de Ila
Nouvelle-Ecosse): L’acces de la femme a l’avortement était
I'une des principales considérations de la décision de la
Cour supréme concernant ’article 251 du Code criminel.
Si, aprés avoir décidé de recourir a l'avortement, une
femme se heurte a des obstacles qui entrainent des
retards, ou si elle doit se rendre a 'extérieur de sa région
pour trouver un médecin ou un hopital pouvant lui
procurer cette intervention médicale, cela augmente le
degré de risque pour sa santé physique et psychologique.
Les femmes, en particulier les jeunes filles, les femmes
vivant en état de pauvreté, les femmes vivant en milieu
rural et les femmes mariées, risquent de ne pas pouvoir
obtenir un avortement thérapeutique sans que cela leur
occasionne de fortes tensions, de grandes dépenses et des
inconvénients considérables.

A titre d’exemples concrets de limitation de l'accés a
l’avortement, prenons les cas suivants: le refus des conseils
de direction des hdpitaux de I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard de
permettre ['exécution d’avortements légaux et le refus du
gouvernement de cette province de payer les avortements
obtenus a l'extérieur de la province; les tentatives du
gouvernement de la Nouvelle-Ecosse de limiter I'acces a
'avortement en faisant obstacle a I'ouverture d’une
clinique autonome d’avortement; et la récente décision
d’'un hopital de Colombie-Britannique d’interdire
I’avortement malgré 'opposition d’une grande majorité
de son personnel médical—en fait 87 p. 100—; et que dire
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necessary facilities but refuse to allow abortions, even in
cases of rape or incest.

Mme Gaudet: Nous allons prendre quelques minutes
pour vous présenter les situations particuliéres a nos
quatre provinces.

Au Nouveau-Brunswick, un avortement doit étre
requis sur le plan médical selon la définition de deux
médecins et pratiqué dans un hopital accrédité par un
spécialiste en obstétrique ou en gynécologie. 11 y a 33
spécialistes dans ces domaines et quatre hopitaux qui
pratiquent les avortements. Il y a I’hdpital régional de
Saint-Jean, I'hépital Dr. Chalmers a Fredericton, 1’hopital
municipal de Moncton et I’hdpital d’Oromocto. Ces
quatre hopitaux sont tous situés dans le sud de la province
et ils n’admettent que des patients de leur région sanitaire.
En conséquence, les femmes des autres régions doivent
habituellement se rendre dans d’autres provinces, souvent
au Québec, ou aux Etats-Unis, habituellement dans I’Etat
du Maine.

Au cours de I'année 1988-1989, 427 avortements ont
été pratiqués au Nouveau-Brunswick, tous dans le sud de
la province. Les chiffres disponibles révelent que 68
avortements seulement ont été pratiqués chez les Néo-
Brunswickoises a I'extérieur de la province. Des 68
demandes de remboursement qui ont été présentées a
'assurance-maladie, huit seulement ont été acceptées,
pour un remboursement maximal de 120%. Les femmes
vivant dans les régions isolées, et plus particulierement les
femmes pauvres, n'ont d’autre choix, au Nouveau-
Brunswick, que de subir une grossesse non voulue.

s 1115

Mrs. Forsyth-Smith: In Newfoundland, according to
the Newfoundland provincial Department of Health, all
provincial hospitals have the capability to provide
therapeutic abortions, although those outside St. John’s
only perform them occasionally. Currently there is only
one hospital in the province regularly performing
abortions, and that is the General Hospital located in St.
John’s, the largest urban centre in the province. In 1988,
434 abortions were performed in Newfoundland, 369 of
them at the General Hospital. The reality is that
accessibility to abortion services in Newfoundland and
Labrador is severely limited. Many women are forced to
gather together meagre resources to fly to Halifax, to
Montreal, or to the United States to obtain an abortion in
another hospital or more frequently in a free-standing
abortion clinic.

The provincial government health care plan, MCP, will
only pay for abortions performed under “proper medical
conditions” in accredited Canadian hospitals. But they
will not cover travel expenses incurred in obtaining an

[Translation)|

de nombreux autres hdpitaux régionaux et établissements
de soins tertiaires du Canada qui possédent les
installations nécessaires, mais qui refusent de permettre
I’avortement, méme dans des cas de viol ou d’inceste.

Mrs. Gaudet: We will now take a few minutes to talk
about the situation in each of our four provinces.

In New Brunswick, an abortion must be medically
required as defined by two physicians and performed in
an accredited hospital by a specialist in obstetrics or
gynaecology. There are 33 such specialists and four
hospitals in New Brunswick performing abortions: Saint
John Regional; Dr. Chalmers, Fredericton; Moncton City;
and Oromocto Public. The four hospitals are all in the
southern part of the province and they only take patients
from their own health region. As a result, women from
other regions must usually go to another province, often
Quebec, or state, usually Maine.

In 1988-89, there were 427 abortions in New
Brunswick, all performed in the southern region. There
were only 68 known abortions performed outside New
Brunswick on women who were New Brunswick
residents. Of the 68 women who requested reimbursement
from medicare, only eight were accepted and reimbursed
a maximum of $120. Women in isolated regions,
especially poor women, have no choice but to go through
with unwanted pregnancies.

Mme Forsyth-Smith: Selon les données du ministere de
la Santé de Terre-Neuve, tous les hopitaux de la province
ont la capacité de pratiquer des avortements
thérapeutiques. Bien que l’avortement soit pratiqué de
fagon occasionnelle dans les hopitaux situés a I’extérieur
de la région de St. John’s, il n’existe actuellement qu'un
seul hopital dans toute la province ou l’avortement est
pratiqué de fagon réguliére, soit I’'Hopital général de la
ville de St. John’s, le plus grand centre urbain de la
province. En 1988, 434 avortements ont été pratiqués a
Terre-Neuve, dont 369 a I’'Hopital général de St. John’s.
La vérité est que l'accés a l'avortement a Terre-Neuve et
au Labrador est trés limité. De nombreuses femmes se
voient forcées d’épuiser leurs derniéres ressources
financiéres afin de se rendre par avion a Halifax ou a
Montréal pour obtenir un avortement dans un autre
hopital ou, comme c’est le plus souvent le cas, dans une
clinique autonome d’avortement.

Le Régime d’assurance-santé de la province ne couvre
que les avortements pratiqués dans les hopitaux canadiens
accrédités pour des motifs valables d’ordre médical. Il ne
couvre pas non plus les frais de déplacement engagés pour
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abortion outside Newfoundland, nor will they pay for
abortions performed in free-standing clinics.

In Nova Scotia, while 10 hospitals have the necessary
facilities and resources to perform abortions, only 8 of
these institutions have performed any abortions in recent
years. In 1988, 84% of the 1,764 abortions performed in
the province took place at the Victoria General Hospital
in Halifax, and 7% were performed at the Sydney City
Hospital in Cape Breton. The remaining 9% were
performed in only 6 regional hospitals. Two of these
hospitals, Fishermen’s Memorial in Lunenburg and
Queen’s General in Liverpool, allowed only 5 and 8
abortions, respectively.

The present situation in Prince Edward Island is
intolerable since women on the island do not have any
access to abortion services regardless of the circumstances
for which a woman wants one. Prince Edward Island’s
two major hospitals refuse to provide this service and
have followed this policy since 1982 in the case of Queen
Elizabeth Hospital and since 1986 in the case of the
Prince County Hospital.

In effect, the last abortion performed in Prince Edward
Island appears to have been in 1980. For the last 10 years
an estimated 400 women per year have had to travel
hundreds of miles and leave their own communities to
obtain an abortion. In no other province in Canada is it
so evident that women'’s reproductive lives are controlled.

In Canada we are under the illusion that we have one
of the best universal health care systems in the world. Yet
such a claim must be considered blatantly erroneous and
gravely misleading in the face of such circumstances as we
find in Prince Edward Island. With knowledge and
information and support, women can and do make
informed, ethical decisions, and we believe the right to
make these decisions should rest as equally with Island
women as with other Canadian women.

Regulation on a national basis: Contrary to assertions
in the new abortion legislation background information
that we received, the proposed law does not regulate
abortion on a national basis. Bill C-43 gives the provinces
the option of compliance and does not provide the
necessary foundation for a national regulatory scheme, an
argument that has been offered against the use of the
Canada Health Act to ensure access.

Provincial medical insurance coverage for abortions
must be guaranteed. The federal government must use its
power under the Canada Health Act to withhold

[Traduction]|

obtenir un avortement a l'extérieur de la province, ni les
dépenses relatives aux avortements pratiqués dans des
cliniques autonomes.

En Nouvelle-Ecosse, bien que 10 hopitaux possédent
les installations et les ressources nécessaires pour offrir
I’avortement, seulement 8 de ces établissements ont
pratiqué des avortements au cours des derniéres années.
En 1988, 84 p. 100 des 1,764 avortements pratiqués dans
la province ont eu lieu a I'Hopital général Victoria de
Halifax, et 7 p. 100 ont été pratiqués a I’Hopital
municipal de Sydney au Cap Breton. Le reste des
avortements, soit 9 p. 100 du nombre total, ont été
pratiqués dans les six seuls hopitaux régionaux qui offrent
ce service. Parmi ces établissements régionaux, I’'Hopital
Fishermen’s Memorial de Lunenburg n’a pratiqué que
cinq avortements et I'Hopital général Queen’s de
Liverpool n’en a exécuté que huit.

La situation qui prévaut actuellement a [I'Ile-du-
Prince-Edouard est intolérable, puisque les femmes de
cette province n’ont aucun accés a l'avortement dans
quelques circonstances que ce soient. Les deux principaux
hopitaux de I'lle-du-Prince- Edouard, soit I’ Hopltal Queen
Elizabeth ol aucun avortement n’a été pratiqué depuis
1982, et I'Hopital du comté de Prince, ou aucun
avortement n’a été pratiqué depuis 1986, refusent d’offrir
ce service.

De fait, le dernier avortement pratiqué a [I’lle-du-
Prince-Edouard semble remonter a4 1980. Au cours des
dix derniéres années, on estime que 400 femmes ont du
chaque année voyager des centaines de kilometres et
quitter leur communauté pour obtenir un avortement.
Dans aucune autre province n’exerce-t-on un tel controle
sur la fonction reproductrice des femmes.

Bien que les Canadiens aient I'impression de posséder
I’'un des meilleurs reglmes universels de santé au monde,
la situation qui prévaut a I'{le-du-Prince-Edouard
démontre que cette impression est tout a fait fausse et
trompeuse. Armées des connaissances, des renseignements
et du soutien nécessaires, les femmes sont capables de
prendre des décisions morales éclairées. Nous sommes
d’avis que les femmes de 1'lle-du-Prince-Edouard doivent
pouvoir jouir tout autant que les autres femmes du
Canada du droit de prendre elles-mémes ces décisions.

Le réglementation a I'échelle nationale: Contrairement
a ce que l'on affirme dans la documentation de base sur le
nouveau régime legnslatlf en matiére d’avortement, le
projet de loi n'a pas pour effet de légiférer sur
'avortement a 1’échelle nationale. Par ailleurs, on pretend
dans ce document que la Loi canadienne sur la santé ne
peut servir d’instrument pour garantir l'acces a
'avortement, sous prétexte que le projet de loi C-43
donne aux provinces le choix de se conformer ou non a
ses dlsposmons et ne renferme pas les éléments
nécessaires pour en faire un instrument de réglementation
a I'échelle nationale.

Des mesures doivent étre prises afin de garantir que
I’avortement soit couvert par les régimes d’assurance-sante
des provinces. Le gouvernement fédéral doit utiliser ses
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provincial health care insurance plan contributions if
provinces do not meet criteria for accessibility,
comprehensiveness, and universality of abortion services.
Ensured access to abortion must be made a provincial
responsibility.

Mme Gaudet: Etant donné que les soins médicaux sont
nécessaires le plus tot possible dans le cas d’un
avortement, de nombreuses femmes de la région de
I’Atlantique sont confrontées a des obstacles importants
qui occasionnent des retards déraisonnables et ont pour
effet d’accroitre la tension et 'anxiété, favorisant ainsi les
graves risques médicaux associés aux avortement tardifs.

» 1120

De plus en plus, 'acces a [’avortement se limite a celles
qui ont le plus de moyens financiers. En méme temps, la
maternité devient une responsabilité plus difficile a
assumer sur le plan financier, compte tenu de l’absence
d’'un programme national de garde des enfants, des
restrictions récentes relatives au programme d’assurance-
chomage et de l'application proposée d’une taxe générale
sur les produits et services, lesquelles frappent plus
durement les personnes a faible revenu dont beaucoup
sont des meres célibataires.

Notre but n’est pas de promouvoir I’avortement, mais
nous nous opposons fortement a toute politique,
programme ou mesure législative qui aurait pour effet
d’obliger une femme a donner naissance a un enfant
contre son gré. Le fait de diminuer I'accés des femmes a
I’avortement n’est pas une solution au probleme. Afin de
réduire la nécessité d’avoir recours aux services
d’avortement, il faut d'abord et avant tout établir des
programmes d’éducation, des services d’appui et apporter
des changements a la situation économique et sociale des
femmes et des enfants. Méme si un jour les femmes

devaient bénéficier de méthodes infaillibles de
contraception, d’un programme universel de garde
d’enfants et d’un salaire minimum suffisant, elles

devraient conserver le droit a I’avortement comme choix
parmi d’autres.

De nombreuses meres éventuelles de la région de
’Atlantique font face a des problémes de pauvreté et a des
abus sur le plan mental, physique, sexuel, économique et
juridique. La liberté de choix dans la vie reproductive des
femmes est essentielle, et celles-ci doivent accéder au
pouvoir politique, social et économique dans la société
canadienne. Le droit de participer aux divers aspects de la
vie en société et de développer son potentiel ne devrait
pas entrer en conflit avec la maternité.

Donc, en se fondant sur ces principes, les quatre
conseils consultatifs sur la situation de la femme des
provinces de I'Atlantique recommandent ce qui suit:

1. La question de l'avortement ne doit pas étre régie par le
Code criminel du Canada. L'avortement est une question

[Translation]

pouvoirs en vertu de la Loi canadienne sur la santé afin
de refuser de verser sa quote-part des régimes provinciaux
d’assurance-santé aux provinces qui ne se conforment pas
aux modalités relatives a l'accés, a la polyvalence et a
'universalité des services d’avortement. La responsabilité
de garantir l'accés a l'avortement doit étre conférée aux
provinces.

Mrs. Gaudet: Since the earliest possible attention is
medically indicated for abortion, many women in Atlantic
Canada are faced with serious obstacles that result in
unconscionable delays leading to increased stress and
anxiety, as well as the serious medical risks that are
associated with later-stage abortions.

Furthermore, access to abortion is being increasingly
limited to the few who can afford it. At the same time,
motherhood is becoming a more financially difficult
responsibility to assume, as evidenced by the absence of a
national child care strategy, recent cuts to unemployment
insurance and the proposed implementation of a general
sales tax which will hit low income individuals—many of
whom are single mothers—the hardest.

We are not trying to promote abortion. But we strongly
resist any policy, program, or law that would force a
woman to bear a child against her will. Preventing women
from getting abortions does not solve the problem.
Education, support services and changes in the economic
and social status of women and their children are
necessities that will help reduce the need for abortion
services. Even in a world of perfect contraception,
universal child care and an adequate minimum wage, we
should still have the right to abortion as a choice among
others.

Many potential mothers in Atlantic Canada face
poverty as well as mental, physical, sexual, economic and
legal abuse. Reproductive freedom is essential if women
are to gain political, social and economic power in
Canadian society. The right of a woman to participate in
this society and to develop her potential should not
conflict with motherhood.

With these principles in mind, the four Atlantic
advisory councils recommend the following:

1. That abortion not come under the Criminal Code of
Canada. Abortion is a health matter and decisions
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de santé, et toute décision concernant l’'interruption d’une
grossesse devrait étre laissée a la femme sur l'avis de son
médecin.

2. Les régimes provinciaux d’assurance-santé doivent
couvrir les avortements. Le gouvernement fédéral doit
utiliser le pouvoir que lui confére la Loi canadienne sur
la santé et refuser de contribuer aux régimes provinciaux
d’assurance-santé si les provinces ne répondent pas aux
crittres en matiere d’accessibilité, de généralité et
d’universalité quant aux services d’avortement.

3. Le gouvernement fédéral doit augmenter [I'aide
financiére qu’il accorde aux fins du counselling, de la
planification familiale et de la sensibilisation du public,
de sorte que ces programmes puissent étre €largis et offerts
a tous les Canadiens et Canadiennes afin de réduire le
nombre de grossesses non voulues et, par le fait méme, le
besoin d’avoir recours aux services d’avortement.

If you have any questions or comments we are ready to
answer any of them.

The Chairman: The light you see flashing means there
will be a vote in the House of Commons. It is a 30-minute
bell and it started about 4 or 5 minutes ago. We will find
out about it; we need the time to go to the other building
to vote. But let us not lose any time right now.

Mme Shirley Maheu (députée de Saint-Laurent—
Cartierville): Je vous souhaite la bienvenue et je vous
remercie pour votre mémoire.

A un moment donné, vous dites que le projet de loi est
essentiellement le méme que la loi d’avant 1982. Vous
dites aussi que faute d’avoir accés a des services, des
femmes doivent subir une grossesse non voulue. Qu’est-ce
que cela implique a court et a long termes, d’abord pour
la femme et ensuite pour I’enfant non voulu? Je crois
savoir qu’a I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard, il n’y aura jamais de
loi permettant I'accés a I’avortement. Selon vous, quelle
sorte de loi pourrait changer la situation chez vous? On
est tous au courant que c’est restreint chez vous. Qu'’est-ce
que le gouvernement fédéral pourrait faire pour
améliorer la situation chez vous, puisque ce sont les
médecins et les hopitaux qui ont décidé de ne pas
pratiquer d’avortements? On ne peut pas forcer un
médecin a pratiquer un avortement quand c’est contre ses
croyances morales.

» 1125

Ms Linda Gallant (Chairperson, New Brunswick
Advisory Council on the Status of Women): No. We do
not want to force any doctor to perform an abortion, and
I do not believe, necessarily, that is the case, that the
doctors do not want to. The hospital boards are telling
them they are not allowed to.

What would be ideal for the women of Prince Edward
[sland is equal access, meaning the federal hospital
insurance plan would cover any medical expenses and
travel expenses incurred.

| Traduction|

concerning the termination of a pregnancy should be left
to individual women in consultation with their doctors.

2. That provincial medical insurance coverage for
abortions be guaranteed. The federal government must
use its power under the Canada Health Act to withold
provincial health care insurance plan contributions if
provinces do not meet criteria for accessibility,
comprehensiveness and universality of abortion services.

3. That the federal government increase funding so that
counselling, family planning and public education
programs may be expanded and made available to all
Canadian women and men in an effort to reduce
unwanted pregnancies, thus reducing the need for
abortion services.

Nous sommes maintenant prétes a répondre a vos
questions ou a vos commentaires.

La présidente: La lumiére qui clignote indique qu’il y
aura un vote a la Chambre des communes. Le préavis est
de 30 minutes, et elle s’est allumée il y a quatre ou cinq
minutes. [I nous faut du temps pour nous rendre a
I’édifice du Centre pour voter. Nous n’avons donc pas
une minute a perdre.

Mrs. Shirley Maheu (Saint-Laurent—Cartierville): [
would like to welcome you and thank you for your brief.

You said the proposed bill is essentially the same as the
legislation we had prior to 1982. You also said that
because they cannot have access to abortion services,
women must go through with unwanted pregnancies.
What does that involve in the short and in the long term,
firstly for a woman and secondly for the unwanted child?
It would seem that in PEI, there will never be any
legislation that guarantees access to abortion services. In
your opinion, what kind of legislation could change the
situation in your province? We are all aware that access is
limited in your province. What could the federal
government do to improve the situation in your province,
since it is the doctors and the hospitals that decided not to
perform any abortions? One cannot force a doctor to
perform an abortion when it goes against his moral
beliefs.

Mme Linda Gallant (Présidente, Conseil consultatif du
Nouveau-Brunswick sur le statut de la femme): Non.
Nous ne voulons pas forcer un médecin a pratiquer un
avortement, et je ne crois pas nécessairement que ce soit
le cas, que ce sont les médecins qui ne veulent pas. Les
conseils d’administration des hopitaux leur disent qu’ils
n’'ont pas le droit de le faire.

Idéalement, les femmes de I’lle-du-Prince-Edouard
devraient avoir l'égalité d’acces, c'est-a-dire que le régime
fédéral d’assurance-santé devrait couvrir les frais
médicaux et les frais de déplacement.
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Most of the women in Prince Edward Island—and
because it is such a very small province, confidentiality is
a problem—would be very happy, in most cases would
prefer, to go to Nova Scotia, for example, where all of our
children get specialized treatment at the Izaak Walton
Killam Hospital. Cancer patients go to Nova Scotia. All of
these services are paid under medicare, but abortion is
not.

If the women could go and have the costs involved paid
for, the travel costs as well as the medical costs, the
women of Prince Edward Island would in fact have the
access they want, which they are deprived of right now.

Mrs. Maheu: What about unwanted children? [ am not
familiar with the problems you may or may not have in
the Maritimes. When a woman is forced to carry a
pregnancy to term and consequently has the child, have
you witnessed any problems with child abuse, with
excessive depression on the part of parents?

Mrs. Forsyth-Smith: I think studies of that nature are
fairly limited Canada-wide, and certainly they are limited
in the Maritimes. There has been some recent work in
that regard in Europe, which does seem to show some
evidence of those kinds of problems. They did a study
beginning with women who did not want to become
pregnant, who became pregnant, and they followed them
throughout a 20-year period of time; the effects seemed
quite apparent.

Certainly in Nova Scotia and throughout the Atlantic
provinces, our citizens are trying to cope with some very
harsh economic realities the moment. I think we have
many things on the horizon that are going to spell
economic difficulties for women in particular, and their
children. I do not think there is any question that
everywhere, across Canada and certainly in the Maritimes,
we are seeing increases in child sexual abuse, abuse, and
so on. [ think these problems are evident throughout the
country and also in the Maritimes.

Mrs. Maheu: What type of law do you foresee
alleviating the problem with access—I know you
mentioned travel expenses, but apart from that—in the
rest of the maritime provinces? P.E.L. is the exception, we
are all very conscious of that. How do you see the law
forcing the accessibility and. . .2

Ms Wendy Williams (President, Newfoundland
Advisory Council on the Status of Women): In my
province, in Newfoundland and Labrador, if all hospitals
that have the necessary expertise, which is every single
one of my hospitals, were required to get provincial
funding, that would be a required service—if they were
able to say they could not receive medicare funds unless
they provide a certain standard of minimum care, and
that would be one of them. That is not legislation, it is
enforcement under the Canada Health Act. We have
physicians who are willing to provide that service and
their boards are unwilling to allow them to do it. even

[Transtation|

La plupart des femmes de I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard—du
fait que la province est trés petite, il y a un probleme de
confidentialité—seraient trés heureuses, et préféreraient
pour la plupart, se rendre en Nouvelle-Ecosse par
exemple, ou tous nos enfants obtiennent des soins
spécialisés a I'hopital Izaak Walton Killam. Les victimes
du cancer vont se faire traiter en Nouvelle-Ecosse. Tous
ces services sont couverts par l'assurance-santé, mais
I’avortement ne I’est pas.

Si les femmes de 1'Ile-du-Prince-Edouard pouvaient se
rendre dans une autre province et que les frais de
déplacement et les frais médicaux soient payés, elles
auraient en fait l’accés qu’elles réclament et dont elles
sont privées actuellement.

Mme Maheu: Mais qu’en est-il des enfants non voulus?
Je ne suis pas tellement au courant des problémes que
vous pourriez avoir dans les Maritimes. Lorsqu’une
femme est obligée de mener une grossesse a terme et
qu’elle a un enfant, cet enfant est-il parfois maltraité, en
raison de la dépression excessive de la part des parents?

Mme Forsyth-Smith: Je pense que ce genre d’étude est
assez limité au Canada, et certainement dans les
Maritimes. Certaines études effectuées récemment en
Europe a cet égard semblent indiquer que ce genre de
probleme existe effectivement. Ces études portaient sur
des femmes qui ne voulaient pas devenir enceinte, mais
qui le sont devenues. Elles ont été suivies pendant une
période de 20 ans; les conséquences semblaient assez
évidentes.

En Nouvelle-Ecosse et dans les provinces atlantiques,
nos citoyens font face a des réalités économiques assez
difficiles en ce moment. Il y a bien des choses a I’horizon
qui représenteront des difficultés économiques pour les
femmes en particulier et pour leurs enfants. Il ne fait
aucun doute que partout au pays et certainement dans les
Maritimes il y a de plus en plus d’enfants qui sont
victimes de mauvais traitements et d’exploitation sexuelle.
Ce sont des problémes que 1'on constate dans tout le pays
et également dans les Maritimes.

Mme Maheu: Quel genre de loi pourrait a votre avis
alléger le probléme d’accessibilité—mis a part les frais de
déplacement dont vous avez parlé—dans les autres
provinces atlantiques? L’lle-du-Prince-Edouard fait
exception, et nous en sommes tous conscients. Comment
a votre avis la loi pourrait-elle imposer I’accessibilité
A

Mme Wendy Williams (Présidente, Conseil consultatif
de Terre-Neuve sur le statut de la femme): Dans ma
province, a Terre-Neuve et au Labrador, si tous les
hopitaux qui ont les compétences nécessaires, c’est-a-dire
chacun de ces hopitaux, sans exception étaient tenus
d’offrir ce service pour obtenir des fonds du régime
provincial d’assurance-santé, si on pouvait leur dire qu’ils
ne peuvent recevoir leur quote-part du régime d’assurance-
santé s’ils n'offrent pas certains services minimums, dont
les services d’avortement. Il n’est pas nécessaire de
légiferer, il suffit d’appliquer la Loi canadienne sur la
santé. Nous avons des médecins qui sont préts a offrir ce
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though they are accredited by the standards across the
country.

Mr. Robinson (Burnaby—Kingsway): On a point of
order, in view of the vote, can I ask how the time is going
to be divided?

The Chairman: I think we should at least give the first
10 minutes to each party and then we will see.

Mr. Robinson: You are anticipating, then, that we
would come back after the vote—

The Chairman: Yes, by all means.
Mr. Robinson: —with these witnesses?

The Chairman: Yes. As soon as our next witnesses
arrive, we will try to let them know right away that we
will be slightly delayed, because I would not be surprised
that there would be another one of those.

Mr. Robinson: I was wondering whether the witnesses
were going to come back, or if we cut down the time
slightly and divided it among the three parties then we
could conclude with this group of witnesses before the
vote.

* 1130

The Chairman: I would not anticipate. I would like to
suggest to the panel that we go on and then see what
happens and make the decision.

Mr. Robinson: That is fine.

Mr. Pagtakhan (Winnipeg North): I would like to
pursue the question of access and funding of this
procedure. Now, it appalls me that a medical procedure,
when medically indicated, would not be paid for. I think
it would run counter to the spirit of the Canada Health
Act. So my question is: why is that? Is there a possibility
that the doctors are not all agreed that abortions, for all
reasons, are truly medically indicated?

Ms Williams: I do not know that it is necessary for all
doctors to agree on anything for a public health policy to
exist. Your statement specifically said “all doctors”, and I
do not think there is any health procedure on which all
doctors have to agree before there is funding for it. So I
would disagree with the logic of your question.

Mr. Pagtakhan: It is not so much the logic, perhaps.
But I think there is logic there, and I would like to
pursue that logic. You indicated in your brief that
abortion is a health matter and that as a consequence it
must fulfil criteria of health treatment. Now, to your
knowledge, from your conversations among yourselves
and with the medical community, how should these
criteria be applied? What ought to be the basis of these

[Traduction]

service mais les conseils d’administration de leurs
hopitaux ne veulent pas leur permettre de le faire, méme
si les hdpitaux sont accrédités.

M. Robinson (Burnaby—Kingsway): I’invoque le
Réglement. Puisqu’il y a un vote, puis-je vous demander
comment le temps sera divisé?

La présidente: Nous devrions au moins accorder les dix
premiéres minutes a chaque parti, et nous verrons par la
suite.

M. Robinson: Vous prévoyez donc revenir aprés le
vote. . .

La présidente: Oui, certainement.
M. Robinson: . . . avec ce groupe de témoins?

La présidente: Qui. Aussitot que nos prochains témoins
arriveront, nous les informerons qu'il y aura un léger
retard, car je ne serais pas étonnée qu’il y ait un autre
vote.

M. Robinson: Je me demandais si les témoins
reviendraient, ou si nous allions leur accorder un peu
moins de temps que nous pourrions diviser entre les trois
partis de fagon & en terminer avec ce groupe de témoins
avant le vote.

La présidente: N’anticipons pas. Je propose aux
membres du Comité de poursuivre, de voir ce qui arrivera
et de prendre les décisions a ce moment-la.

M. Robinson: C’est trés bien.

M. Pagtakhan (Winnipeg-Nord): J’aimerais revenir a la
question de l'accessibilit¢é du financement de cette
intervention médicale. Je suis tout & fait consterné qu’une
intervention médicale, lorsqu’elle est indiquée, ne soit pas
couverte par les régimes d’assurance-santé. A mon avis,
cela va a I’encontre de I’esprit de la Loi canadienne sur la
santé. Ma question est la suivante: Pourquoi est-ce le cas?
Est-il possible que les médecins ne soient pas tous
d’accord pour dire qu’un avortement est médicalement
requis?

Mme Williams: Je ne pense pas qu’il soit nécessaire
que tous les médecins soient d’accord pour qu’une
politique existe en matiére de santé publique. Vous dites
que tous les médecins ne seraient pas d’accord, et je ne
pense pas qu’il existe une seule intervention médicale
pour laquelle il est nécessaire d’avoir le consentement de
tous les médecins avant de permettre qu’elle soit couverte
par le régime d’assurance-santé. Je ne suis donc pas
d’accord avec la logique de votre question.

M. Pagtakhan: Ce n’est peut-étre pas tellement une
question de logique, mais je pense qu’il y a effectivement
une certaine logique, et j'aimerais poursuivre dans le
méme sens. Vous avez dit dans votre meémoire que
’avortement est une question de santé et que par
conséquent cette intervention doit satisfaire aux critéres
d’un traitement médical. A votre connaissance, d'apres les
conversations que vous avez entre vous et avec la
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criteria to ensure that all clinics that do a particular
procedure, including abortion, truly would fulfil the
standards of medical practice?

Ms Williams: That is a fairly easy question: that the
physician and the woman involved would agree. That is a
very easy question to answer, and [ think it is the
approach of the Canadian Medical Association in all their
work, from my involvement in their expertise.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Would you agree that the essence of
medical practice is based on the principle that the health
of the patient must be improved or the life of the patient
must be saved and that this is the principle that would
indicate a doctor should do a medical procedure? Do you
agree to that tenet of medical practice?

Ms Williams: Yes, I think that is the procedure and
certainly the basis of my experience in working with
women and physicians on abortions.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Would you further agree that, where
there is more than one treatment approach to a particular
condition, the treatment of choice be given?

Ms Williams: I have never seen another option in
terms of a woman’s requesting an abortion where there is
another treatment of choice.

Mr. Pagtakhan: We have heard a lot of submissions in
this committee from various groups advocating the two
sides of the issue, as we know it in the country, who have
advocated the provision of services such as counselling—
in fact, one group has suggested mandatory counselling—
in other words, the provision of alternative modes of
therapy so the women would be fully informed of the
pros and cons.

Ms Williams: [ think it is terribly insulting to think
women do not understand what they are doing and to
think there is an alternative therapy. [ am very incensed. I
have worked with women over the years who have made
this choice, and they are well aware of what we are doing.
We are not asking you to provide us with another
therapy, thank you very much.

Mr. Pagtakhan: It is not [ who is suggesting that to you.
In fact, it was one woman representing a pregnancy crisis
centre in—

Ms Williams: That may be her mode and her choice. I
am speaking for other women who want other choices for
themselves. [ have worked with women who have made
all those choices and I have helped them make them
myself, arranging for adoptions and the whole bit. But I
am saying that when they make a choice we support their
choice, and we certainly do not want to be encouraging
alternative modes of therapy if that is not what they want.

[Transiation]

communauté médical, comment ces critéres devraient-ils
étre appliqués? Sur quoi de tels critéres devraient-ils étre
fondés pour veiller a2 ce que toutes les cliniques qui
pratiquent une intervention particuliére, y compris
I’avortement, satisfassent vraiment aux normes de la
pratique médicale?

Mme Williams: La réponse est assez simple: Que le
médecin et la femme en question soient d’accord. Clest
aussi simple que cela, et je crois comprendre que c’est
I’attitude qu’a adoptée I’Association médicale canadienne.

M. Pagtakhan: Etes-vous d’accord pour dire
qu'essentiellement la pratique médicale doit étre fondée
sur le principe selon lequel il faut améliorer la santé du
patient ou lui sauver la vie, et que c’est sur ce principe
que devrait se fonder un médecin lorsqu’il décide ou non
de pratiquer une intervention meédicale? Etes-vous
d’accord avec ce principe de la pratique médicale?

Mme Williams: Je crois que c’est ainsi que les choses se
passent, et c’est ce que j’ai constaté en travaillant avec les
femmes et leurs médecins dans des cas d’avortement.

M. Pagtakhan: FEtes-vous d’accord également que
lorsqu’il y a plus d’un traitement possible, le traitement
de choix doit étre donné?

Mme Williams: Lorsqu'une femme demande un
avortement, il ne peut a mon avis y avoir aucun autre
traitement de choix.

M. Pagtakhan: Notre Comité a entendu de nombreux
témoignages de divers groupes qui défendaient des points
de vue différents, et certains préconisaient par exemple
des services de counselling—en fait, un groupe a proposé
des services obligatoires de counselling—en d’autres
termes, d’autres modes de thérapie afin que les femmes
soient bien informées quant aux avantages et aux
désavantages d’une telle intervention.

Mme Williams: Il est 3 mon avis terriblement insultant
de penser que les femmes ne comprennent pas ce qu’elles
font et de croire qu’il existe un autre traitement. Je suis
tout a fait indignée. Pendant des années j’ai travaillé avec
des femmes qui ont fait ce choix, et elles savaient
exactement ce qu’elles faisaient. Merci beaucoup, mais
nous ne vous demandons pas de nous offrir un autre
traitement.

M. Pagtakhan: Ce n’est pas moi qui vous le propose.
En fait, c’était une femme qui représentait un centre
d’aide en cas de grossesse. . .

Mme Williams: C’est peut-étre sa fagon a elle et son
choix. Je représente d’autres femmes qui veulent d’autres
choix pour elles-mémes. J'ai travaillé avec des femmes qui
ont fait d’autres choix, et je les ai aidées a prendre des
dispositions en vue d’une adoption, et ce genre de choses.
Mais je dis que lorsqu’elles font un choix, nous les
appuyons, et nous ne voulons certainement pas les
encourager a obtenir un autre traitement si ce n’'est pas ce
qu’elles veulent.
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Mme Gabrielle Bertrand (députée de Brome—
Missisquoi): Madame, je suis contente d’entendre votre
bel accent acadien. Je comprends trés bien votre exposé et
je suis presque d’accord avec vous. Par ailleurs, j’aimerais
vous faire comprendre que nous, les législateurs, devons
prendre en considération les différentes options et les
différentes convictions morales et philosophiques d’une
autre partie de la population canadienne.
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Vous dites que le projet de loi C-43 expose les femmes
et leurs médecins a des accusations au criminel. Comme
vous le savez, ce ne sont pas les médecins ou les femmes
qui sont criminalisés dans ce projet de loi. Ce sont les
charlatans, ceux qui pratiquent ces avortements en dehors
de la profession médicale ou sans l’autorisation d’un
médecin qualifié. Si on inscrit cela dans le Code criminel,
c’est parce que nous n’avons vraiment pas le choix: c’était
le seul instrument a notre disposition pour élaborer une
loi nationale.

Vous parlez également de l'accés. En ayant une loi
nationale, il sera plus facile de dire aux gouvernements
provinciaux: Vous vous devez de nous accorder ces
services dans les provinces ou ils n’existent pas.

Actuellement il n’y a pas de loi: il n’y a rien. Donc,
personne ne bouge. Quand il y aura une loi nationale,
vous serez beaucoup mieux en mesure de revendiquer
aupreés de vos gouvernements provinciaux.

Mme Gaudet: C’est 1a qu’est tout le probléme. C’est un
probléme d’accessibilité. Cela est de juridiction
provinciale. Ce sont les conseils d’administration
d’hdpitaux qui décident si des avortements se pratiqueront
a tel hopital.

Au Nouveau-Brunswick, beaucoup de ces hopitaux ont
€té hérités des communautés religieuses; on a aussi adopté
leur philosophie. C’est trés difficile. Lorsqu’il s’agit de
prendre la décision de pratiquer des avortements ou non,
il y a beaucoup de pression. Ce sont des provinces rurales
ou les gens se connaissent, et c’est trés, tres difficile.

De plus, le projet de loi ne fait absolument rien pour
assurer l'accés aux femmes du Nouveau-Brunswick. Au
Nouveau-Brunswick, on pratique la procédure dans
quatre hopitaux. Iis sont dans le sud. Les femmes du nord
n’y ont absolument aucun accés. Méme si elles ont
I'approbation d’un meédecin, elles ne peuvent pas aller
subir un avortement dans le sud, parce que les hdopitaux
n’acceptent que les patients de cette région sanitaire.

Mme Bertrand: C’est auprés des gouvernements
provinciaux que vous devez faire vos représentations. Le
gouvernement fédéral n’a pas le pouvoir de les forcer a
donner ces services. Actuellement, il n'y pas de loi.

[Traduction]

Mrs. Gabrielle Bertrand (Brome—Missisquoi): It is a
pleasure to hear your beautiful Acadian accent. I
understand very well what you are saying, and I almost
agree with you. But I would also like you to understand
that we, as legislators, must take into account the different
options as well as the various moral and philosophical
beliefs of another segment of the Canadian population.

You say that Bill C-43 makes women and their doctors
subject to criminal prosecution. But as you know, it is not
doctors or women who are being made criminals in this
legislation, rather, it’s the charlatans—those who perform
abortions without being medical practitioners or without
the autorization of a qualified doctor. The reason we have
decided to include these provisions in the Criminal Code
is that we really have no other choice: it is really the only
statutory instrument available to us to develop national
legislation in this regard.

You also talk about access. But once we have a
national statute, it will be much easier to say to provincial
government: You have to provide these services in those
provinces where they are not available.

Right now, there is no law; there’s a vacuum. So, no
one is making any moves. But, once we have federal
legislation, you will be in a much better position to make
demands of your provincial governments.

Mrs. Gaudet: But that’s where the difficulty lies. We
are faced with a problem of access, and that falls within
provincial jurisdiction. It’s the hospital boards that decide
whether abortions will be performed in their hospital.

In New Brunswick, many of the hospitals were
inherited from the various religious communities, who
also passed on to them their philosophy. So, the situation
is very difficult. When it comes time to decide whether
abortions will be performed or not, there is a tremendous
amount of pressure. We’re talking about provinces with a
significant rural population, and because the people all
know one another, it’s really very difficult.

Also, this bill does absolutely nothing to guarantee the
women of New Brunswick access to this procedure. In
New Brunswick, this procedure is being performed in
four hospitals, which happen to be located in the
southern region of the province. Women living in the
northern region have absolutely no access to this service.
Even if they have the approval of a doctor, they cannot go
and get an abortion in one of those hospitals, because they
only accept patients residing in their own health region.

Mrs. Bertrand: But you should be making your
representations to provincial governments. The federal
government simply does not have the power to force them
to provide those services. Right now, there is no law of
any kind.
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Mme Gaudet: Au fond, c’est beaucoup plus un projet
de loi politique qu’un projet de loi juridique. S’il n’assure
pas ’accessibilité. . .

Mme Bertrand: 1 est peut-étre incitatif.
Mme Gaudet: Je ne le pense pas.

Mme Bertrand: Il peut encourager les provinces a le
faire. Cela vaut mieux que de n’avoir aucune loi.

Mme Gaudet: Je pense qu'on va les encourager a étre
beaucoup plus séveres.

Mme Bertrand: Non, je ne suis pas d’accord.
Mme Gaudet: C’est ce que I'on pense chez nous.

La présidente: Mesdames, auriez-vous la gentillesse de
nous attendre? Il y a d’autres questions un peu partout.
Nous allons aller faire notre devoir de députés et revenir
le plus t6t possible.

=31139

[Translation)
Mrs. Gaudet: This is really more of a political bill than
anything else, since it in no way guarantees access. . .

Mrs. Bertrand: But it may act as an incentive.
Mrs. Gaudet: [ doubt it.

Mrs. Bertrand: It may encourage the provinces to
provide the service. And it’s better than having no law at
all.

Mrs. Gaudet: I think we will just be encouraging them
to be even stricter.

Mrs. Bertrand: No, [ can’t agree with you there.
Mrs. Gaudet: Well, that’s the view in my province.

The Chairman: Ladies, would you be so kind as to wait
for us? A number of other members would like to ask
questions. We will now go and do our duty as members of
Parliament and we will be back here just as quickly as we
are able.

- 1214
The Chairman: We will bring this meeting to order.

Mr. O’Kurley (Elk Island): Thank you, ladies, for your
presentation. In your presentation you discussed limited
access to abortion in Atlantic Canada and you suggested
that provincial governments and hospital boards were the
bodies primarily responsible for limiting this access. It is
generally accepted that your group speaks for women in
your region. What interests me is the fact that these
bodies, provincial governments and hospital boards, are
elected by the people of your area and 50% of those
people are women. In many cases, is it generally accepted
that governments and hospital boards reflect the will of
the people? Why should the government involve itself in
local or regional boards that are democratically elected by
the people of that region?
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Ms Williams: In Newfoundland none of our boards is
elected—

Mr. O’Kurley: Is that right?

Ms Williams: —they are all appointed, and I think that
reflects all of our provinces.

Ms Gaudet: That is right.

Mr. O’Kurley: What about the provincial
governments—for instance, Prince Edward Island? You
were discussing that as a major area of concern.

La présidente: A I'ordre, s'il vous plait.

M. O’Kurley (Elk Island): Mesdames, je tiens a vous
remercier de votre exposé. Vous avez discuté de l’acces
limité aux services d’avortement dans les provinces
maritimes et vous laissez entendre que les gouvernements
provinciaux et les conseils d’administration des hopitaux
sont responsables de la situation. On reconnait
généralement que votre groupe représente les femmes de
votre région. Ces organismes, les gouvernements
provinciaux et les conseils d’administration des hopitaux
sont élus par les gens de la région, et 50 p. 100 des
résidants sont des femmes. Dans nombre de cas, les
gouvernements et ces conseils d’administration ne
reflétent-ils pas l'opinion et le désir de la population?
Pourquoi le gouvernement devrait-il s'immiscer dans les
activités des commissions régionales ou locales, qui sont
des groupes démocratiquement élus par les gens de la
région?

Mme Williams: Aucun des conseils d’administration de
la région de Terre-Neuve n’est élu. . .

M. O’Kurley: Vraiment?

Mme Williams: . .. ils sont tous nommés, et je crois
que cela refléte la situation qui prévaut dans toutes les
provinces de I'Est.

Mme Gaudet: C’est exact.

M. O’Kurley: Et les gouvernements provinciaux—par
exemple celui de I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard? Vous disiez
que cette situation vous préoccupait sérieusement.
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Ms Gallant: [ think it is important for people on this
committee to realize the problems that rural women in
Prince Edward Island have, poor rural women in
particular. Although it is their right to vote, a lot of them
do not have the freedom to vote the way they choose.

Mr. O’Kurley: Excuse me, what do you mean they do
not. . .2 We are talking about Canada here, are we?

Ms Gallant: I know, but you also have to understand
the reality. A lot of them are under their husbands’
influence 100%. It is hard for you to understand this, but
it really is a fact. Also, they do not have the ability to go
out and speak their minds and voice their opinions—

Mr. O’Kurley: I am not trying to be antagonistic, but
are there not private voters’ boxes in Prince Edward
Island?

Ms Gallant: Yes, there are, but you also have to
understand the conditions a lot of these people have to
live with. They are afraid to make certain choices because
they know that it will be influenced. Some of the little
constituencies are so small that by the time the vote is
counted they can tell who voted what way.

Mr. O’Kurley: So you are asking the federal
government to make those choices for the women?

Ms Gallant: What we are asking the federal government
to do with this bill is make the access more available.
There is no access on Prince Edward Island. It does not
affect the rich. It never has affected the rich, because the
rich will do what they can afford to do. It is the poor
women who have no choices. In rural P.E.I. there is not
even transportation. They do not have it, and they have
no money.

: Mr: O’Kurley: You are not suggesting that the women
in Prince Edward Island are naive enough not to be
making their own choices? You are not suggesting that—

Mrs. Maheu: That is right.
Mr. O’Kurley: You are suggesting that they are?

Ms Gallant: I cannot speak for all the women, how
they make their choices. However, they are influenced by
the fact that they are in a small rural community, and no
matter what decisions they make, they will not be kept
confidential. It is just a fact of life in small rural areas,
confidentiality is not something that—

Ms Gaudet: [ think the problem is that even if they
made the choices, the accessability is not there. One thing
about the hospital boards, and 1 speak for New
Brunswick, there are not that many women on these
boards. People are appointed to these boards, and only

| Traduction|

Mme Gallant: A mon avis, il importe que les gens du
Comité soient conscients des problémes auxquels sont
confrontées les femmes qui vivent dans les régions rurales
de [I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard, tout particuliérement les
femmes pauvres. Méme si elles ont le droit de voter,
nombre d’entre elles n'ont pas la liberté de voter comme
elles le voudraient.

M. O’Kurley: Excusez-moi, qu’entendez-vous par la?
Nous parlons toujours du Canada n’est-ce pas?

Mme Gallant: Je sais, mais il faut quand méme étre
conscients des faits. Nombre d’entre elles sont
complétement sous l'influence de leurs maris. Vous avez
peine a comprendre la situation, mais c’est un fait. De
plus, elles n’ont pas la possibilité d’exprimer leurs
sentiments et leurs opinions. . .

M. O’Kurley: Je ne veux pas prendre le contre-pied de
ce que vous dites, mais le vote n’est-il pas quelque chose
de secret et de confidentiel a I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard?

Mme Gallant: Oui, mais vous devez comprendre les
conditions dans lesquelles nombre de ces personnes
vivent. Ces femmes ont peur de faire certains choix parce
qu’elles savent qu’elles sont soumises a l'influence
d’autres personnes. Certaines localités sont tellement
petites qu’une fois que le vote est compté, on peut
pratiquement dire pour qui chacun a voté.

M. O’Kurley: Vous demandez donc au gouvernement
fédéral de choisir pour ces femmes?

Mme Gallant: Nous demandons simplement au
gouvernement, par ce projet de loi, d’assurer un meilleur
accés. Il n’existe aucun accés a I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard.
Cela ne touche pas les riches. Cela ne touche jamais les
riches parce que, eux, ils peuvent se permettre de faire
bien des choses. Ce sont les femmes pauvres qui n’ont pas
le choix. Dans les régions rurales de [I'lle-du-
Prince-Edouard, il n’existe méme pas de moyen de
transport. Les services n’existent pas, et ces femmes n’ont
pas d’argent.

M. O’Kurley: Vous n’essayez tout de méme pas dire
que les femmes de I'Ile-du-Prince-Edouard sont tellement
naives qu’elles ne peuvent pas faire leur propre choix?
Vous n'essayez pas de dire que. . .

Mme Maheu: C’est exact.
M. O’Kurley: Vous dites qu'elles sont si naives?

Mme Gallant: Je ne peux pas parler au nom de toutes
les femmes, je ne peux pas dire comment elles font leur
choix. Cependant, elles sont influencées par le fait qu’elles
vivent dans une petite collectivité rurale, et peu importe
les décisions qu’elles prennent, elles ne demeuront pas
confidentielles. C’est simplement un des faits de la vie
quotidienne dans les petites régions rurales, la
confidentialité n’est pas quelque chose. . .

Mme Gaudet: De toute fagon, méme si elles faisaient ce
choix, elles n’ont pas accés aux services. Au Nouveau-
Brunswick, peu de femmes font partie des conseils
d’administration des hopitaux. Environ S p. 100 des
membres de ces conseils sont des femmes. Donc les
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about 5% are women. They are not even there, where the
decisions are being made. We are addressing that problem
in New Brunswick.

Mr. O’Kurley: Mrs. Bertrand had suggested earlier that
your lobby might be more effective if it were focused on
provincial governments and perhaps even on the women
of your area. It seems to me that would be a real
important place to start.

Mrs. Forsyth-Smith: To suggest that by the mere fact
we are here indicates that we are not making those efforts
in our own provincial jurisdictions is a mistake. Frankly,
I believe all of the advisory councils have made their
positions very clear to their provincial governments on
this issue. I know I can speak for the Nova Scotia advisory
council. We have been attempting to provide them with
the information, the research, the tools to create a better
environment and better health care for women in our
province. I am sure my colleagues would agree that they
are doing the same.

This is federal legislation that we are addressing here,
not provincial legislation.
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Mr. Robinson: I would like to welcome the witnesses
before the committee and indicate—speaking on behalf of
my colleagues in the New Democratic Party—as I am sure
they are aware, that we fully support the
recommendations that have been made with respect to the
whole question of recriminalizing abortion.

I am also pleased to note that you, along with many of
the other witnesses who have appeared, have stressed the
importance of alternatives to deal with the critical
question in this country, a question of access and helping
to prevent unwanted pregnancies.

I would just note that you recommend that the federal
government increase funding so that counselling, family
planning and public education programs may be
expanded. I come from a province, British Columbia, in
which the impact of the recent budget, which will result
in the shutting down of a number of women'’s centres, is
devastating in precisely these areas.

I know that in other provinces as well the same
concern has been expressed, that women’s centres are
being shut down and that it will result in an erosion in
the already limited facilities that do exist. I am therefore
pleased that you have highlighted the importance of that
and I hope that members, particularly on the other side of
the House, the government side, will take that into
consideration when it comes time to voting on these cuts
in women'’s centres.

I would like to ask a question with respect to your
brief. At page 4 you refer to the possibility of harassment
of doctors. You mention that there have been some cases
in the United States—you talk about a tactic used by the
anti-choice movement in the United States involving a

| Translation)

femmes ne prennent pas les décisions. Evidemment, c’est
le probléme qui existe au Nouveau-Brunswick.

M. O’Kurley: M™¢ Bertrand avait dit un peu plus tot
que vos efforts seraient plus probablement couronnés de
succés si  vous exerciez des pressions sur les
gouvernements provinciaux et sur les femmes de votre
région. Je crois que c’est 1a qu’il faudrait commencer.

Mme Forsyth-Smith: Il ne faut pas penser que, parce
que nous sommes ici, nous ne faisons pas d’effort au
niveau provincial. Pour étre honnétes, je Crois que tous
les conseils consultatifs ont clairement fait connaitre leur
position aux gouvernements proviciaux. Tout au moins,
c’est ce que l'on a fait en Nouvelle-Ecosse. Nous avons
essayé de fournir les renseignements, les documents de
recherche, les moyens pour créer un meilleur
environnement et un meilleur systtme de soins de santé
pour les femmes de la province. Je suis convaincue que
mes collégues font la méme chose.

Nous discutons aujourd’hui d’une loi fédérale, non pas
d’une loi provinciale.

M. Robinson: Au nom de mes collégues du Nouveau
Parti démocratique, je tiens a souhaiter la bienvenue a nos
témoins. Comme elles le savent sans aucun doute, nous
appuyons sans aucune réserve les recommandations qui
ont été faites en ce qui a trait a la criminalisation de
I’avortement.

Je suis heureux de noter que vous, et de nombreux
témoins qui vous ont précédé, avez fait ressortir
I'importance des diverses solutions au grave probléme que
nous éprouvons au pays, le probleme de l'acces et celui
des grossesses non désirées.

Vous proposez que le gouvernement fédéral augmente

ses efforts de financement dans le domaine du
«counselling», de la planification familiale et des
programmes d’éducation publique. Je viens d’une

province, la Colombie-Britannique, ou l'incidence du
dernier budget est absolument dévastatrice dans ce
domaine; en effet, ce budget entrainera la fermeture de
nombre de centres de femmes.

Je sais que les mémes préoccupations ont été soulevées
dans d’autres provinces, on craint que les centres réservés
aux femmes soient fermés et qu’il y ait une érosion des
services, déja tres limités, auxquels elles ont acces. Je suis
donc trés heureux que vous ayez fait ressortir
I'importance de ce type de service. J'espere que les
députés. tout particulierement les députés de la majorite,
tiendront compte de cet aspect lorsque le temps viendra
de voter sur les réductions qu'on apporte au financement
des programmes destinés aux femmes.

J'aimerais vous poser une question sur votre meémoire.
Vous parlez a la page 4 du harcelement possible des
médecins. Vous dites qu’il y a eu certains cas aux Etats-
Unis—vous parlez d’une tactique utilisée par le
mouvement anti-choix aux Etats-Unis. Un faux patient
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bogus patient who provides false urine samples, schedules donnait de faux échantillons d’urine, puis faisait

procedures, and then creates unfavourable publicity.

We have heard some suggestion by those who support
this legislation that in fact doctors will not be charged,
that women will not be charged, that as Bertrand
suggested earlier it would only be third parties who were
not doctors and attempted to perform abortions.

I wonder if perhaps you are in a position to expand on
this particular suggestion. What has happened? Also, you
refer to Newfoundland, where some doctors have stopped
performing abortions because once they were publicly
identified they experienced harassment. What is the
situation in Newfoundland and what has been happening
in the States in terms of this kind of harassment?

Ms Williams: We have one physician who performs
abortions on a regular basis when he has not had a heart
attack or is seriously ill, and occasionally we have had
somebody filling in for him.

We have heard from other physicians that the whole
possibility of a criminal charge being laid is enough of a
reason to not consider stepping in if something happened
to that physician, even providing an emergency fill-in
service. I know that the Canadian Medical Association has
heard the same thing in their discussions with their
physicians. We anticipate that this concern of harassment
would increasingly be a problem. When physicians are
already very busy, why take on something that could lead
to harassment of any nature? We certainly could not
encourage anything along those lines.

Mr. Robinson: Earlier questions - were raised about
Prince Edward Island. I am wondering, Ms Gallant, if you
could indicate what the situation is in terms of individual
doctors on Prince Edward Island. I find it difficult to
believe that there are no doctors who would in fact be
willing to perform abortions on the island should the
hospital boards in question agree to make the facilities
available.

In view of the decision in Morgentaler, has there been
any attempt whatsoever to challenge the current system
under hospital boards? Is there no doctor on Prince
Edward Island, for example, who would be prepared to
perform abortions in his or her office under appropriate
medical conditions, rather than having women forced to
leave the province?

Ms Gallant: It is very hard because of the smallness of
the island. There are doctors who probably would, but
they are not allowed to do it in the hospitals; if they are
not allowed to do it in the hospitals, in fact they have no
place to do it. We do not have the clinics available on
Prince Edward Island to offer these things, although I am
sure there are some doctors who would. Then again. they
are subject to the harassment from the community as are
doctors in Newfoundland.

beaucoup de publicité négative.

Ceux qui appuient cette mesure législative ont dit, de
fait, qu’aucune accusation ne sera portée contre les
médecins, ni contre les femmes, que comme M™¢
Bertrand I'a laissé entendre plus tot, seules les tierces
parties qui, sans étre médecin, ont essayé de pratiquer un
avortement, seront inculpées.

Pouvez-vous nous en dire un peu plus long a ce sujet.
Que s’est-il produit? Vous parlez de plus de Terre-Neuve,
certains médecins ont cessé de pratiquer des avortements,
car aprés avoir été dénoncés publiquement, ils étaient
victimes de harcelement. Quelle est la situation
actuellement a Terre-Neuve? Que s’est-il produit aux
Etats-Unis en ce qui a trait a ce type de harcélement?

Mme Williams: Un médecin pratique régulierement
des avortements lorsqu’il n’a pas de probléeme cardiaque
ou qu’il n’est pas trés malade. A I'occasion, nous trouvons
quelqu’un pour le remplacer.

D’autres médecins nous ont dit que le risque d’étre
inculpé suffit pour les dissuader de remplacer ce médecin,
méme s’il y a situation d’urgence. Je sais que 1’Association
médicale canadienne a entendu le méme genre de propos
dans ces discussions avec les médecins membres. Nous
craignons que ce harcélement devienne un probleme
toujours plus grand. Les médecins sont déja trés occupés,
pourquoi assumeraient-ils des taches qui pourraient les
exposer au harcelement? Nous ne pouvons appuyer une
mesure qui incite au harcélement.

M. Robinson: On a parlé un peu plus tot de I'lle-du-
Prince-Edouard. Madame Gallant, pourriez-vous nous
dire quelle est la situation en ce qui a trait aux médecins
de cette province. J'ai peine a croire qu’aucun médecin
de cette province ne serait disposé a pratiquer des
avortements si les conseils d’administration des hopitaux
mettaient a leur disposition le matériel et les installations
nécessaires.

Compte tenu du jugement prononcé dans laffaire
Morgentaler, a-t-on essayé de contester le systeme
qu’imposent actuellement les conseils d’administration
des hopitaux? N'y a-t-il pas un seul médecin a I'lle-du-
Prince-Edouard, par exemple, qui serait disposé a
pratiquer des avortements dans son bureau, dans des
conditions médicales appropriées, plutot que forcer les
femmes a quitter la province pour obtenir ces services?

Mme Gallant: La situation est tres difficile a cause de la
petite superficie de l'ile. Il y a probablement des
médecins qui offriraient ce service, mais ils n’ont pas le
droit de le faire dans les hopitaux; ils n’ont alors aucun
endroit ol pratiquer ces avortements. Il n’existe pas de
clinique d’avortement a 1'Ile-du-Prince-Edouard. S’il y en
avait, je suis convaincue que certains médecins
pratiqueraient les avortements. Encore une fois, ils sont
exposés au harcélement de la collectivité tout comme les
medecins de Terre-Neuve.
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Doctors in P.E.I. do not make referrals. They do not
even make referrals to Halifax. The women are totally on
their own in this instance. This information is not readily
available except in the women’s centres and at the
advisory councils. They not only have to find out where
there is an abortion clinic or where there is a doctor, how
they could possibly reach that doctor, but they have to
arrange for child care for their children and they have to
arrange for their transportation. In rural Prince Edward
Island we do not even have a bus service. It is a hard for
people in large centres to realize the major problems in a
small community such as Prince Edward Island.

*51225

It is also very hard to keep something like this a secret.
[t is not something that any woman is proud of or would
want to have broadcast. It is very hard to keep something
like that a secret in Prince Edward Island. The onus is
entirely on her, and if she has no money she has no
choice.

Mr. Robinson: I think you mentioned that the last
abortion was performed in Prince Edward Island in 1980.
Of course one of the problems with the current regime is
the extent to which it builds delays into the system. As we
know, the risk of complications increases significantly
with delays. That was one of the bases for the Morgentaler
decision itself, the various barriers and so on.

My last question is with respect to this whole issue of
the federal government occupying the legislative field.
The new Minister of Justice, Kim Campbell, has said that
while she is a pro-choicer she supports this criminal
legislation. She believes it is important that the federal
government to a certain extent occupy the jurisdiction,
establish its jurisdiction through criminal law. In some
way that will prevent provinces from attempting to erode
access to abortion.

Of course some of us remember that there was a
criminal law in effect for many years. That did not stop
Prince Edward Island and a number of other provinces
from attempting to erode jurisdiction.

[ wonder if you could just respond to the suggestion
that we need a criminal law to prevent provinces from
moving in and attempting to deny access at their level of
jurisdiction.

Mme Gaudet: On s'en rendu compte que depuis
janvier 1988, le fait que cela ne soit pas dans le Code
criminel n'a pas entrainé une augmentation du nombre
d’avortements au Nouveau-Brunswick; ce nombre est
demeuré sensiblement le méme. Donc, ce n’est pas le fait

[Translation) )

Les médecins de I'Ile-du-Prince-Edouard ne font pas de
renvoi. Méme pas pour Halifax. Dans ces circonstances,
les femmes doivent de débrouiller seules. Les
renseignements nécessaires ne sont pas disponibles sauf
dans les centres pour les femmes et auprés des conseils
consultatifs. Ces femmes doivent découvrir ou une
clinique d’avortement, ou un médecin, doivent découvrir
comment communiquer avec ce médecin, mais elles
doivent trouver quelqu’un pour prendre soin de leurs
enfants si elles en ont, et elles doivent se débrouiller pour
obtenir le transport nécessaire. Dans les régions rurales de
I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard, nous n’avons méme pas de
service d’autobus. Les gens qui vivent dans les grands
centres urbains ont peine a comprendre les problémes
qu’on éprouve dans les petites collectivités comme dans
I'Ile-du-Prince-Edouard.

De plus, il est difficile de garder secretes les choses du
genre. Ce n’est pas quelque chose dont une femme est
fiere, quelque chose qu’elle voudrait que tout le monde
sache. Mais il est trés difficile de garder un avortement
secret a I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard. C’est a elle seule que
revient toute la responsabilité, et si elle n’a pas d’argent,
elle n’a pas de choix.

M. Robinson: Je crois que vous avez dit que le dernier
avortement pratiqué a I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard avait eu
lieu en 1980. Evidemment, le probléme est que le régime
actuel accumule retards sur retards. Comme nous le
savons, les retards s’accompagnent d’une augmentation
des risques de complications. C’était une des raisons
utilisées dans la décision Morgentaler, quand on parlait
des divers obstacles.

Ma derniére question porte sur la mesure législative
proposée par le gouvernement fédéral. La nouvelle
ministre de la Justice, Kim Campbell, a dit que méme si
elle était pro-choix, elle appuyait le principe d’une loi
pénale. Elle est d’avis qu’il est important que le
gouvernement fédéral dans une certaine mesure $oit
responsable de la question, et pour démontrer sa
responsabilité, qu’il adopte une loi pénale. On croit de
cette fagon empécher les provinces d’essayer de limiter
’acces a I'avortement.

Evidemment, certains d’entre-nous nous souvenons
qu’il y avait eu une loi pénale dans ce domaine pendant
plusieurs années. Cela n’a aucunement empéché I'lle-du-
Prince-Edouard et un certain nombre d’autres provinces
d’essayer d’empécher l’accés a ces services.

Que pensez-vous de ceux qui disent que nous avons
besoin d’une loi pénale afin d’empécher les provinces
d’essayer de refuser tout acces dans leur juridiction?

Mrs. Gaudet: We have seen that since January 1988,
the fact that abortion was not included in the Criminal
Code did not bring about an increase in the number of
abortions in New Brunswick. The number stayed at just
about the same level. So just having an act or including
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d’avoir une loi ou le fait que cela soit inscrit au Code
criminel qui va faire diminuer ou augmenter le nombre
d’avortements.

Le probléme, c’est I’accessibilité. Le fait qu’'on ait une
loi fédérale et que cela soit inscrit au Code criminel va
donner beaucoup plus de pouvoir aux provinces. Les
provinces peuvent légiférer. D’ailleurs, on a vu ce qui
s'est passé en Nouvelle-Ecosse quant le D' Morgentaler a
voulu ouvrir une clinique d’avortement. Tout de suite on
a fait adopter un projet de loi pour le lui interdire. C’est
de juridiction provinciale. C’est ce qui se passe dans nos
provinces. Ce sont les provinces ou les conseils
d’administration qui décident. Dans quel but veut-on une
loi fédérale? C’est la question qu’on se pose.

Ms Gallant: [ gave the wrong impression that no
doctors in Prince Edward Island refer; some doctors do. If
I gave the wrong impression—

Mr. Robinson: No, I understand.

The Chairman: There has been about a S50-minute
debate. Normally it would be an hour. I would like to ask
members if they want some extra time. Should we extend
it? Our next witnesses are here and it is already 12.30
p.m. It is not that | mean to shorten the time of people
who have come from such a long way to be with us. Are
there any more questions?

Mr. Kaplan (York Centre): I hope there will not be. I
have to take off at 1 p.m. I was hoping we would have a
full shot at the other group.

The Chairman: Then I do thank you very much for
being with us. Is it agreed that the brief will be attached to
the proceedings?

Some hon. members: Agreed.

La présidente: Je vous remercie beaucoup, madame
Gaudet,

and all of you who have been with us today. You had a
very interesting brief and an interesting interchange with
our members. I thank you very much.

* 1230
Mrs. Forsyth-Smith: Thank you, Madam Chair.

The Chairman: I would like to welcome the delegation
from the Women’s Legal Education and Action Fund. I
would like to introduce Professor Lynn Smith, the
president. I will ask her to introduce the other members
of her delegation and invite her to make an opening
statement, after which there will be questions from our
panel.

‘Mme Lynn Smith (présidente du Fonds d’action et
d’éducation juridiques pour les femmes): Merci, madame
la présidente. Merci beaucoup de nous donner l’occasion
de vous présenter notre position au sujet du projet de loi
C-43. Je suis présidente nationale du FAEJ, et jai

[Traduction|

that activity under the Criminal Code does not mean
there will be more or fewer abortions.

The problem is access. The fact that there is a federal
act and that abortion is included in the Criminal Code
will give far more power to the provinces. The provinces
will be able to enact legislation. Moreover, we have seen
what happened in Nova Scotia when Dr. Morgentaler
tried to open an abortion clinic. Right away, they passed a
bill to prevent him from doing so. The provinces have
jurisdiction, and that is what happens in our provinces.
The provinces or the hospital boards decide. Why do we
want a federal act? That is what we’re wondering.

Mme Gallant: Je ne voulais pas vraiment dire qu’aucun
médecin de I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard ne renvoie ses
patients; certains le font. Si j’ai créé une fausse impression
e

M. Robinson: Non, je comprends.

La présidente: La discussion dure depuis environ 50
minutes. Normalement, on prévoirait une heure. Je
demanderais aux députés s’ils veulent plus de temps.
Devrions-nous prolonger la période réservée aux témoins?
Nos prochains témoins sont déja arrivés et il est déja
12h30. Ce n’est pas que je ne veuille pas donner de temps
aux gens qui sont venus de si loin pour nous parler. Y a-t-
il d’autres questions?

M. Kaplan (York-Centre): J’espére qu’il n’y aura pas
d’autre question. Je dois partir a 13h00. J’espérais qu’on
aurait eu l’occasion d’entendre l'autre groupe et de lui
poser des questions.

La présidente: Je tiens donc 3 vous remercier d’étre
venues ce matin. Est-il convenu que le mémoire du
groupe sera annexé au délibérations et témoignages?

Des voix: D’accord.
The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mrs. Gaudet.

Je tiens également a remercier toutes celles qui vous ont
accompagnée aujourd’hui. Votre mémoire et I'échange
avec nos députés a été fascinant. Je tiens a vous remercier.

Mme Forsyth-Smith: Merci, madame la présidente.

La présidente: Je souhaite maintenant la bienvenue a la
délégation du Fonds d’action et d’éducation juridiques
pour les femmes. Je vous présente M™¢ Lynn Smith,
présidente du groupe. Je lui demanderais de bien vouloir
nous présenter les autres membres de la délégation et de
faire ensuite son exposé préliminaire. Ensuite, nous
passerons aux questions des députés.

Ms Lynn Smith (President, Woman’s Legal Education
and Action Fund): Thank you, Madam Chair. I am
grateful for this opportunity to express our views on Bill
C-43. I am the national president of LEAF and [ am
accompanied by my colleague, Professor Jackman from
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I’honneur de vous présenter ma collégue, le professeur
Jackman de la Faculté de droit de I'Université d’Ottawa.
Malheureusement, Me Helena Horton, qui est directrice
de FAEJ, a été retenue a Toronto par la brume. Tous les
vols de Toronto a Ottawa ont été annulés ce matin.
Veuillez nous excuser.

Avant de poursuivre, j'aimerais demander que notre
mémoire soit annexé au proces-verbal du Comité,
madame la présidente.

La présidente: Je me ferai une devoir de le proposer
tout a ’heure.

Mme Smith: Merci, madame.

I will begin by briefly outlining the nature of our
organization. LEAF is a national organization whose
objects are to promote equality through litigation,
through public education, and through sharing its
research and opinions with the government in law reform
projects, such as the one that is before this committee. It
is a national organization with membership in every
province and with a nationally representative board.

In brief, LEAF’s position is that Bill C-43 is
constitutionally suspect. Secondly, LEAF’s position is that
Bill C-43 in wrong in principle, that the social policy
objectives behind it are incoherent and improperly acted
upon.

I will begin by addressing the issue of the
constitutionality of the legislation, and I will say that we
consider that there are serious constitutional problems
with the legislation under two main headings. Those are,
of course, sections 15 and 7 of the Charter.

We say as well that both section 15 and section 7 must
be read in the light of section 28, and in our submission
the text of those sections is set out. Sections 7 and 28 are
set out on page 7 of the submission and section 15 is on
pages 8 and 9.

_l .will begin by addressing the equality issue, because
this is probably what is most fundamentally of concern to
us with respect to this bill.

Our view is that it is crucial to recognize that abortion
is a sex equality issue. Pregnancy and childbirth are both
physical and social phenomena, and the context in which
women bear and raise children is one of social inequality
in our society. We say that it is because of this that the
abortion issue must be seen very squarely as an equality
issue for women.

* 1235

~ One matter often comes up, and I want to address it. It
is that pregnancy is usually—in a sense at least—a
voluntary condition. We submit, Madam Chairman, that

[Transiation|

Ottawa University Law School. Unfortunately, Mrs.
Helena Horton, director of LEAF, has been detained in
Toronto by the fog. All flights from Toronto to Ottawa
have been cancelled this morning. We are sorry about
that.

Before I go on, Madam Chair, I would like to have our
brief appended to the minutes of the Committee.

The Chairman: I will make it my duty to propose that
later.

Ms Smith: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Tout d’abord, je vais vous expliquer briévement la
nature de notre organisation. Le FAEJ est un organisme
national dont l'objectif est de promouvoir I'égalité des
femmes en les représentant devant les tribunaux, en
menant des programmes d’éducation du public et en
mettant a la disposition des pouvoirs publics le résultat de
ses recherches et de ses analyses dans le processus de la
réforme du droit, ce qui englobe les travaux du Comité. Il
s’agit d’une organisation nationale dont le conseil
d’administration comprend des représentants de chaque
province.

En deux mots, le FAEJ estime que le projet de loi C-43
viole la Constitution. En outre, nous croyons que le
projet de loi est erroné en principe et que les objectifs de
la politique sociale dont il découle sont incohérents et
mal appliqués.

Je vais tout d’abord parler de la question de la
constitutionnalité de cette mesure législative. Nous
sommes d’avis que la mesure pose de sérieux problemes
constitutionnels a deux égards. Je fais allusion, bien
entendu, aux articles 15 et 7 de la Charte des droits et
libertés.

En outre, nous pensons que les articles 15 et 7 doivent
tous deux étre interprétés dans le contexte de 'article 28.
D'ailleurs, le texte de ces deux articles est reproduit dans
notre mémoire. Vous retrouverez les articles 7 et 28 a la
p. 11 de notre mémoire et ’article 15, a la p. 13.

J’aborderai en premier lieu la question de I'égalité
parce que c'est essentiellement cet aspect qui nous
préoccupe le plus a propos du projet de loi.

A notre avis, il importe de reconnaitre que le
probleme de 'avortement s’inscrit dans le contexte global
de la lutte pour I'égalité sexuelle. La grossesse et
I’accouchement sont des phénomenes autant sociaux que
physiques. Or, les femmes donnent le jour a leurs enfants
et les éléevent dans un contexte d’inégalité sociale. Voila
pourquoi nous croyons que la question de ['avortement
doit carrément étre considérée comme une question
d’égalité pour la femme.

Il y a un argument qu’on évoque souvent, et dont je
voudrais parler. On dit que la grossesse est
habituellement—en un sens, au moins—, une situation
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when one analyses it one can see the problems. First of
all, of course, pregnancy can occur accidentally. It can
occur as the result of consensual sexual activity
accompanied by failed, inadequate, or no contraception.
Secondly, pregnancy can occur as a result of coerced
sexual activity along a spectrum from rape through to
intercourse in a coercive relationship.

Finally, there are occasions when pregnancy occurs as
a result of consensual intercourse and a desire to become
pregnant. But in many situations, conditions of social
inequality lead to women’s lack of control over the
circumstances in which they become pregnant—those first
two situations [ was talking about, failed or inadequate
birth control, or coerced in some measure of sexual
activity.

Similarly, when they raise children in conditions of
social inequality, women are socially allocated the
primary responsibility for child rearing, but this is not
accompanied by a tremendous amount of social support. I
can do no better than refer this committee to the eloquent
statement of this point by the Fédération des femmes du
Québec. As well, 1 noted the National Association of
Women and the Law emphasize this point.

In sum, therefore, in a world where many individual
women have little actual control over sexual access, over
pregnancy and over child rearing, abortion is one of the
few means women have to control their reproductive
capacities.

Madam Chairman, I am sure this has been said many
times before, but we want to say it as well. Abortion is a
necessity. It is not a desirable outcome. It is not an
intrinsic  good, but—however difficult an abortion
decision may be—it may provide some relief in a woman'’s
life that is otherwise led in conditions precluding
meaningful choice.

In our brief we quote from an American law professor,
Professor Olsen, who is commenting on the current
situation in the United States in this area. She makes the
good argument that fighting to retain choice in the matter
of abortion is like having to fight for the right to sleep in
the streets.

If legislation to make it unlawful for people to beg in
the streets or sleep in the alleys were contemplated, then
you would find homeless groups coming in and saying
ttl\ley want the right to sleep in the streets and beg in the
alleys.

Women, having to fight for the right to choose
abortion, are in a similar situation. It is fighting for
sometl)ing that is not an intrinsic good, but it is a
necessity.

[Traduction|

voulue. Madame la présidente, une analyse un peu plus
poussée révele certains problémes. Premieérement, une
grossesse peut étre accidentelle. Elle peut découler de
rapports sexuels consensuels accompagnés d’une
contraception inexistante, inadéquate ou défaillante.
Deuxiémement, la grossesse peut résulter de relations
sexuelles subies sous la contrainte, ce qui englobe toute
une gamme de situations allant du viol aux rapports
sexuels survenus dans une relation marquée par la
violence.

Enfin, il arrive aussi, a l’occasion, que la grossesse
résulte de relations consensuelles motivées par le désir de
connaitre la maternité. Mais dans bien des cas, la
situation d’inégalité sociale dans laquelle se trouve les
femmes fait qu’elles ne controlent souvent pas les
conditions dans lesquelles elles congoivent. Cela
s’applique aux deux premiers cas que j'ai mentionnés:
défaillance ou caractére inadéquat des méthodes de
contréle des naissances, ou encore rapports sexuels subis
sous la contrainte.

En outre, quand les femmes élévent leurs enfants dans
un milieu marqué par l'inégalité sociale, c’est a elles que
la société confie la responsabilité principale d’élever les
enfants, sans pour autant leur fournir un soutien adéquat.
A cet égard, je renvoie le Comité a la déclaration
éloquente de la Fédération des femmes du Québec. Je
vous signale que I’Association nationale de la femme et le
droit soulignent ce point.

En somme, dans un monde ou un grand nombre de
femmes n’exercent que peu de contrdle sur I'accés sexuel,
sur la grossesse et sur I’éducation des enfants, I'avortement
est un des rares moyens dont elles disposent pour
contrOler leurs capacités de reproduction.

Madame la présidente, vous avez sans doute déja
entendu cela a maintes reprises, mais j’estime important
de le répéter. L’avortement est une nécessité. Ce n’est pas
une issue souhaitable. L’avortement n’est pas un bien
intrinséque, mais si difficile que soit la décision de mettre
fin a une grossesse, I’avortement peut apporter un certain
soulagement dans une vie qui est par ailleurs vécue dans
des conditions excluant la possibilit¢ d’un choix
significatif.

Dans notre mémoire, nous citons un professeur de
droit américain, M™® Olsen, qui commente la situation
actuelle aux Etats-Unis dans ce domaine. Elle fait une
comparaison percutante entre la lutte pour la liberté de
choisir en matiére d’avortement et la lutte pour le droit
de coucher sous les ponts.

Si l'on envisageait d’adopter une loi interdisant aux
gens de mendier et de coucher a la belle étoile, les
groupes de soutien aux sans-abris seraient obligés de se
battre pour défendre le droit de coucher sous les ponts et
de mendier dans la rue.

Les femmes qui luttent pour avoir le droit de choisir
I'avortement sont dans une situation analogue. Elle
doivent se battre pour quelque chose, qui n’est pas
fondamentalement souhaitable, mais nécessaire.
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In our submission, the Supreme Court of Canada has
given strong support to viewing abortion as a sex equality
issue. In the Brooks case, quoted on page 11 of our
submission, we can see the Supreme Court of Canada has
adopted a view of equality and of non-discrimination that
encompasses such sex-specific conditions as pregnancy.

The Supreme Court of Canada has said to say men do
not become pregnant so there is no equality issue is no
longer an answer to a claim that legislation disadvantages
pregnant women. The Supreme Court of Canada has
recognized what is wrong with that view of equality and it
has now said, in the Brooks case, that women are entitled
to more than equality in this society only so long as, and
to the extent that. they are the same as men. Women are
entitled to equality in a much more extended notion of
the term. It is not limited by a male norm.

So provisions that discriminate on the basis of sex-
specific conditions, such as pregnancy, we submit will fall
within the Andrews definition of discrimination, Andrews
being the leading case in the Supreme Court of Canada
on, section 15.

Here we see legislation singling out a medical
procedure only women require, and imposing a criminal
sanction around it. As the Canadian Medical Association
pointed out, it is the only medical procedure to receive
such treatment. They also pointed out that the effect will
likely be an even further reduction in the already very
small number of doctors who are willing to perform
abortions. The number given by the CMA was 375.

= 1240

I think their argument is a very strong one, that the
twofold deterrent created by this legislation will have its
effect. What is the purpose of criminal legislation? It is to
deter. We think this criminal legislation will have that
effect. It will deter doctors from performing abortions
because of the fear of criminal prosecution and the fear of
losing their licence. It will deter others from assisting
women in attempting to obtain abortions.

Further, the disparties between provinces are likely to
be exacerbated rather than ameliorated by this legislation.
It is possible medical standards will vary from province to
province, with the result being a worsening rather than an
improvement in disparaties. The arguments [ have
presented—

|Translation|

Dans notre mémoire, nous notons que la Cour
supréme du Canada a souscrit sans équivoque au principe
que l'accés a l'avortement est une question d’égalité
sexuelle. Dans la cause Brooks, dont nous citons un
passage a la page 16 de notre mémoire, la Cour supréme
du Canada a jugé que l’égalité et la non-discrimination
englobaient des situations propres a un sexe comme la
grossesse.

Selon la Cour supréme du Canada, on ne peut plus
invoquer le fait que les hommes ne vivent pas la grossesse
pour faire valoir qu’il ne s’agit pas d'une question
d’égalité sexuelle. On ne saurait invoquer cet argument
pour justifier une loi qui désavantage les femmes
enceintes. La Cour supréme du Canada a reconnu que
cette perception de I’égalité était erronée. Dans la cause
Brooks, elle a statué que les femmes ont le droit d’obtenir
I’égalité dans la société uniquement dans la mesure ou
elles sont pareilles aux hommes. Les femmes ont droit a
I’égalité dans le sens le plus vaste du terme. Cette égalité
ne doit pas étre limitée par une norme masculine.

A notre avis, les dispositions qui donnent lieu a une
discrimination fondée sur des caractéristiques li€es au
sexe, comme la grossesse, tombent sous le coup de la
définition de la discrimination donnée par la Cour
supréme du Canada dans l’affaire Andrews. Comme on le
sait, c’est a cette occasion que la Cour supréme a rendu
un jugement important au sujet de I'article 15.

En l'occurence, nous sommes en présence d’une
mesure législative qui isole un acte médical s’adressant
uniquement aux femmes et qui I’assortit de sanctions
criminelles. Comme les représentants de I’Association
médicale canadienne l'ont fait remarquer, c’est le seul
acte médical qui soit traité de cette fagon. Ils ont aussi fait
remarquer que cette mesure aura pour effet de réduire
encore davantage le nombre déja restreint des médecins
qui acceptent de pratiquer des avortements. Selon ’AMC,
ils sont au nombre de 375.

Je pense que leur argument est extrémement valable.
La double dissuasion créée par cette mesure ne manquera
pas d’avoir cet effet. Quel est ['objet d’une loi qui prévoit
des sanctions criminelles? C'est la dissuasion. Et nous
sommes convaincus que cette mesure aura effectivement
un effet de dissuasion. Elle découragera les médecins de
pratiquer des avortements de peur d’étre passibles de
poursuites criminelles et de perdre leur droit de
pratiquer. Elle dissuadera également d’autres personnes de
venir en aide aux femmes qui cherchent a obtenir un
avortement.

En outre, la mesure renforcera vraisemblablement les
disparités entre les provinces au lieu de les atténuer. Il est
fort possible que les normes établies par les colleges
provinciaux des médecins varient d’une province a
l'autre, ce qui aurait pour effet d’accroitre les disparités
au lieu de les réduire.
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Mr. Kaplan: On a point of order, Madam Chairman.
The fog in Toronto must have cleared. Legal counsel has
just arrived and perhaps she should join you at the table.

Ms Smith: As | was saying, these access problems are
not only an equality issue and constitutionally suspect for
that reason, they are also a section 7 issue. As the
Morgentaler case established, legislation that has the effect
of reducing access to safe medical abortions for women
may violate women'’s right to security of the person. We
think this legislation is constitutionally suspect under
both those headings.

As for why the legislation is wrong in principle, I will
be brief, because the members might have questions. First,
it is important to refer to the fundamental principle so
eloquently expressed by Barbara McDougall. She said:

There is no question the issue is a moral issue. The
question is who is to make that moral judgment.

Further,

Why is the woman who is carrying the child not the
person who can make that judgment best? Do we
honestly believe that she who has the life within her
will make a worse decision than us?

We think there are many good and important ways to
show respect for fetal life, and one of the motivating
factors behind this legislation is the necessity to affirm our
values and our respect for fetal life.

We think there are many positive and constructive
ways of affirming that value. We in LEAF affirm that
value. Many of us are mothers ourselves, but we think it
is a negative and destructive way to put a value on fetal
life by criminalizing women who seek abortions.

This creates the view of the pregnant woman and her
fetus as antagonists, with the fetus needing a structure of
rights around it. In fact, the fetus and the pregnant
woman are obviously the same entity, and the only way to
show respect for one is to do so for the other.

The Supreme Court of Canada seems to support this
position. In its ruling, the Court said

a fetus would appear to be a paradigmatic example of a
being whose alleged rights would be inseparable from
the rights of others, and in particular from the rights of
the woman carrying the fetus.

= 1245

A remarkable feature of this legislation is its
incoherence. On the one hand, it appears to stem from

| Traduction)

M. Kaplan: Madame la présidente, j’invoque le
Réglement. Le brouillard doit s’étre dissipé a Toronto.
L'avocate du groupe vient tout juste d’arriver et elle
devrait sans doute se joindre a ses compagnes a la table.

Mme Smith: Comme je le disais, le probléme de I'acces
a l'avortement pose non seulement le probléeme de
I’égalité et de la légitimité constitutionnelles, il fait aussi
intervenir l’article 7. Comme I|’a prouvé [’affaire
Morgentaler, une loi qui limiterait 1'accés des femmes a
un avortement médical sur, porte sans doute atteinte aux
droits de la femme a la sécurité de sa personne. Je pense
qu’a ces deux égards, le projet de loi présente des lacunes
constitutionnelles.

Quant a la question de savoir pourquoi le projet de loi
péche contre le principe, je serai bréve parce que les
députés ont sans doute des questions a poser.
Premiérement, il importe de réitérer le principe
fondamental exprimé avec beaucoup d’éloquence par
Barbara McDougall. Elle a déclaré:

Il ne fait aucun doute que la morale entre ici en ligne
de compte. La question est de savoir qui va porter un
jugement moral dans les circonstances.

Je poursuis,

Pourquoi la femme qui porte un enfant ne serait-elle
pas la mieux placée pour juger? Croyons-nous
honnétement que la femme qui porte la vie en elle
prendra une décision moins bonne que la nitre?

Nous pensons qu’il existe maintes fagons de démontrer
son respect pour le foetus. D’ailleurs, I'une des raisons
qui a motivé la rédaction de cette loi est la nécessité
d’affirmer nos valeurs et notre respect pour la vie du
foetus.

A notre avis, on peut affirmer ces valeurs de multiples
fagons positives. Le FAEJ souscrit a ces valeurs. Un grand
nombre d’entre nous sont des méres de famille, mais nous
pensons que ce n’est pas en criminalisant les femmes qui
veulent avorter qu’'on affirme son attachement a la vie du
foetus. A notre avis, c’'est une attitude négative et
destructive.

En effet, on pose ainsi la femme enceinte et le foetus
comme des étres opposés et on en déduit que le foetus a
besoin de toute une ribambelle de droits. En fait, le foetus
et la femme enceinte sont manifestement la méme entité
et la seule fagon de montrer son respect pour l'un consiste
a le montrer pour l’'autre.

La Cour supréme du Canada semble souscrire a cette
position. Dans sa décision, la Cour a déclaré:

Le foetus semble I'’exemple parfait d’'un étre dont les
droits prétendus sont inséparables de ceux d’un autre
étre, en particulier ceux de la femme qui le porte.

Le projet de loi est caractérisé par une remarquaple
incohérence. D’une part, il semble découler du principe
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the view that the state should take responsibility for
protecting fetal life. On the other hand, it shows a
willingness to delegate that responsibility the medical
profession.

Why not delegate that decision to the person most
likely to fully understand the dimensions of the problem
and with the most at stake in terms of her bodily integrity
and future—i.e., the woman herself? Why not reject the
notion of delegation altogether and recognize that in this
area we are all imperfect mortals who do the best we can
and that the decision is not for anyone to delegate. The
pregnant woman herself should be the one who exercises
moral agency.

For that reason and because of the very serious
problems regarding access, which I have alluded to and
which have been pointed out numerous times to the
committee, we think the bill is constitutionally suspect
and unsound in policy and our recommendation is that it
not be passed.

If there is time, I would like to ask my colleague,
Professor Jackman, to address the issue of federal criminal
jurisdiction occupying the field and preventing provincial
legislation.

Mr. Robinson: Agreed.

Mme Barbara Jackman (membre du Fonds d’action et
d’éducation juridiques pour les femmes): La position du
FAEJ est que I'argument du gouvernement fédéral sur ce
point est mal fondé au plan constitutionnel. Il est évident
que le Parlement a compétence législative en matiére
d’avortement, soit par voie de sa compétence en matiére
de droit criminel, soit par voie de sa compétence en
matiere de santé et de bien-étre national.

Cependant, que le Parlement légifére ou non dans ce
domaine n’a aucun impact sur la capacité des provinces
de légiférer en matiere d'accés a I'avortement. La
compétence législative des provinces n’est pas augmentée
ou diminuée par [I’intervention législative du
gouvernement fédéral.

Cette législation criminelle n’aura aucun effet
juridique, incitatif ou dissuasif, en ce qui a trait a la
législation provinciale en matiére d’accés a l'avortement
ou en matiere d’uniformité des processus ou des normes
médicales qui seront exigées.

Si le gouvernement fédéral veut véritablement légiférer
pour assurer l'accés a l'avortement ou pour assurer une
uniformité interprovinciale au plan des processus et des
normes, la Loi canadienne sur la santé nationale est la loi
appropriée. L'article 3 de cette loi déclare comme objectif
de la loi l'uniformité d’accés aux services de santé pour
tous les Canadiens et toutes les Canadiennes. Le FAE]
aft"lrmfa donc que I'argument voulant que ce projet de loi
soit nécessaire pour assurer 'uniformité interprovinciale
est tout a fait mal fondé au plan constitutionnel.

Je vous saurais gré de bien vouloir me poser toute
autre question que vous pourriez avoir a cet égard.

[Translation|

que I’Etat devrait assumer la protection de la vie du
foetus. D’autre part, on y décéle une volonté de déléguer
cette responsabilité a la profession médicale.

Pourquoi ne pas déléguer cette décision a la personne
la mieux en mesure de comprendre toutes les dimensions
du probléme, la personne dont l'intégrité corporelle et
I’avenir sont en jeu, la femme elle-méme? Pourquoi_ne
pas rejeter carrément l'idée de délégation et reconnaitre
que dans ce domaine, nous sommes tous de pauvres
mortels qui faisons uniquement notre possible et qu’il
n’appartient a personne de déléguer cette décision. La
femme enceinte elle-méme devrait étre celle qui décide
sur le plan moral.

Pour cette raison et a cause des problémes trés graves
d’acceés, problémes que jai mentionnés et qui ont €té
portés A maintes reprises a l'attention du comité, nous
pensons que le projet de loi est douteux sur le plan
constitutionnel et boiteux sur le plan de la politique. par
conséquent, nous déconseillons de I'adopter.

Si le temps le permet, je voudrais demander a ma
collégue, madame Jackman, de parler du fait que le
gouvernement fédéral exerce sa compétence dans les
affaires criminelles et empéche les provinces de l€giférer.

M. Robinson: D’accord.

Ms Barbara Jackman (Member, Women’s Legal
Education and Action Fund): It is LEAF’s submission
that the federal government’s argument in this regard is
constitutionally shaky. There is no denying that
Parliament has the power to make legislation about
abortion pursuant to its criminal powers or to its
jurisdiction in matters pertaining to national health and
welfare.

However, whether Parliament decides to pass
legislation in this area or not, it will have no bearing on
the provinces’ capacity to legislate access to abortion. The
provinces’ legislative jurisdiction is neither increased nor
diminished by the legislation enacted by the federal
government.

This criminal legislation will have no legal impact,
neither facilitating nor discouraging, with regard to
provincial legislation on access or with regard to
establishing the uniform processes or medical standard
procedures required.

If the federal government really wants to legislate
access to abortion or guarantee national uniformity in
terms of standards and processes, the Canada Health Act
is not the appropriate vehicle to do so. According to
section 3, the primary objective of the Act is to facilitate
reasonable access to health services for all residents of
Canada. Consequently, LEAF submits that the argument
that this bill is necessary to ensure interprovincial
uniformity is totally unfounded constitutionally.

[ am prepared to answer any other question that you
might have in this regard.
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. Kaplan: You have given us so many interesting
ideas to think about. I want to begin by thanking you and
by indicating that I do not support this legislation, but I
want to talk to you about some of the limitations I see in
it. I have a lot of difficulty with the idea that abortion is
an equality issue.

You are saying, if [ can put it into a politically absurd
context, though not an illogical one, that if Parliament
wanted to pass a law against vasectomies, for example, you
would feel that such a law would also be illegal or
unconstitutional. It is one thing to say that only a woman
can have an abortion, but it does not follow that you can
object to legislation prohibiting abortion based on the
equality section of the Charter. I do not want to take too
long on the point, because it is hypothetical, but I
disagree with you.

Y1250

Ms Smith: Let me amplify our position. The position is
not that any and all sex-specific legislation automatically
violates section 15. Our argument, and I think it is
supported by the Supreme Court of Canada in both
Brooks and Andrews, is that in assessing equality claims
one does not first of all automatically throw them out
because they only relate to one gender. That is very
clearly established in Brooks. It was simply not an answer
to the equality claim in Brooks, which was under the
Manitoba Human Rights Act, that only women become
pregnant.

The Supreme Court of Canada overturned its own
previous decision in Bliss, which had said that, and went
for the other view. Therefore, it is not a ground for
rejecting the claim. In order to constitute a violation of
section 15, however, the claim must meet the Andrews
test and relate to the disadvantage of a disadvantaged
group.

In terms of pregnancy and childbirth and in social
terms in Canada, women are disadvantaged. The network
of rules that creates this disadvantage includes some very
lmportant ones around access to reproductive control. It
is for that reason that abortion is very clearly, in our view,
an equality issue, not snmply because it is a sex-specific
condition, but because it is a sex-specific condition so
central to women’s social inequality.

Mr. Kaplan: In light of that, what do you make of the
invitation we had from the Supreme Court of Canada to
examine the pregnancy period and to consider leglslauon
in the interests of the fetus, which would have to be given
weight at some point during the pregnancy? It sounds to

[Traduction]

M. Kaplan: Vous nous avez soumis un grand nombre
d’idées intéressantes et je tiens a vous en remercier. Je
n’'appuie pas la mesure a I’étude et je voudrais vous parler
de certaines lacunes que i’y vois. J’ai beaucoup de mal a
accepter I'idée que I’avortement est une question d’égalité
sexuelle.

Ainsi, pour vous donner un exemple absurde, mais
logique, si le Parlement voulait adopter une loi contre les
vasotomies, vous considéreriez qu’une telle loi est
anticonstitutionnelle. C’est une chose de dire que seule
une femme peut avoir un avortement, mais il ne s’ensuit
pas qu'on peut s’opposer a une loi interdisant
I’avortement en invoquant l'article de la Charte sur
I’égalité. Je ne veux pas m’appesantir la-dessus, puisque
c’est une question hypothétique, mais je ne suis pas
d’accord avec vous.

Mme Smith: Permettez-moi de préciser notre position.
Nous ne disons pas que toute mesure qui s’applique a un
sexe particulier enfreint automatiquement larticle 15.
Notre argument, qui, & notre avis, a €té appuyé par la
Cour Supréme du Canada dans les causes Brooks &
Andrews, est le suivant: il ne faut pas rejeter
automatiquement l’application du principe de I’égalité
pour la seule raison qu'une mesure sapplique
uniquement a un genre. Cela a été établi trés clairement
dans I’affaire Brooks. Cette affaire, qui a été plaidée en
vertu de la Loi sur les droits de la personne du Manitoba,
a bien montré qu’on ne pouvait pas écarter I'Targument de
’égalité uniquement parce que seules les femme
deviennent enceintes.

La Cour Supréme du Canada a renversé la décision
qu’elle avait prise antérieurement dans |'affaire Bliss, qu1
était précisément fondée sur cet argument, et elle a opté
pour le point de vue contraire. En conséquent, ce n’est
pas un motif de re]et de la cause. Cependant, pour
pouvoir prouver qu’il y a eu violation de l'article 15, il
faut que se reproduise la situation mise en lumiére dans
I’affaire Andrews, soit qu'un groupe se soit trouvé
désavantagé dans la société.

Sur le plan social, au Canada, les femmes qui donnent
naissance a des enfants sont désavantagées. Parmi les
multipes régles qui créent ces désavantages, certaines, trés
importantes, tournent autour de la question de l'accés au
contrdle des fonctions de reproduction. C'est pour cette
raison qu’a notre avis il ne fait aucun doute que
I’avortement est une question d’égalité non seulement
parce qu’il se rattache a une situation liée a un sexe
particulier, mais aussi parce que cette condition féminine
particuliere est au coeur de l'inégalité sociale de la
femme.

M. Kaplan: Dans ce contexte, que pensez-vous de
I'invitation que nous a faite la Cour Supréme du Canada
d’examiner la penode de grossesse et d’envisager
d’adopter une loi protégeant les intéréts du foetus, intéréts
auxquels on donnerait un certain poids a une étape ou
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me as if the logic of your position excludes any attention
by Parliament to the fetus.

Ms Smith: We are not here to talk about any other
possible legislation, but about this bill, and our position
about this bill is that it is very clearly constitutionally
suspect.

As for the Supreme Court of Canada’s dicta in
Morgentaler, I agree that in several places in this
judgment there is a clear statement that it may be
important and a legitimate objective for Parliament to
legislate with respect to fetal life.

As we said, we agree that there is value in fetal life, that
as a society we want to recognize this value, and that we
may want to take measures to protect the health of
pregnant women, assist women in raising their children.
We think, however, this bill goes exactly in the wrong
direction, if that is the social objective.

Mr. Kaplan: With respect, perhaps you have glossed
over a bit what I think the Supreme Court of Canada was
inviting us to do. I agree with you, this legislation does
not do it, but I had a feeling approaching my work here—
and maybe not too many think the legislation should be
gestational—that we would not be prohibited by the
Charter. This is my criticism of your interpretation. It
seems to prohibit us from picking a time at which the
interests of the fetus would be given some legal
recognition, alongside the rights of women recognized in
the Charter.

[ am talking now about pre-birth. I am not talking
about attention to children, which is another appalling
issue we could talk about.

Ms Smith: It is difficult to respond in the abstract. If
the legislation embarked upon some course of setting
gestational limits, it would be a bit easier to reply. I think,
however, that our main point—and it may be inconsistent
with any legislation based on gestational limits—is that to
recognize the value of fetal life, to promote the social
values underlying this legislation, we do so through
enhancing the equality of women in this society.

Mr. Kaplan: That is my problem with the equality
argument. As much as I am in favour of the basic status
issue you raised, I have difficulty applying it to invalidate
this law.

Ms Smith: It is also a highly abstract question, because
so very few abortions ever take place beyond 20 weeks. I
am sure this committee has heard the statistics, and I am
sure it is also familiar with the fact that those very few
abortions that do take place after this point are usually for
cr(l)mpelling reasons. Otherwise, doctors will not perform
them.

[Translation|

une autre de la grossesse? Il me semble que la logique de
votre position exclut que le Parlement s’intéresse au
foetus.

Mme Smith: Nous ne sommes pas ici pour parler
d’autres mesures possibles, mais du projet de loi a I’étude.
Or, nous considérons que ce projet de loi est
anticonstitutionnel.

En ce qui concerne la décision de la Cour Supréme
dans l’affaire Morgentaler, je conviens qu’a plusieurs
endroits dans le jugement, on établit clairement qu’il
serait légitime et important que le Parlement légifere au
sujet de la vie du foetus.

Comme nous I’avons dit, nous reconnaisssons la valeur
de la vie du foetus et en tant que société nous voulons
reconnaitre cette valeur et, dans ce contexte, prendre des
mesures pour protéger la santé de la femme enceinte et
’aider a assurer I’éducation de ses enfants. Cependant, si
c’est 1a I'objectif social que cherche a réaliser le projet de
loi, nous estimons qu’il s’engage sur une mauvaise voie.

M. Kaplan: Je pense que vous étes passée un peu vite
sur U'invitation que nous a lancée la Cour Supréme du
Canada. Je conviens avec vous que la mesure a I’étude a
passé cet aspect sous silence, mais compte tenu de la fagon
dont je pergois nos travaux ici—et peu sans doute pensent
que l'on devrait aborder la question de la gestation dans la
loi—la Charte ne devrait pas nous interdire d’en parler.
Voila ce que je repproche a votre interprétation. Elle
semble nous interdire de choisir un moment a partir
duquel les intéréts du foetus seraient reconnus sur le plan
juridique parallelement aux droits que la Charte
reconnait aux femmes.

Je parle de la période qui précéde la naissance et non
pas des soins a donner aux enfants, ce qui est une autre
question consternante dont nous pourrions parler.

Mme Smith: Il est difficile de répondre dans I’abstrait.
Si la mesure précisait les étapes de la gestation, il serait
plus facile de répondre. Mais notre principal argument—
sans doute incompatible avec toute loi fondée sur les
étapes de la gestation—fait que le meilleur moyen de
reconnaitre la valeur de la vie du foetus et de promouvoir
les valeurs sociales sous-jacentes dans ce projet de loi
consiste a promouvoir I'égalité de la femme dans la
SOCiété.

M. Kaplan: C’est la que je n’accepte pas I’argument de
I’égalite. Méme si je suis essentiellement d’accord avec
vous, j'ai du mal a concevoir qu'on puisse invoquer cet
argument pour s’attaquer a cette loi.

Mme Smith: Il s’agit aussi d’une question éminemment
abstraite étant donné que trés peu d’avortements sont
effectués apres 20 semaines. Je suis sir que le Comité a
entendu toutes les statistiques pertinentes et qu’il sait que
les rares avortements pratiqués aprés cette €tape le sont
d’habitude pour des raisons de force majeure. Autrement,
les médecins refusent d’intervenir.
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Mr. Kaplan: That argument cuts both ways, though.
What you are saying is that the problem is smaller, but by
the same token the enforcement of such a law places
fewer restrictions on women because they would, after all,
be getting abortions in the early phases when whatever
teeth would be put into the law would not yet apply.
Anyway, that is not the law we are being asked to look at.

[ want also to cover with you an issue of access that
interests me a lot. The government has taken the position
that its role is entitlement and that this law deals with
entitlement to abortion, but that the question of access is a
provincial issue. [ want to try to get some legal insights
into the limitations of that argument of the government.

If this law goes through as it is and there are places in
the country, which there will be, where it is harder to
comply with the permission condition than it is in other
parts, I feel that lack of access is going to make this law
constitutionally invalid. Whether it is up to the province
or the private sector or the federal government to assure
access is not the issue. The fact that access will be unequal
is what is going to make this law invalid.

I use the analogy of the abortion committees under the
old law that was discredited. No one ever said the federal
government had to provide these committees. They would
have had to establish some new machinery to do it or
some new policies, maybe even legislation. The fact that it
was not provided by whoever was responsible for
providing it helped defeat the old law. I am arguing that
similarly under the present law, whether it is up to the
province to provide access or up to the hospitals or up to
the medical profession, the fact that a criminal condition
is imposed on the right to have abortion and that there is
not equal access across the country will invalidate this
law.

Ms Smith: We agree with that. We think that is one of
the serious problems with the legislation and that it
renders it problematic under both section 15 and section
i

There is an interesting contrast between this legislation
and its predecessor, section 251 of the Criminal Code. At
least under section 251 of the Criminal Code the doctor
could know in advance that he or she was not going to
face a criminal prosecution. The therapeutic abortion
committees gave a prior stamp of approval. There is no
such provision now. So again a doctor is put into a very
difficult situation. Without being able to know in advance
that the defence will be available, he or she must take the
risk to go ahead. I think that is one of the less analysed,
but rather striking features about this bill.

[Traduction|

M. Kaplan: Mais cet argument est a double tranchant.
Vous dites que le probléme est moindre, mais il est vrai
aussi que l'application d’une telle loi n’impose pas autant
de restrictions aux femmes, parce quaprés tout, elles
pourraient se faire avorter en début de grossesse, période
pour laquelle les sanctions prévues par la loi ne
s’appliqueraient pas encore. Quoi qu’il en soit, ce n’est
pas cette législation que nous sommes chargés d’examiner.

Je voudrais examiner aussi avec vous la question de
I'acces, qui m’intéresse beaucoup. Le gouvernement
estime que son rdle se situe au niveau du droit, et que
cette loi concerne le droit a l'avortement, mais que la
question de l’accés est une question provinciale.
J’aimerais examiner, d’un point de vue juridique, cette
fagon limitative dont le gouvernement congoit son role.

Si cette loi est adoptée sans modification, et que
certains endroits du pays—et il y en aura—rendent les
conditions autorisant l'avortement plus difficiles a
appliquer qu’ailleurs, je crains que le manque d’acces ne
rende cette législation invalide du point de vue
constitutionnel. L’accés, qu’il soit assuré par la province,
le secteur privé ou le gouvernement fédéral, n’est pas en
cause, mais c’est parce qu’il n’est pas le méme partout que
cette loi sera invalide.

Je ferai un rapprochement avec les comités
d’avortement prévus par l’ancienne loi, qui a été
abandonnée. Personne n’a jamais dit que le gouvernement
fédéral devrait prévoir la constitution de ces comités. Il
lui aurait fallu les mettre en place au moyen de certains
nouveaux mécanismes ou politiques, voire méme d’une
loi. Ceux qui avaient la responsabilité de créer ces comiteés
n'en n’ont rien fait, ce qui a contribué a I’échec de
I'ancienne loi. Celle que nous examinons maintenant me
parait tout aussi compromise, car, peu importe que
I’accés a l’avortement soit du ressort des provinces, des
hopitaux ou des médecins; ce qui risque fort de
'invalider, c’est que le droit a l'avortement est assorti
d’une sanction pénale, et que son accés n’est pas le méme
partout dans le pays.

Mme Smith: Nous sommes de votre avis; vous venez
d’exposer l'une des sérieuses difficultés créées par cette
loi, qui devient problématique aussi bien a l'article 15
qu’a l'article 7.

Il existe un contrat intéressant entre ce projet de loi et
la législation précédente, l'article 251 du Code criminel.
Au moins en vertu de cette disposition, le médecin
pouvait savoir d’avance s'il risquait d’étre poursuivi en
justice. Les comités d'avortement thérapeutique
approuvaient officiellement l'intervention, avant qu’elle
ne se fasse. Rien de tel dans ce projet de loi. Les médecins
se trouvent donc mis dans une situation trés difficile. Sans
étre en mesure de savoir d’avance que d’autres pourront
justifier son intervention, il doit prendre le risque de la
pratiquer. Cet aspect du projet de loi n'a pas été
suffisamment analysé, bien qu’il soit extrémement
important.
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Ms Jackman: Perhaps [ could also expand on that
point. It seems clear that there is a compelling
constitutional argument that the access problems with the
legislation make it constitutionally suspect. In the
Morgentaler case the majority of the justices focused on
the fact that a threat of criminal sanction was being
applied in an inconsistent manner across provincial
boundaries and that it violated fundamental principles
under section 7 of the Charter.

I think the argument can be taken even further to
suggest that even in the absence of criminal legislation the
lack of uniform access to abortion throughout Canada
violates constitutional rights provided not only under
section 7 but also under section 15, if not a violation of
obligations that the federal and provincial governments
have undertaken under section 36 of the 1982
Constitution Act.

Mr. Kaplan: If this government passes no legislation at
all and a province establishes standards that make
abortions less accessible, not for criminal law reasons but
just for one reason or another, ordering doctors not to do
them or cutting off funding or centralizing a clinic in
some awkward, difficult place or asking people to go out
of the province, there is no way that people who wanted
equal access to abortions across the country could enforce
that against a province except politically by—

= 1300

Ms Smith: It might be possible to bring the Canada
Health Act into play and to invoke section 36, as
Professor Jackman referred to. As well, of course, the
Charter applies to the provinces, and if the result of
provincial restrictions on access is to deny women equal
access to medical services then they would have a Charter
claim. It must be remembered that both levels of
government are subject to the Charter and there are
claims based on access coming forward in several
provinces at the moment.

Mr. Kaplan: Really?

The Chairman: [ understand that Mr. Wilbee and Ms
Greene will be sharing time.

Mr. Wilbee (Delta): Mr. Kaplan has actually explored a
lot of the areas I was interested in. I would commend you
for your very considered and balanced brief. I just got it
before we sat down, so I have not had a chance to study it,
but it is certainly impressive in the research that you have
done and you are commended on that. As I say, a lot of
the things I had wanted to talk to you about have already
been explored. There are just one or two areas.

A lot of the commotion and the problems that brought
on the government’s need to produce a bill were the third-
party intervention last summer. In your deliberations, do

[Translation)|

Mme Jackman: Permettez-moi d’ajouter autre chose,
la-dessus. Il me parait tout a fait évident que les
problemes d’accés que pose cette législation la rende
suspecte, du point de vue constitutionnel. Dans la cause
Morgentaler, la majorité des juges ont mis l'accent sur
cette menace de sanctions criminelles pesant de fagon non
uniforme dans les différentes provinces, ce qui allait a
I’encontre des principes fondamentaux prévus a larticle 7
de la Charte.

I’irais jusqu’a dire que méme en l'absence d’une
législation pénale, le manque d’uniformité, au Canada,
quant a laccées a [I'avortement viole les droits
constitutionnels prévus non seulement a l'article 7, mais
aussi a l'article 15, et peut-étre les obligations qu’ont
prises les gouvernements fédéral et provinciaux aux
termes de l'article 36 de I'acte constitutionnel de 1982.

M. Kaplan: Si ce gouvernement n’adopte aucune loi et
qu’une province établit certaines normes qui rendent plus
difficile I'accés a l’avortement—non pas pour des raisons
associées au droit pénal, mais pour toutes sortes d’autres
raisons—en interdisant aux médecins de les pratiquer ou
en coupant les subventions pour ce genre de service, ou
en les centralisant dans une clinique d’acces tres difficile,
ou en demandant aux femmes d’aller se faire avorter dans
d’autres provinces, les gens qui voudraient que l’acces a
I'avortement soit le méme partout dans le pays ne
pourraient obtenir gain de cause aupres de cette province
que grace a une action politique, en. . .

Mme Smith: Il serait possible d’invoquer la Loi
canadienne sur la santé, et l'article 36, dont a parlée M™¢
Jackman. De plus, la Charte vise bien sir les provinces, et
si les restrictions de ces derniéres sur l'acces a
I’'avortement a pour effet de ne pas donner aux femmes
un méme accés aux services meédicaux, celles-ci
pourraient porter plainte, en invoquant la Charte. Il ne
faut pas oublier qu’elle vise les deux niveaux de
gouvernement, et qu’actuellement des plaintes fondées sur
I'accés sont portées dans plusieurs provinces.

M. Kaplan: Vraiment?

La présidente: J’ai cru comprendre que M. Wilbee et
M™¢ Greene vont partager le temps accordé pour leur
intervention.

M. Wilbee (Delta): M. Kaplan a examiné un grand
nombre des questions auxquelles je m’intéressais. Je
voudrais vous féliciter pour votre mémoire, que je trouve
tres juste et tres sensé. L’ayant eu juste avant de m’asseoir,
je n’ai pas eu la possibilité de I'étudier, mais je vois que
vous avez fait des recherches considérables et je vous en
felicite. Encore une fois, bien des questions que je voulais
vous poser ont déja été examinées. Il en reste seulement
une ou deux.

Le gouvernement a ressenti la nécessité de présenter un
projet de loi en raison de toutes les émotions et de toutes
les difficultés suscitées 1I’été dernier, lors de !'intervention
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you see any position for the father in this whole decision- d’une tierce partie. Dans vos discussions, avez-vous

making process?

Ms Smith: [ have thought about that, Mr. Wilbee, and I
like to think about it this way if I could share this with
the committee. Of course there were a lot of discussions
last summer about the father’s right to protect his fetus
from being aborted in the context of the Daigle case.

The way I think about it is this. Within a marriage.
very often there are decisions that one person makes that
affect the other. For example, within a marriage a
husband might decide to quit his job and take up joke
telling or to juggle on the streets. He might decide to pack
in his career, do something else entirely. Within a good
relationship, or any kind of relationship that deserves the
term, there would be a discussion about that decision. The
wife would be listened to; there would be consultation
and discussion. But at the end of the day the person who
would make the decision would be the husband, and the
wife would not be in a position to go to court and obtain
an injunction to prevent him from quitting his job and
doing whatever he was deciding to do.

In my view, when it comes to something like a decision
to have an abortion, in the end there has to be one person
who has the veto right. It is just the nature of the thing. [
think that because of the fact that it is the woman who
bears the child and by far has the most onerous
consequences of the pregnancy, that person has to be the
woman. As the Supreme Court of Canada affirmed in the
Daigle case, to allow anyone else to prevent her is to
exercise an inordinate amount of control over her life.

[ do not say that there is no appropriate role for men
or for fathers in these sorts of decisions. Of course there is
within relationships. But in the end you cannot have, in
my view, a situation where there is a veto.

Mr. Wilbee: There is a continuum from a very healthy
relationship such as you describe to the opposite extreme
that we saw last summer.

Ms Smith: Yes.

Mr. Wilbee: I guess one of the problems with trying to
write law is that you often have to write laws that deal
with the extreme. The healthy position is not dealt with.
As a parliamentarian and not a regular member of this
committee, this is the area we wrestle with.

The second area Mr. Kaplan mentioned was the
relative rights of the fetus. You mentioned that you are
not too interested in talking about that today. In some
cases the rights of the fetus and the rights of the mother
are mutually exclusive. As parliamentarians we have been
asked in some way to arbitrate. I myself can make
arbitrary decisions in my mind, but do you have any
input for this committee that you would be prepared to
present to us?

envisagé que le pere puisse intervenir dans les décisions a
prendre?

Mme Smith: J’ai pensé a cet aspect, monsieur Wilbee,
et si vous le voulez bien, je vous ferai part de mes
réflexions. On a bien sir beaucoup discuté I’été dernier
du droit du pére a protéger son foetus de I'avortement; je
parle bien sur de l'affaire Daigle.

Voici comment je vois la question. Dans un mariage,
trés souvent les décisions d’un des conjoints affectent
I'autre. Par exemple, le mari pourrait décider de quitter sa
place pour devenir amuseur ou jongleur public; ou alors
il pourrait décider d’abandonner sa carriere et de faire
quelque chose de tout a fait différent. Dans une bonne
relation, ou dans une relation digne de ce terme, cette
décision ferait l'objet d’une discussion. Le point de vue de
la femme serait entendu, et il y aurait consultations et
discussions. Mais finalement, ce serait au mari de prendre
une décision, et la femme ne serait pas en mesure de
s’adresser aux tribunaux pour obtenir une injonction lui
interdisant de quitter sa place et de donner suite a sa
décision.

Selon moi, lorsqu’il s’agit d’un avortement, qui est
quelque chose de trés important, finalement, il faut
qu’une personne ait le droit de veto. C’est ainsi. Etant
donné que c’est la femme qui porte I’enfant, et que c’est
elle qui, de loin, subit les plus lourdes conséquences de la
grossesse, il faut que ce droit lui revienne. Comme 1’a dit
la Cour supréme du Canada dans [l’affaire Daigle,
autorisez n'importe qui d’autre a I’empécher de se faire
avorter revient a exercer un contrdle abusif sur sa vie.

Je ne dis pas que les hommes ou les péres n'ont pas de
role a jouer dans ce genre de décision, puisque nous
parlons de relations. Mais au bout du compte, j’estime
qu’ils ne devraient pas imposer leur veto.

M. Wilbee: Il y a un monde entre la relation tres saine
que vous nous décrivez et celles que nous avons vues I'été
dernier.

Mme Smith: En effet.

M. Wilbee: Quand on rédige une loi, on doit penser a

des situations extrémes, plutdt qu’a des situations
normales, et c’est ce qui présente des difficultés. Je ne suis
pas membre habituel du Comité, mais je suis

parlementaire et je peux vous dire que nous nous
débattons constamment avec ce probléme.

M. Kaplan a mentionné par ailleurs les droits du
foetus. Vous avez dit que vous ne teniez pas
particuliérement a parler de cette question aujourd’hui.
Dans certains cas, les droits du foetus et ceux de la mére
sont mutuellement exclusifs, et, en tant que
parlementaires, il nous est demandé de trancher.
Personnellement, je peux prendre certaines décisions et
trancher, mais j'aimerais savoir si vous avez des conseils a
donner a ce sujet au Comité.
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Ms Smith: It is a very interesting subject, one we have
been giving a lot of thought to. I might suggest that it is an
area where perhaps we need to think along some new
lines rather than adopting a model of two persons within
one body, each with mutually conflicting rights. We
should focus more on the continuum of pregnancy, the
fact that pregnancy involves a relationship between fetus
and pregnant woman, to avoid imposing any other
extrinsic model upon it. To see it as two persons, to see it
as conflicting rights, is to in a sense beg the question.

If we look at pregnancy as a phenomenon that begins
without the woman even knowing about it and extends to
birth, where what has been part of her body gets up and
walks away, we can [ think begin to deal with it in a more
creative way than we have in the past.

One of the concerns LEAF has expressed in its briefs
in the Supreme Court of Canada is that modern
technology now permits us not only to imagine but to
image the fetus within the pregnant woman’s body. This
leads us to personify and to want to endow that entity
with rights. We want to protect that entity; we endow it
with rights. Our view is that there are many better ways of
protecting that entity and furthering social goals than
laying a rights model on top of the situation.

Ms Greene (Don Valley North): I too appreciated your
comments and your brief. I think there is obviously a
great deal of depth of thought to both of them.

With regard to the question of the provinces occupying
this field, both the Law Reform Commission and the
Minister of Justice have said this is a valid reason to
produce this law. I wonder if you could comment on that,
specifically if in fact the Quebec legislature decided at
some future date to define a fetus as a human being, a
person. Can the provinces in Canada legitimately occupy
this field if there is no federal law?

Ms Jackman: The federal government has legislative
confidence with respect to abortion both as it is exercised
it in the past under the criminal law power and also
under the federal legislative confidence with respect to
Health and Welfare.

The federal government could legislate in this area if it
chose to do so. The provinces have a certain legislative
authority with respect to abortion insofar as abortion is
essentially a health care issue.

The notion of occupying the field is actually not a
constitutionally valid conception. When you look at the
constitutional validity of legislation you basically have to
look in a case where there are two competing legislations
or only one legislation. You have to look at the legislation

| Translation |

Mme Smith: Nous avons beaucoup réfléchi a cette
question, qui est fort intéressante. Je crois qu’il faudrajt
peut-étre trouver de nouvelles fagons de la poser, plutot
que d’adopter le modéle de deux personnes dans un
méme corps, ayant chacune des droits mutuellement
conflictuels. [l faudrait s’attacher davantage au processus
de la grossesse, cette derniére impliquant une relation
entre le foetus et la femme enceinte, afin d'éviter
I'imposition de tout autre modele extérieur. Considérer
qu'il s’agit de deux personnes aux droits conflictuels
revient, d’une certaine fagon, a supposer vrai ce qui est en
question.

Si nous considérons la grossesse comme un phénomeéne
qui commence sans méme que la femme le sache, et qui
se prolonge jusqu’a la naissance, un phénomeéne ou ce qui
faisait partie du corps de la mére se sépare d’elle, nous
envisageons alors les choses avec plus d’imagination que
par le passé.

L’'une des préoccupations que le FEAJ a présenté dans
ses mémoires a la Cour Supréme du Canada, c’est que la
technologie moderne nous permet maintenant non
seulement d’imaginer, mais de voir aussi le foetus a
I'intérieur du corps de la femme enceinte. Cela nous
conduit a personnifier cette entité et a vouloir lui
conférer des droits. Nous voulons la protéger, nous lui
conférons des droits. Selon nous, il y a de meilleures
fagons de protéger cette entité et de promouvoir un idéal
social que d’imposer artificiellement un modele fondé sur
les droits.

Mme Greene (Don Valley-Nord): Moi aussi, j'ai
apprécié vos observations ainsi que votre mémoire. Dans
les deux, vous faites preuve de beaucoup de profondeur.

Quant a la question des provinces qui occuperaient ce
champ, elles n’empécheraient pas l'adoption de cette
législation, ainsi que l'ont dit la Commission de réforme
du droit aussi bien que le ministre de la Justice. Qu’en
pensez-vous, et que se passerait-il si I’Assemblée législative
du Québec décidait par la suite de définir un foetus
comme étant un étre humain, une personne. Les
provinces du Canada peuvent-elles légitimement occuper
ce champ, s’il n’existe pas de loi fédérale?

Mme Jackman: Le gouvernement fédéral est habilité a
légiférer sur la question de l'avortement, puisqu'il I'a fait,
par le passé, en vertu du droit criminel et des lois
concernant la santé nationale et le bien-étre social.

S’il le voulait, le gouvernement fédéral pourrait
adopter des lois sur cette question. Les provinces ont un
certain pouvoir législatif quant a I’avortement, dans la
mesure ou il est 1ié a la santé.

En fait, «occuper le champ» ne constitue pas une
notion constitutionnellement valable. Pour déterminer,
dans une situation, la validité constitutionnelle d'une
législation, il faut déterminer si elle fait intervenir deux
lois qui s’opposent, ou seulement une seule. Il faut
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on its own terms and decide whether it is constitutionally
valid.

So if for example the Province of Quebec decided to
legislate under its Charter of Rights, to attribute
personality to the fetus or right to life to the fetus, the
court would have to take that legislation and examine its
constitutional validity, leaving aside entirely the question
of the validity of any competing federal legislation or
whether the federal government has constitutional
jurisdiction at all in the area.

The province has the right to legislate with respect to
health care; it can do so. The federal government also has
the right to legislate with respect to health care at a
national level and with respect to criminal law. The fact
that the federal government does not legislate has
absolutely no impact on what the provinces can do.
Whether there is federal legislation or not, provincial
authority remains.

The notion of federal legislation occupying the field is
simply incorrect. The federal government can legislate
with respect to abortion in a criminal law context, or in a
national health act context, but that would have
absolutely no bearing on the subsequent validity of a piece
of provincial legislation. That legislation would have to be
assessed for its constitutional validity on its own terms.

=41310

The only situation where the existence of competing
legislation at the other level comes into play is where
there is actually a conflict, where you have decided that
both legislations are valid, that the provincial legislation is
valid health law, the federal legislation is valid health law,
and there is actually a conflict, where I cannot respect one
law without disrespecting the other. In that case the courts
have held and the Constitution holds that the federal
legislation will be paramount.

Ms Greene: If in fact this legislation were on the books
and the Province of Quebec decided to do this, would this
not be very concrete evidence to make such a law by a
province illegal?

Ms Jackman: Not at all. If the federal legislation were
in effect and the Province of Quebec decided to adopt
legislation, say Charter of Rights legislation to give a right
to life to the fetus, and somebody challenged the validity
of that, the court would simply have to look at the
Quebec legislation and say whether it is or is not good
legislation, and question whether the Province of Quebec
has the legislative authority to legislate this way under the
division of powers in sections 91 and 92 of the
Constitution. The presence of this criminal law legislation
would have no bearing on that issue.

Ms Greene: None?

Ms Jackman: None whatsoever.

34754

[Traduction]

examiner la législation comme telle, afin de décider si elle
est constitutionnellement valide.

Si, par exemple, le Québec décidait de légiférer en
vertu de sa Charte des droits, et attribuait une
personnalité ou un droit de vie au foetus, les tribunaux
devraient examiner la validité constitutionnelle de cette
législation, en ne faisant nullement intervenir la validité
d’une législation fédérale concurrente, ni méme se
demander si la Constitution confére une compétence sur
cette question au gouvernement fédéral.

La province a le droit de légiférer les soins médicaux.
C’est un fait. Le gouvernement a ce méme droit, mais a
un niveau national, et dans la perspective du droit pénal.
Le fait que le gouvernement fédéral ne légifere pas sur
telle ou telle question reste sans incidence aucune sur ce
que peuvent faire les provinces. Les pouvoirs de ces
derniéres demeurent, qu’il existe ou non une législation
fedérale.

Dire que le champ est occupé par une législation
fédérale est absolument inexact. Le gouvernement fédéral
peut légiférer sur I'avortement dans le contexte du Code
criminel, ou dans celui d’une loi sur la santé, de portée
nationale, mais cela n’aura absolument aucune
conséquence sur la validité subséquente d’une mesure
législative provinciale, dont la validité constitutionnelle
sera établie sans référence a une autre loi.

Le seul cas ou I'existence d’une législation concurrente,
a lautre niveau, intervient, c’est lorsqu’il y a vraiment
conflit; ainsi, méme si les deux législations, provinciale et
fédérale, sur la santé sont valides, il y a conflit lorsqu’il est
impossible de respecter I’'une sans violer 'autre. Dans ce
cas, les tribunaux, aussi bien que la Constitution, donnent
préséance a la législation fédérale.

Mme Greene: Si cette loi était adoptée, et que le
gouvernement du Québec prenait la décision que j'ai
mentionnée, cela ne prouverait-il pas de fagon tres
concréte qu’il faudrait rendre invalide une telle loi
provinciale?

Mme Jackman: Pas du tout. Si la loi fédérale était en
vigueur, que le gouvernement du Québec décidait de
légiférer sur le droit a la vie pour le foetus, conformément
a la Charte des droits, et que quelqu'un contestait la
validité de cette législation, les tribunaux devraient
simplement I’étudier pour déterminer si c’est une bonne
législation ou non, et si le gouvernement du Québec est
habilité a légiférer ainsi, compte tenu de la séparation des
pouvoirs que prévoient les articles 91 et 92 de la
Constitution. L’existence de cette loi, qui releve du droit
pénal, n’aurait aucun effet sur cette question.

Mme Greene: Aucun?

Mme Jackman: Absolument.
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Ms Smith: If [ could add something, Madam Chairman,
[ think a similar question comes up around the issue of
defining abortion as a medical procedure. It has been
suggested that because Bill C-43 would define abortion as
a medical procedure, that would then somehow affect the
provinces’ latitude to define it otherwise. Again, [ do not
believe there is any constitutional validity to that
argument.

In the case of Bill C-43 we are talking about a piece of
criminal legislation. It can define terms within its context
as it sees fit. That does not bind or restrict a province in
defining terms within its own context, so long as they are
both acting within their appropriate spheres of powers
under sections 91 and 92 of the Constitution Act 1867.

Now there may be informal political impact, and that
is not what we are addressing here. We are not addressing
whether or not there might be a political consequence
that affects provincial decision-making as a result of this
bill. We are talking about the Constitution and the legal
parameters.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Perhaps I can start from where you
more or less ended, assuming that there could be a
constitutional problem with a law introduced in a
provincial legislature. How would you see the
notwithstanding clause then being introduced, saying that
notwithstanding the Charter of Rights and Freedoms this
law must be operative for the next five years?

Ms Smith: If the question is what would happen if a
provincial law restricting access were passed, using section
33, the notwithstanding clause, I think there is a good
argument that the notwithstanding clause is not available
to restrict women’s equality rights, and that is because of
section 28 of the Charter. In its second-last version, the
wording of section 33 exempted section 28, along with
other parts of the Charter. The final version of section 33
does not refer to section 28.

The legislative history therefore clearly suggests that the
intention of those who framed the Charter was that the
notwithstanding clause would not apply when it is a
matter of equality between the sexes.

Mr. Pagtakhan: [ am very pleased with your statement
earlier that pregnancy is a continuum from the moment
at which the woman may not be even aware that she is
pregnant and that the technologies with us today to
provide an image of the development of this fetus. . . You
indicated that there are better ways to address the issue of
protecting the interest of the fetus. We know that the
better ways are not there yet in our society, and perhaps
this became a basis for the fundamental statement that the
Supreme Court has made, that indeed a state has a
legitimate interest in protecting the fetus.

[Translation|

Mme Smith: Permettez-moi d’ajouter autre chose,
madame la présidente; une question semblable se pose
lorsqu’iil s’agit de définir l'avortement en tant qu’acte
médical. Certains pensent qu’étant donné que le projet de
loi C-43 définit ainsi ’avortement, les provinces seraient
moins en mesure de le définir autrement. Mais 1a non
plus, je n’accorde pas de validité constitutionnelle a cet
argument.

Le projet de loi C-43, dont nous parlons, fait partie de
la législation pénale. C'est dans ce contexte que les
définitions sont données, et les provinces n'en sont pas
pour autant tenues de les utiliser comme telles, mais il
faut que les deux paliers de gouvernement légiférent dans
le cadre des pouvoirs que leur conférent les articles 91 et
92 de I’Acte constitutionnel de 1867.

Il peut y avoir certaines conséquences politiques, mais
elles sont négligeables, et ce n'est pas de cela que nous
parlons ici. Nous ne sommes pas en train de nous
demander si ce projet de loi pourrait avoir des
conséquences politiques pouvant affecter le pouvoir de
décision des provinces. Mais ce dont il est question ici,
c’est de la Constitution ainsi que des parametres
juridiques.

M. Pagtakhan: Je pourrais reprendre peut-étre plus ou
moins 1 ou vous avez terminé, en supposant qu’une loi
adoptée par un gouvernement provincial pourrait
soulever des problemes d’ordre constitutionnel. Ne
pourrait-on pas invoquer la clause dérogatoire en disant
que nonobstant la Charte des droits et libertés, la
législation doit entrer en vigueur au cours des cinq
prochaines années?

Mme Smith: Autrement dit, que se passerait-il si, aux
termes de [I’article 33—la clause dérogatoire—un
gouvernement provincial adoptait une loi limitant I’acces
a l’avortement? Je vous répondrais—et l'argument me
parait fort bon—qu’en vertu de l’article 28 de la Charte,
la clause dérogatoire ne peut pas étre invoquée pour
limiter les droits des femmes a I'égalité. Dans sa deuxiéme
et derniére version, le libellé de I'article 33 ne visait pas
I’article 28, ainsi que d’autres parties de la Charte. Dans sa
version finale, I’article 33 ne renvoie pas a l'article 28.

Par conséquent, I’évolution du texte montre bien que
ceux qui ont congu la Charte ne voulaient pas que la
clause dérogatoire s’applique dans des questions faisant
intervenir I’égalité des sexes.

M. Pagtakhan: Je suis trés heureux que vous nous ayez
dit tout a ’heure que la grossesse est un processus, qui
débute au moment ou la femme n’est peut-étre méme pas
consciente d’étre enceinte. .. Vous avez dit aussi que les
technologies actuelles nous donnent une image du
développement du foetus. . . Vous avez ajouté qu’il y a de
meilleures fagons de le protéger; notre société ne les a pas
encore trouvees, et c’est peut-étre pour cette raison que la
Cour Supréme a dit cette chose essentielle, qu'il incombe
a I’Etat de protéger le foetus.
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[f the Supreme Court said that, as a layman and not as
a lawyer. I would like to think that protection of the fetus
through the Criminal Code, in some shape or form,
provided it is in accordance with the principle of
fundamental justice, will be held constitutionally valid, or
else the Supreme Court would not even suggest that the
state has an interest to protect the fetus. Am I right in that
type of legal analysis?

Ms Smith: It is certainly true that some members of the
court gave that indication. It is certainly true that would
lead one to think that there could possibly be
constitutionally valid legislation that took a gestational
approach. I do not think many people would disagree
with that. But the question is very difficult to answer
without specific legislation to talk about.

Mr. Pagtakhan: I agree.

Ms Smith: In the abstract, all [ can say is yes, I agree
that the Supreme Court of Canada did say those things.
But constitutional adjudication is very much dependent
upon the particulars and the specifics of the legislation.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Perhaps I can interrupt you at that
point, just to indicate that five of the seven justices say. . .
about the state’s interest to protect the fetus. I can agree
with you that in the absence of a specific legislation it
would be difficult for the Supreme Court to make a
definitive decision in the abstract.

Following that situation, would you not then agree, or
would you recommend to our committee and to the
government, to proceed with the legislation, decide the
best we could—there could be honest differences of
opinion within the House—and if the government of day
prevails, let the law passed by the Parliament of Canada in
this unusual case be referred to the Supreme Court,
accepting the principle that only the Supreme Court of
Canada has the final authority to decide the
constitutionality of any law, irrespective of all our
wisdom? Would you not agree to that?

Ms Smith: No, we would not.
Mr. Pagtakhan: Why not?

Ms Smith: Our position is that this bill is
constitutionally highly problematic and is unsound in
principle.

Mr. Pagtakhan: I agree with you. I have a problem with
this bill as well, but for another reason.

Assume that we institute the requirements that would
fulfil the fundamental justice principle, which is, as you
said in your brief, that those breaches of rights are
security for the person and they may only in essence be
breached provided the breaching is done in accordance
with fundamental justice. [s that not right?

[Traduction)

Si la Cour supréme a dit cela, comme l'aurait fait
d’ailleurs tout citoyen ordinaire, il faudrait que la
protection du foetus, au moyen du Code criminel, et si
elle est conforme aux principes de justice fondamentale,
soit considérée comme constitutionnellement valide, car
autrement, la Cour supréme n’aurait jamais dit que |'Etat
a intérét a protéger le foetus. Mon analyse vous parait-elle
valable, du point de vue juridique?

Mme Smith: C’est en tout cas apparemment le
raisonnement de certains juges. Dans ces conditions, on
serait amener a penser qu’une législation fondée sur la
gestation serait peut-étre constitutionnellement valide. Je
ne pense pas qu’elle susciterait beaucoup d’opposition.
Mais il est difficile de répondre a cette question en
I’absence d’un texte législatif précis.

M. Pagtakhan: Je suis d’accord avec vous.

Mme Smith: Sans texte, tout ce que je peux vous dire,
c’est qu’il est vrai que la Cour supréme du Canada a dit
cela. Mais pour décider qu’'une législation est
constitutionnelle ou non, il faut vraiment en examiner les
différents aspects.

M. Pagtakhan: Permettez-moi de vous interrompre,
pour vous dire que cinq juges sur sept ont parlé de
I'intérét de I’Etat a protéger le foetus. Je pense comme
vous qu’en l’absence d’une législation précise, il serait
difficile 2 la Cour supréme de prendre une décision
catégorique.

Dans ces conditions, ne pensez-vous pas... ne
recommanderiez-vous pas au Comité ainsi qu'au
gouvernement de donner suite a ce projet de loi, afin que
nous décidions le mieux possible—il pourrait y avoir de
nettes divergences d’opinion a la Chambre—et si le
gouvernement actuel réussit a faire adopter cette loi—qui
représente, je le sais, quelque chose de tres inhabituel—
soumettons-la a la Cour supréme, car seule cette derniére
est abilitte en dernier ressort a décider de la
constitutionnalité des lois, méme si nous avons tous des
points de vue trés avisés a ce sujet. Accepteriez-vous cette
formule?

Mme Smith: Non.
M. Pagtakhan: Pourquoi pas?

Mme Smith: Notre position est claire: ce projet de loi
est trés problématique du point de vue constitutionnel; de
plus, il repose sur des principes qui ne nous paraissent pas
valables.

M. Pagtakhan: Je suis d’accord avec vous. J'ai aussi des
critiques au sujet de ce projet de loi, mais pour une autre
raison.

Supposons que nous établissions les critéeres qui
permettraient de respecter le principe de justice
fondamentale, afin que, comme vous ’avez dit dans votre
mémoire, les droits dont nous parlons ne puissent étre
violés que dans des cas extrémes de survie, et toujours
conformément a la justice fondamentale.



14 : 36 Bill C-43 13-3-1990
[Text| [Translation]
Ms Smith: No. Mme Smith: Non.

Mr. Pagtakhan: [ am sorry; you said no?
Ms Smith: I do not think this—

Mr. Pagtakhan: Just let me interrupt you, then. Are
you saying there is no instance where you may breach
those rights?

Ms Smith: [ think [ have failed to understand your
question.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Let me clarify, then, for you. In your
brief you indicate that it may be... Is it section 15 or
section 77

Ms Smith: Section 7 has to do with security of the
person and fundamental justice.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Page 7 of your brief:

Everyone has the right to life, liberty and security of
the person and the right not to be deprived thereof
except in accordance with the principles of
fundamental justice.

So there is an instance, or there could be instances,
where one follows the principle of fundamental justice
that you can breach this right of security of the person.
Do you not agree?

Ms Smith: There is no doubt that is what section 7 says.

Mr. Pagtakhan: So then you agree.

Ms Smith: Yes. [ agree that section 7 refers to the fact
that life, liberty and security of the person—

Mr. Pagtakhan: May be breached.

Ms Smith: Yes. They are protected, except when they
are breached in accordance with—

Mr. Pagtakhan:
breached—

Ms Smith: Yes.

Mr. Pagtakhan: —provided it is done in accordance
with the principle of fundamental justice.

Ms Smith: Yes.

Mr. Pagtakhan: So what Parliament is now trying to do
in trying to protect the fetus, as the government has told
us. . . Unfortunately, I do not believe the present law does
confer that. But that is for another reason. In other words,
if we can introduce legislation that will protect the fetus
and could meet the standards of fundamental justice, and
meeting those standards could only be decided definitively
by the Supreme Court of Canada, would you not agree,
following the supremacy of law principle, to follow that
course?

In other words, they may be

~ Ms Smith: The problem is that it is not only a section 7
issue but also even more fundamentally a section 15
equality issue.

M. Pagtakhan: Excusez-moi, vous avez dit «<non»?
Mme Smith: Je ne pense pas que. . .

M. Pagtakhan: Permettez-moi de vous interrompre
alors. Etes-vous en train de dire qu'il ne faudrait violer
ces droits en aucun cas?

Mme Smith: Je crains de ne pas avoir compris votre
question.

M. Pagtakhan: Je vais vous la préciser. Dans votre
mémoire, vous dites qu’il pourrait s’agir de... Est-ce
I’article 15 ou 7?

Mme Smith: L’article 7 concerne la sécurité de la
personne et la justice fondamentale.

M. Pagtakhan: Vous dites ceci a la page 7 de votre
mémoire:

Toute personne a droit a la vie, a la liberté et a la
sécurité, et elle a aussi le droit de ne pas en étre privée,
sauf en conformité des principes de justice
fondamentale.

Il existe donc un cas ou des cas ou l'on peut violer ce
droit de la personne a la sécurité, si l'on applique ce
principe de justice fondamentale. N’étes-vous pas de cet
avis?

Mme Smith: Clest
’article 7.

M. Pagtakhan: Vous étes donc d’accord.

Mme Smith: Oui. Je conviens comme vous que
I’article 7 renvoie au fait que la vie, la liberté et la sécurité
de la personne. . .

indéniablement ce que stipule

M. Pagtakhan: Que ce droit peut étre violé.

Mme Smith: Oui. Ces droits sont protégés, sauf s’ils
sont violés en conformité de. . .

M. Pagtakhan: Autrement dit, ils peuvent étre violés. . .

Mme Smith: Oui.

M. Pagtakhan: pourvu que ce soit fait
conformément aux principes de la justice fondamentale.

Mme Smith: En effet.

M. Pagtakhan: Le Parlement essaie donc actuellement
de protéger le foetus, comme le gouvernement nous a
dit. . . Malheureusement, je ne pense pas que la loi
actuelle fasse cela. Mais c’est pour une autre raison.
Autrement dit, si nous pouvons adopter une loi qui
protége le foetus et qui corresponde aux critéres de la
justice fondamentale—et a cet égard, seule la Cour
supréme pourrait trancher—est-ce que vous trouveriez a
redire si nous procédions ainsi, en respectant la
suprématie du principe de droit?

Mme Smith: La difficulté, c’est que nos réserves ne
conservent pas seulement 'article 7, mais aussi, et surtout,
I'article 15, qui traite de I'égalité.
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Mr. Pagtakhan: Yes. But again the Supreme Court will
take that into account.

Ms Smith: [f what you are saying is that the final
decision about constitutionality must be made by the
Supreme Court. I agree with you. But I would not
venture to say that it is a good idea to pass this law just so
the Supreme Court of Canada can have a look at it.
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Mr. Pagtakhan: No, I am not saying just to pass this
law—

Ms Smith: No; [ can assure you of that.

Mr. Pagtakhan: —but to make an amended law, and
then, if there continue to be honest differences of
opinion, refer it to the Supreme Court of Canada.

The Chairman: Thank you very much for being here
today. Is it agreed that the brief will be printed with
today’s minutes?

Some hon. members: Agreed.

The Chairman: We will adjourn this meeting until 3.30
p.m. today.

[ Traduction|]

M. Pagtakhan: Oui, mais la Cour supréme en tiendrait
compte.

Mme Smith: Si vous dites que la décision finale quant a
la constitutionnalité de la législation revient a la Cour
supréme, je suis d’accord avec vous. Mais je n’irai pas
jusqu’a dire que c’est une bonne idée d’adopter cette loi,
parce qu’ainsi, la Cour supréme pourra l’examiner.

M. Pagtakhan: Non, je ne suis pas en train de proposer
d’adopter cette loi. . .

Mme Smith: Notre refus est catégorique.

M. Pagtakhan: mais de la modifier pour la
renvoyer ensuite a la Cour supréme du Canada, si elle
continue de susciter de nettes divergences d’opinion.

La présidente: Je remercie beaucoup nos témoins
d’avoir bien voulu comparaitre aujourd’hui. I1 est bien
entendu que leurs mémoires seront annexés au proces-
verbal d’aujourd’hui, n’est-ce pas?

Des voix: Oui.

La présidente: La séance est levée jusqu’a 15h30 cet
aprés-midi.

AFTERNOON SITTING
21537

The Chairman: Order. resume

consideration of Bill C-43.

I would like to welcome representatives from the
Catholic Women’s League of Canada. [ invite Mrs.
Doreen Ferraton to introduce the other members of her
delegation. Then we would like a short opening statement.
Mrs. Ferraton.

Mrs. Doreen Ferraton (National Convener of
Legislation, Catholic Women’s League of Canada): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson, on behalf of the Catholic
Women'’s League of Canada, for giving us the opportunity
to speak to you today.

I would like to introduce to you Sheila Howard,
national secretary-treasurer, who will be sharing this
presentation with me; and Lucille Cullen, national
president-elect, who is representing our national
president, Evelyn Wyrzykowski, who regrets not being
able to attend today.

Mrs. Lucille Cullen (President-Elect, Catholic
Women’s League of Canada): Our organization of 124,000
individual paid-up members is celebrating our 70th
anniversary in 1990, serving under our motto “For God
and Canada from sea to sea” in over 1,700 parishes, from
tiny hamlets to metropolitan centres. Indeed, in the
course of history the fathers of the church have taught the
same doctrine, to speak against any attack of the most
defenceless of our brothers and sisters, the future children
of a loving God, all with the right to life.

We will now

SEANCE DE L’APRES-MIDI

La présidente: Je déclare la séance ouverte. Nous
reprenons notre examen du projet de loi C-43.

J’aimerais souhaiter la bienvenue aux représentantes de
la Catholic Women’s League of Canada. Madame Doreen
Ferraton, voulez-vous nous présenter les autres membres
de votre délégation. Exposez-nous ensuite briévement
votre position. Madame Ferraton.

Mme Doreen Ferraton (Présidente nationale de la
législation, Catholic Women’s League of Canada):
Madame la présidente, au nom de la Catholic Women’s
League of Canada, je tiens a vous remercier de l'occasion
qui nous est offerte de comparaitre ici aujourd’hui.

J’aimerais vous présenter M™¢ Sheila Howard, notre
secrétaire trésoriére nationale, avec qui je vais partager la
scéne cet apres-midi; ainsi que M™¢ Lucille Cullen, notre
présidente nationale désignée; elle représente ici notre
présidente nationale, M™¢ Evelyn Wyrzykowski, qui est
dans I'impossibilité d’étre avec nous aujourd’hui.

Mme Lucille Cullen (Présidente désignée, Catholic
women’s League of Canada): Notre organisme, qui
regroupe 124,000 membres célébre en 1990, son soixante-
dizieme anniversaire de service sous la devise « For God
and Canada from sea to sea» dans plus de 1,700 paroisses
du plus petit hameau aux grands centres métropolitains.
En fait, depuis toujours, les péres de I'église enseignent la
méme doctrine, se sont €levés contre toute violence envers
les plus démunis de nos fréres et soeurs, les futurs enfants
d’un Dieu d’amour qui ont tous droit a la vie.
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We are here today to reaffirm the dignity of all persons,
and we appreciate the opportunity to bring our concerns
to you as we continue to strive to build a caring society in
our beloved Canada, on which our sisters for these past 70
years spoke and acted through annual resolutions to the
federal government. Indeed, the need for a national
organization of Catholic women was first expressed by a
member of the staff of the Minister of Supply and Services
many years ago.

We brought with us copies of our annual report and
our national magazine, which are available to committee
members for perusal. We trust you will share in our
heritage and be proud, as we are. of our work throughout
all these many years. You will find it of interest.

= 1540

Mrs. Ferraton: The heritage of our country has a well-
respected parliamentary tradition, and it is important for
our legal system to reflect basic and consistent ethical
principles. We depend on our elected representatives to
govern our country and to provide leadership based on
the principles of truth, justice and compassion. Our
elected representatives have a responsbility to enact
effective legislation for the common good of all of us,
keeping in mind the rights and responsibilities of
individuals. The reverence for life at all its stages is
fundamental to the promotion of a just and caring society.

We are asking for legislation to be enacted that would
effectively recognize, value, respect and protect human
life from conception, and we will continue to work for
this. A resolution to this effect was passed at our annual
convention in 1988, protection of life before birth, and
reaffirmed again in 1989, league action to protect the pre-
born child. In September 1989 we launched a petition
requesting the Government of Canada to enact legislation
that would effectively recognize, value, respect and protect
the pre-born child. Our petitions, bearing 195,000
signatures, were tabled in the House of Commons on
November 21, 1989. A further 7.000 signatures were
tabled a few weeks later, bringing the total to 202,000.

There are some aspects about the proposed bill that we
do endorse. For example, we are pleased that the
gestational approach has been eliminated. There is some
recognition that a fetus is human. There is the possibility
that the child can be protected throughout pregnancy. We
also like the recognition that the new law would make
abortion a crime, a crime against the pre-born.

Nonetheless, we do not like the fact that the bill fails to
guarantee the basic right of a child to live. We also feel
that the words “opinion™, “likely” and “threatened” are

[Translation]

Nous sommes ici aujourd’hui pour réaffirmer la
dignité de tous et nous vous sommes reconnaissantes de
I'occasion qui nous est offerte de vous présenter nos
préoccupations, nous qui cherchons a édifier une société
humanitaire dans notre Canada bien-aimé a la suite de
nos soeurs qui au cours des 70 derniéres années ont fait
connaitre leur opinion au gouvernement fédéral dans des
résolutions annuelles. En fait, il y a de nombreuses
années, c’est un membre du cabinet du ministre des
Approvisionnements et Services qui a le premier
mentionné qu'il fallait une organisation nationale de
femmes catholiques.

Nous avons apporté a lintention des membres du
Comité, des exemplaires de notre rapport annuel et de
notre revue nationale. Nous espérons que vous partagez
nos croyances et que comme nous, vous €tes fiers du
travail que nous avons fait au cours de toutes ces années.
Nos réalisations sont intéressantes.

Mme Ferraton: Le Canada possede une longue
tradition parlementaire bien établie, mais il faut que notre
régime juridique réflete des principes moraux
fondamentaux et cohérents. Nous comptons sur nos
représentants élus pour nous gouverner et pour diriger le
pays en se fondant sur des principes de vérité, de justice et
de compassion. Nos élus ont la responsabilité d’adopter
des lois efficaces pour le plus grand bien de tous sans
perdre de vue les droits et responsabilités individuels. Le
respect de la vie A toutes ses étapes constitue un élément
fondamental dans la promotion d’une société juste et
humanitaire.

Nous demandons que soit adoptée une loi qui
reconnaisse, prise, respecte et protége la vie humaine des
sa conception et nous allons continuer a oeuvrer en ce
sens. A notre congrés de 1988, nous avons adopté une
résolution en ce sens, qui préconise la protection de la vie
avant la naissance; et en 1989 nous avons réaffirmé dans
notre résolution la protection de l'enfant a naitre. En
septembre 1989, nous avons fait circuler une pétition par
laquelle nous demandions au gouvernement du Canada
d’adopter une loi qui reconnaisse, prise, respecte et
protége effectivement la vie de l'enfant a naitre. Notre
pétition, portant 195,000 signatures, a été déposée a la
Chambre des communes le 21 novembre 1989. Une
semaine plus tard, nous déposions 7,000 signatures de
plus pour un total de 202,000 signatures.

Nous appuyons certains aspects de ce projet de loi. Par
exemple, nous sommes heureuses qu’on y ait abandonné
’approche  gestationnelle. On semble également
reconnaitre que le foetus est un étre humain, et offrir la
possibilité que I'enfant puisse étre protégé pendant la
grossesse. Nous sommes également heureuses de ce que le
projet de loi définisse I'avortement comme un crime, un
crime contre I’enfant a naitre.

Néanmoins, nous déplorons que ce projet de loi ne
garantisse pas le droit fondamental a la vie de l’enfant.
Nous estimons que des expressions telles que «opinion»,
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open to various interpretations. The interpretation of «vraisemblablement» et «menacé» ouvrent la voie a

“health” could also lead to abuse. All that would be
necessary would be for the woman to find a doctor who
would have a broad interpretation of health and be of the
opinion that a woman’s health would likely be
threatened. Depending on the interpretation then, there is
not much guarantee of the protection of the pre-born
child.

We do not like that only one doctor’s opinion is
required and for much the same reasons we have
previously mentioned, that a woman could “shop
around” until she found a doctor willing to provide an
abortion. We believe the application of Bill C-43 as
proposed would not give sufficient protection to the pre-
born child.

As a woman’s organization, we are vitally concerned
about women and women’s rights. Abortion has been
promoted as the easy way out of a difficult problem.
Support groups for women who have had abortions have
sprung up throughout the country to help women deal
with the health and psychological problems that have
developed following an abortion, to help the women with
the guilt they are now feeling, and for others to deal with
the fact that they are now sterile or finding it difficult to
become pregnant and cannot have or easily bear children,
children whom they now desire more than anything in
the world.

More and more we are hearing from these women.
Many are now actively supporting pro-life groups,
speaking out against abortion as a solution to a so-called
problem and speaking about the violence and the damage
that has been done to their bodies and to their mental
health.

Physical damage to the woman may become apparent
only years after an abortion. Emotional damage is largely
unrecognized and can take years to surface. Women
deserve the right to all this information and to the
alternatives to abortion before an abortion is performed to
be able to give informed consent. They deserve this legal
right.

Mrs. Sheila Howard (National Secretary-Treasurer,
Catholic Women’s League of Canada): We are fully aware
that many women face unplanned or unwanted
pregnancies. Members of the Catholic Women’s League of
Canada have been involved for many years in Birthright
and similar programs to help women distressed by critical
pregnancies. Other services should be made available or
expanded to help these women—for example, the setting
up of homes for abused women and their children, homes
for single and pregnant women, and specifically we are
referring to the one in Ontario called Options for Life.
An expansion of support services for these women
includes adoption and foster care. While we realize that
these latter services are provincial matters, federal
assistance would help the other levels of government to
provide counselling and support services for the expectant
mother who is in need.

diverses interprétations. La définition de «santé» pourrait
également donner lieu a des abus. Il suffit qu'une femme
trouve un médecin qui interpréte de fagon tres générale le
terme santé pour qu'il puisse en conclure que la santé de
la femme est probablement menacée. La protection de
’enfant a naitre dépend donc de l'interprétation donnée a
cette disposition.

Nous ne sommes pas heureuses non plus du fait que
'opinion d’un seul médecin suffit puisque comme on I'a
déja dit, une femme pourrait «cogner a toutes les portes»
tant qu’elle ne trouve pas un médecin disposé a lui
procurer un avortement. Nous pensons que le projet de
loi C-43, dans son libellé actuel, ne protége pas
suffisamment la vie de I’enfant a naitre.

A titre de groupement féminin, les femmes et les droits
des femmes nous intéressent au plus haut titre. Certains
ont proné l’avortement comme solution a une situation
difficile. On voit maintenant partout au pays se constituer
des groupes d’appui aux femmes qui ont eu des
avortements afin de les aider a surmonter les problemes
physiques et psychologiques provoqués par un
avortement, afin d’aider les femmes a surmonter leurs
sentiments de culpabilité , a surmonter le fait qu’elles sont
maintenant stériles ou éprouvent de la difficulté a devenir
enceintes ou ont du mal a porter un enfant a terme, un
enfant qu’elle désire maintenant plus que tout au monde.

De plus en plus, ces femmes communiquent avec nous.
Elles sont nombreuses & appuyer les groupes pro-vie,
dénongant l'avortement comme solution a ce prétendu
probléme, dénongant la violence et le mal fait a leur
corps et a leur santé mentale.

Les suites physiques d’un avortement n’apparaissent
parfois que bien des années plus tard. Des suites émotives
passent souvent inapergues et peuvent prendre des années
a apparaitre. Les femmes méritent d’avoir acces a ces
renseignements et de savoir quelles sont leurs options
avant de donner leur consentement a un avortement.
Elles méritent ce droit légal.

Mme Sheila Howard (Secrétaire-trésoriére nationale,
Catholic Women’s League of Canada): Nous savons
pertinemment que de nombreuses femmes doivent faire
face a des grossesses imprévues et indésirées. Les membres
de la

de nombreuses années a Birthright et a d’autres
programmes semblables visant a venir en aide aux femmes
enceintes en difficulté. Il faudrait élargir les services
actuellement disponibles—par exemple, en créant des
foyers pour les femmes abusées et leurs enfants, des foyers
pour les femmes célibataires et enceintes, et nous
songeons particuliérement 3 un programme ontarien qui
s’appelle «Options for Life». Il faut également élargir les
services de soutien de 'adoption et les foyers nourriciers.
Nous savons pertinemment que ces services relévent de la
compétence provinciale, pourtant I'appui du
gouvernement fédéral aiderait les autres paliers
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Neither do we dispute that a woman has a right to do
what she wishes with her own body, except when that
right infringes on the rights of another human. Then, her
autonomy ceases.

The right to live is a basic right. I quote from the
original declaration of The Hague, in its opening
paragraph:

The right to live is the right from which all other rights
stem. Guaranteeing this right is the paramount duty of
those in charge of all states throughout the world.

The child developing in the womb must be protected. The
right of the pre-born child to life deserves the same
protection that we all want and expect for ourselves. The
child in the womb indeed is very vulnerable.

On behalf of all Canadian women who respect life, we
ask that this committee take into consideration the
following.

First, that there be a definitive medical definition of
health—definitive as defined in Webster’'s dictionary:
“fixed and unalterable in opinion or judgment”.

Second, that at least two medical practitioners be
required to give their assessment as to whether or not the
medical definition of health has been adhered to.

Third, that women who are seeking to procure an
abortion are also given comprehensive information about
the alternatives to abortion, as well as the possible
psychological and physical complications that may occur
following an abortion—the informed consent of which we
were speaking earlier.

Fourth, that a conscience clause be added as an
amendment to the bill. We do support Nurses for Life
Canada in their appeal to have this amendment added.

We do respect their right to opt out of abortion
procedures.
Fifth, that amendments be considered that would

provide protection of the pre-born child to the maximum
degree possible.

Mrs. Ferraton: That concludes our statement.

The Chairman: Thank you very much. We shall start
with a first round of 10 minutes.

Mrs. Maheu: I would like to welcome your group to
our session and thank you for your brief. I have maybe
four or five questions. I do not know whether you would
like to answer them as I go.

On page 3 in the French version,

vous dites:

[Translation]

gouvernementaux a offrir des services dans le domaine du
counselling et de l'aide aux femmes enceintes dans le
besoin.

Nous ne contestons pas non plus le fait qu'une femme
a le droit de décider ce qu’elle fera de son propre corps,
mais lorsque ce droit empiete sur ceux d’un autre
humain, ['autonomie de la femme prend fin.

Le droit a la vie est un droit fondamental. Permettez-
moi de citer un extrait du premier paragraphe de la
déclaration originelle de La Haye:

C’est du droit a la vie que découlent tous les autres
droits. Le premier devoir de tous les responsables de
tous les Etats a travers le monde, c’est de garantir ce
droit.

L’enfant en croissance dans 'utérus doit étre protége. Le
droit & la vie de l'’enfant a naitre mérite la méme
protection que nous voulons tous nous-mémes. Cet enfant
a naitre est certainement trés vulnérable.

Au nom de toutes les femmes canadiennes qui
respectent la vie, nous demandons ce qui suit a votre
Comité.

Tout d’abord, que I'on donne une définition médicale
nette de la santé. Une définition nette et claire.

Deuxiémement, que l'on exige qu’au moins deux
médecins certifient que la définition médicale de la santé
est respectée.

Troisitmement, que les femmes qui cherchent a
obtenir un avortement regoivent également des
renseignements complets sur les autres options ainsi que
sur les éventuelles complications psychologiques et
physiques que peut entrainer un avortement—le
consentement éclairé dont nous parlions précédemment.

Quatriemement, que l'on insére dans ce projet de loi,
en amendement, une disposition sauvegardant la liberté
de conscience, d’accord avec les Infirmiéres pour la vie,
nous respectons le droit de ne pas participer a un
avortement.

Cinquiémement, que I'on songe a apporter des
amendements a ce projet de loi qui protége au maximum
les droits de I’enfant a naitre.

Mme Ferraton: Voila qui termine notre expose.

La présidente: Merci beaucoup. Nous allons

commencer par dix minutes au premier tour.

Mme Maheu: J’aimerais vous souhaiter la bienvenue et
vous remercier de votre mémoire. J'ai peut-étre quatre ou
cinq questions. Je ne sais pas si vous voulez y répondre,
au fur et a mesure.

A la page 3 de la version anglaise,
you state:
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Si l'avortement est légalisé, facile a obtenir et
acceptable aux yeux de la société, les femmes risquent
davantage d’étre exploitées sexuellement.

Nous dites-vous que vous ne voulez pas de cette loi ou
gue vous ne voulez d’aucune loi? Pensez-vous que
’avortement est légalisé par cette 10i?

Mrs. Ferraton: What we are asking for is that the law
will recognize the fetus, protect the fetus. We do not think
that the law as it is written will do that. We are asking for
stricter amendments that will tighten the law.

Mme Maheu: Si les amendements que vous proposez
ne sont pas acceptables, voulez-vous qu’on adopte le
projet de loi tel que présenté?

1550

Mrs. Howard: I believe these amendments are necessary
in order to accept any law.

Mrs. Maheu: If [ understand you, you are saying that if
you cannot have the amendments you are asking for you
would prefer to live without a law?

Mrs. Ferraton: I think we would find it very difficult to
live without a law.

Mrs. Maheu: Then what is your answer? If Bill C-43 is
not to be amended in the sense that you are requesting,
we do not have any other. We go back to the status quo.

Mrs. Ferraton: [ guess we start over.

Mrs. Maheu: We start over. In other words, you do not
want us to vote for the law unless it is amended as you
have requested?

Mrs. Ferraton: Yes.

Mrs. Maheu: [ wanted to read into the record that you
said the support systems should be in place. Again I
repeat, if they are not in place, are you prepared to still
vote for this law? You have sort of insinuated that homes
for abused women, homes for pregnant women and other
support services are provincial matters. Did I read you
correctly?

Mrs. Ferraton: A great many of them are provincial
matters. Certainly the adoption and social services are
provincial matters.

Mrs. Maheu: What about homes for battered women
and homes for pregnant girls?

Mrs. Ferraton: Those have come through the provinces
as well, but I understand there is federal money available
for those programs. We are asking for help from the
federal government to provide these services.

Mrs. Maheu: [ agree with you.
Mrs. Howard: Many of our women are working as
volunteers and as counsellors in the very homes that we

are referring to. We have firsthand knowledge of the
difficulties that are experienced by women at the local

| Traduction)|

With abortions easily and legally available, as well as
socially acceptable, it is easier for women to be sexually
exploited.

Are you telling us that you reject this bill or this law or
that you reject all such laws? Do you feel that we are
legalizing abortions through this bill?

Mme Ferraton: Nous demandons que l’on reconaisse le
foetus, que l'on protége le foetus dans la loi. Nous ne
pensons pas que ce projet de loi y réussisse. Nous voulons
quon y apporte des amendements qui resserrent ces
dispositions.

Mrs. Maheu: If these amendments you are asking for
were rejected, would you nevertheless wish us to pass this
bill, such as it is?

Mme Howard: Il faut apporter ces amendements, je
pense, pour que nous acceptions toute loi.

Mme Maheu: Si je comprends bien, vous dites que si
les amendements que vous préconisez ne sont pas adoptes,
vous préférez vous passer d’une 10i?

Mme Ferraton: Je pense qu’il nous serait tres difficile
de nous passer d’une loi.

Mme Maheu: Alors que répondez-vous? Si le projet de
loi C-43 n’est pas modifié€ comme vous le demandez, nous
n’avons pas d’autre loi. Nous revenons au statu quo.

Mme Ferraton: Il faudra alors recommencer.

Mme Maheu: Nous recommengons. En d’autres
termes, vous ne voulez pas que nous adoptions cette loi a
moins qu’on y ait apporté les amendements que vous
préconisez?

Mme Ferraton: En effet.

Mme Maheu: Je voulais consigner au proces verbal que
vous recommandez la mise en place de mécanismes de
soutien. Ici encore, je vous demande, si ces mécanismes
ne sont pas en place, étes-vous toujours disposée a adopter
cette 10i? Vous avez laissé entendre que les foyers pour
femmes abusées, les foyers pour femmes enceintes et les
autres services de soutien relévent de la compétence
provinciale. Ai-je bien compris?

dans bien des cas. Les
services sociaux relévent

Mme Ferraton: Clest vrai
services d’adoption et les
certainement des provinces.

Mme Maheu: Et les foyers pour femmes battues et
pour adolescentes enceintes?

Mme Ferraton: Ces services relévent également des
provinces, mais d’aprés ce qu'on m’a dit, le fédéral
finance en partie ces programmes. Nous demandons au
gouvernement fédéral d’aider a offrir ces services.

Mme Maheu: Je suis de votre avis.

Mme Howard: De nombreuses femmes travaillent
comme bénévoles et conseilléres dans ces foyers dont nous
parlons. Nous connaissons de premiére main les
difficultés que vivent les femmes au niveau local. Nous
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level. Many of our women are volunteers and many of
our past resolutions have requested assistance for battered
women’s homes, for support for single women, for
pregnant women, and certainly the equality of women in
every direction.

Mrs. Maheu: I would strongly question support for
pregnant women because of what I have seen in the past
in Canada. Support pregnant girls, support pregnant
women, find a home for them until the baby is born and
then dump them. That has happened through many
groups. [ call them “do-gooders”, who think they are
doing good for society. As long as the girl has the baby,
then she can take off and raise it. I do not feel quite the
same way about things, unfortunately. On page 7 of your
brief, in French, you talk about... I have to read it in
French, I am sorry.

La définition donnée de la «santé» englobe a la fois la
santé physique, mentale et psychologique et d’apres les
explications complémentaires fournies par le ministre
de la Justice, certaines raisons telles que le viol,
I'inceste, I'eugénique et le bien-étre socio-€conomique
pourraient étre incluses dans cette définition. . .

Est-ce que cela veut dire que vous étes contre
I'avortement d’une jeune fille violée, méme si cette enfant
pouvait en rester traumatisée pendant le reste de sa vie?

Mrs. Ferraton: [ have been under the impression that
abortion is being performed more for socio-economic
reasons than for rape. I think rape is a very small
portion—

Mrs. Maheu: I think statistics would have it that
everyone does not agree with you. I do not care if it is one
in a million or one in a thousand or one in a hundred.
The percentage is not important. Do you feel that a young
girl should be put through the trauma of having to have a
baby if she is raped?

Mrs. Howard: I counselled a young woman who was
involved in such a situation. She was talked into having
an abortion. She is now married and cannot have a child.
She is living with the guilt of having had an abortion in
her earlier life. She stated that she would have rather
lived with having carried through the child and certainly
not living for the rest of her life not being able to have the
children she so wants with her husband.

21595

Mrs. Maheu: Are you insinuating all cases of abortion
lead to sterilization?

Mrs. Howard: [ am not insinuating that at all. [ merely
gave you an example you asked for.

Mrs. Maheu: Okay. How many young girls have you
worked with after abortions—who have had abortions—
following abortions?

Mrs. Howard: Quite a few.

[Translation]

sommes nombreuses a faire du bénévolat et nous avons
demandé dans plusieurs de nos résolutions passées une
aide pour les foyers pour femmes battues, pour les
femmes célibataires, pour les femmes enceintes, et nous
avons certainement réclamé 1’égalité des femmes sur tous
les plans.

Mme Maheu: Je conteste vraiment l’appui que vous
dites offrir aux femmes enceintes, parce que j'ai vu ce que
nous avons fait par le passé au Canada. Nous appuyons les
filles enceintes, les femmes enceintes, nous leur trouvons
un foyer jusqu’a ce que l’enfant vienne au monde, et
ensuite nous les laissons tomber. De nombreux groupes
ont fait la méme chose. Je les qualifient de «dames
patronesses» qui pensent rendre service a la société. On
veut tout simplement que I’adolescente ait son enfant, et
ensuite, elle peut disparaitre et 1’élever seule. Ce n’est pas
du tout ainsi que je vois les choses, malheureusement. A
la page 7 de votre mémoire, en frangais, vous parlez de. . .
Je regrette, je dois le lire en frangais.

The interpretation of “health” as physical, mental or
psychological is certainly all-encompassing and, in a
further explanation from the Justice Department, we
know that reasons such as rape, incest, eugenics and
socio-economic welfare could be included under this
term—

Bev, do you mean to say that you are against abortion
in the case of a young girl who is raped and who could be
traumatized by this for the rest of her life?

Mme Ferraton: J’ai I'impression que I'on pratique des
avortements  beaucoup plus pour des raisons
socio-économiques que pour des raisons telles que le viol.
Je pense que le viol constitue une trés petite partie. . .

Mme Maheu: D’apreés les statistiques, tous ne sont pas
de votre avis. Qu’il s’agisse d’'un cas sur un million, sur
mille ou sur cent, ce n’est pas le pourcentage qui est
important. Pensez-vous qu’une jeune fille doive vivre le
traumatisme d’un accouchement aprés avoir été violée?

Mme Howard: J’ai conseillé une jeune femme qui était
justement dans cette situation. Elle s’était laissée
convaincre de se faire avorter. Elle est maintenant mariée
et incapable d’avoir un enfant. Elle se sent coupable
d’avoir eu un avortement. Elle m’a dit qu’elle préférerait
avoir eu cet enfant et ne pas passer le reste de sa vie
incapable d’avoir les enfants qu’elle et son mari
souhaitent si ardemment.

Mme Maheu: Insinuez-vous que tous les avortements
entrainent la stérilité?

Mme Howard: Pas du tout. Je vous ai tout simplement
donné un exemple, comme vous le demandiez.

Mme Maheu: Bien. Combien de jeunes filles avez-vous
suivies apres leur avortement?

Mme Howard: Beaucoup.
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Mrs. Maheu: Have they all reacted in the same way?
Have they all become sterile or—

Mrs. Howard: No. Sterility is not always necessary after
an abortion, but in my work and in my counselling we
are unfortunately seeing that almost 20% to 25% of young
couples who wish to achieve a pregnancy no longer can,
for one reason or another. That is distressing work.

Mrs. Maheu: [s it usually because of abortion?
Mrs. Howard: It is related to various things.
Mrs. Maheu: But not all to abortion.

Mrs. Howard: Not all to abortion.

Mrs. Maheu: How do you feel that we could amend the
existing law? My questions are written in French. I had
better read it to you, because I am trying to translate.

Comment devrait-on modifier les termes de la loi,
selon vous?

You have already responded to that. Do you think we
should have a criminal law whereby both women and the
doctors could be prosecuted if a woman chose to, for
example, cause her own abortion—cause an abortion to
happen herself, or a doctor who risks accepting a
woman’s excuses of being dangerous to her mental health
and being. . . and changed her mind later on in life, and
he was eligible to a term in prison? How do you feel
about it when you think of doctors and women going to
prison?

Mrs. Ferraton: [ agree it is a very difficult question to
answer. I know what the woman in that situation is
suffering, but I still feel abortions are being done without
giving the woman the full story of what can happen to her
afterward. I know many organizations have sprung up
across the country just to deal with the trauma the woman
is going through after the abortion has been procured.

Mrs. Maheu: Do you feel women take abortion so
lightly? I would tend to disagree that we do not know
what we are doing if we are going to make a serious
decision of having an abortion.

Mrs. Ferraton: I do not think they take it lightly. [ do
not think they are given—

Mrs. Maheu: Do you think they do not know what
they are doing?

Mrs. Ferraton: [ do not think they are given the full
story. [ do not think they realize sometimes how the
abortion is going to be done and what happens to them.

They do not know what is going to happen to them
afterward.

|Traduction|

Mme Maheu: Ont-elles toutes réagi de la méme fagon?
Sont-elles toutes devenues stériles ou. . .

Mme Howard: Non. [l ne s’ensuit pas nécessairement la
stérilité aprés un avortement, mais en tant que conseillere
socio-psychologique, j'ai malheureusement constaté que
prés de 20 a 25 p. 100 qui souhaitent avoir des enfants n’y
parviennent pas, pour une raison ou une autre, ce qui est
désolant.

Mme Maheu: Est-ce habituellement
femme s’est déja fait avorter?

parce que la

Mme Howard: Pas nécessairement, cela dépend de
divers facteurs.

Mme Maheu: Mais pas toujours d’un avortement
antérieur.

Mme Howard: Non.

Mme Maheu: D’aprés vous, comment pourrions-nous
modifier la Loi actuelle? Comme mes questions sont
rédigées en frangais, je vous les lirai dans cette langue, ce
qui m’évitera d’avoir a les traduire.

How do you think we could amend the existing law?

Mais vous y avez déja répondu. Croyez-vous qu’on devrait
pouvoir poursuivre en vertu du Code criminel la
femme—si celle-ci décide de s’avorter elle-méme—ou son
médecin—si  celui-ci décide d’accepter les raisons
invoquées par sa patiente selon qui la grossesse risque de
mettre en danger sa santé mentale. . .7 Supposons que la
femme change d’avis plus tard: Son médecin devrait-il
faire de la prison? Que dites-vous d’envoyer en prison les
médecins et leurs patientes?

Mme Ferraton: Il est trés difficile de répondre a cette
question. Je sais que les femmes qui se trouvent dans cette
situation souffrent, mais je persiste a croire que l'on
conseille 2 des femmes de se faire avorter, sans qu’on leur
ait brossé un tableau complet de la situation ni qu'on leur
ait véritablement expliqué les conséquences de leur geste.
C’est sans doute pour cela qu’autant d’organismes ont
surgi a la grandeur du pays pour aider les femmes a
surmonter le traumatisme que leur cause |’avortement.

Mme Maheu: Avez-vous vraiment l'impression que les
femmes prennent [’avortement autant a la légere? Si vous
prétendez que la femme ne sait pas ce qu'elle fait
lorsqu’elle prend la grave décision de se faire avorter,
alors je ne suis pas de cet avis.

Mme Ferraton: Ce n’est pas qu’elles prennent la
décision a la légere, mais on ne leur donne pas. . .

Mme Maheu: Elles ne savent pas ce qu’elles font?

Mme Ferraton: On ne leur brosse pas un tableau
complet. Elles ne savent pas toujours comment se fera
I'avortement ni ce qui peut leur arriver apres coup
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Mme Lise Bourgault (députée d’Argenteuil— Mrs. Lise Bourgault (Argenteuil—Papineau): Welcome

Papineau): Bienvenue a la Catholic Women’s League of
Canada.

How many members would you claim to be part of
your organization? How many persons?

Mrs. Ferraton: There are 124,000 members across
Canada.

Mrs. Bourgault: You know as well as we do that the
Supreme Court of Canada has said there are no rights for
the fetus, so this committee cannot presume that a fetus
now has rights. From my point of view, that question
should be dealt with under the Charter of Rights, not
through a committee dealing with abortion.

This morning, in a Quebec newspaper, there is a report
about three acts of incest in this area, and day after day we
see tragic reports about incest in this country. I think you
will agree. That is precisely the question I pose to those
who pretend life begins at conception. How would you
deal with your own daughter, for instance, faced with that
situation?

Mrs. Ferraton: I would support her through her
pregnancy.

Mrs. Bourgault: You would support her despite the fact
it is your husband. This child—what status would the
child have in the future? What sort of civil status would
you give that child when at 18 years of age he wants to
know who his father is? Is he unfathered? It is a question
that has to be pointed out, because life begins at
conception and we have heard many stories.
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Mrs. Ferraton: Yes, I understand. I would encourage
my daughter to give the child up for adoption.

Mrs. Bourgauit: Give it up for adoption? Do you know
those adopted children are searching desperately for and
finding their parents, because of new technology in
communication. It is a—

Mrs. Ferraton: Yes, [ know of many situations in which
that has happened.

Mrs. Bourgault: What do you think the psychological
health of that child, young man or young woman would
be, who at 18 years of age discovers that his or her mother
is—I do not know what term to give that incestuous
situation. Because it is incredible to presume that the well-
being of that person and of the future of those children
rests with permitting the pregnancy to continue.

I want to commend you for having that sort of
hopefulness. I do not have it. Maybe [ am not as Catholic
as you, although I claim to be one.

to the Catholic Women’s League of Canada.
Combien de membres votre organisme compte-t-il?

Mme Ferraton: Nous comptons 124,000 membres a la
grandeur du Canada.

Mme Bourgault: Puisque, comme vous le savez bien, la
Cour supréme a décrété que le foetus n’avait aucun droit,
notre comité ne peut donc pas présumer a partir de
maintenant qu’un foetus a des droits. D’aprés moi, cette
question-la devrait étre tranchée dans d’autres lieux,
puisqu’elle reléve de la Charte des droits et libertés, et
non pas par un comité qui examine la question de
I’avortement.

dans un journal québécois un
cas d’inceste dans la région.
Aujourd’hui, au Canada, on nous  assaille
quotidiennement avec des histoires d’inceste, ce qui est
tragique, comme vous en conviendrez certainement. Voici
la question que je pose a tous ceux qui prétendent que la
vie commence a la conception: Que feriez-vous, par
exemple, si votre propre fille faisait I’objet d’inceste?

Ce matin jai lu
reportage sur trois

Mme Ferraton: Je
grossesse.

'aiderais tout au long de sa

Mme Bourgault: Vous |’aideriez méme si le coupable
était votre mari? Quel serait le statut de l’enfant qui
naitrait? A quelle sorte de statut civil pourrait prétendre
I’enfant qui, a 18 ans, veut savoir qui est son pére? N’a-t-il
pas un pére, aprés tout? Je pense que cela vaut la peine de
poser la question, puisque vous affirmez que la vie
commence a la conception méme. Nous avons tellement
entendu de choses la-dessus.

Mme Ferraton: Oui, je comprends. J’encouragerais ma
fille a faire adopter son enfant.

Mme Bourgault: A le faire adopter? Savez-vous que,
grace aux nouvelles techniques de communication, les
enfants adoptés qui cherchent désespérément leurs parents
naturels finissent par les trouver. C’est. . .

Mme Ferraton: Oui, je sais que cela s’est produit dans
bien des cas.

Mme Bourgault: Que faites-vous de la santé
psychologique de cet enfant, de ce jeune homme ou de
cette jeune femme, qui a 18 ans découvrirait que son pére
ou que sa mere est en réalité. .. je ne sais méme pas
comment définir cette relation incestueuse! Il est
incroyable qu’on puisse prétendre assurer le bien-étre et
I’avenir de ces enfants en laissant la grossesse se
poursuivre.

Je vous félicite d’avoir a ce point confiance en I’avenir.
Moi, je n'y crois pas. Peut-étre ne suis-je pas une aussi
bonne catholique que vous . . .
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Mrs. Howard: I do not really think religion has
anything to do with the generosity of people. If our
psychiatric counselling is well done—but we lack the
opportunity for many of our young people who are in
many other situations, not just this one.

To go back to the incidence of incest, an incestuous
relationship in a famiy can continue for years and never
be brought to light. Sometimes the ultimate condition that
brings it to light is a child. When that child is visible, the
law is finally brought into the situation, on that child’s
behalf, on the family’s behalf, and on the community’s
behalf, so that situation can then be brought forward and
dealt with. It is a tragic situation and dealing with it is
tragic, but to use one situation to cancel out the other can
sometimes lead to a bigger problem.

Mrs. Bourgault: Is it not the obligation of a so-called
compassionate society and of the Government of Canada
to present a law that will permit a young woman who is
faced with such a terrible situation to have an abortion?

Finally, you said you will support this law because if it
does not pass there is no law, and no law means that for
those on the side of the anti-choice movement there is
nothing. I am strongly convinced that it will perhaps be a
long time before another law addressing this issue is
brought to the attention of Members of Parliament. It will
serve the purpose of the pro-choice movement if this law
does not pass.

Mrs. Ferraton: Are you trying to coerce us into saying
that we agree with the law?

Mrs. Bourgault: If you say so. Thank you anyway. I will
pass the floor to my friend.

Mr. Reimer (Kitchener): I want to thank you for your
briefs and for being willing to come before us to explain
your point of view.

The number of members in your organizaton has
already been mentioned. We have been listening to many
different groups, some of which are women'’s groups from
across Canada, which advise us or sometimes suggest to us
that the majority of women in Canada want full access to
abortion, or reproductive freedom, which includes the
right to an abortion, if they so wish. You represent a large
number of women. How do you reconcile this if you are
sitting in our place here and you hear various women’s
groups saying women of Canada want this freedom? How
do you respond?
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Mrs. Ferragon: We feel groups saying that certainly are
not representing us, so we are here today representing
those who feel as we do.

[Traduction]

Mme Howard: La religion n’a rien a voir avec la
générosité des gens. Si les services d’orientation
psychiatrique sont bien dispensés... malheureusement,
ces services sont inexistants pour beaucoup de nos jeunes,
qui se trouvent dans bien des situations facheuses, et pas
seulement celles que vous décrivez.

Revenons a l'inceste: les relations incestueuses se
poursuivent souvent pendant des années dans une famille
sans que personne n’en sache rien. Or, la situation est
souvent é€talée au grand jour lorsque la victime de
I’inceste finit par devenir enceinte. C’est alors que la loi
intervient, pour protéger Uenfant, la famille et la
collectivitt. Ce sont toujours des cas tragiques,
extrémement difficiles a résoudre, mais en voulant
supprimer l’enfant a naitre pour effacer l'inceste, on crée
parfois des problémes encore plus graves.

Mme Bourgault: Ne revient-il pas a la société qui se
prétend compatissante et au gouvernement du Canada de
faire adopter une loi qui permette 2 une jeune femme
victime de cette horreur de se faire avorter?

Une derniére chose: vous avez affirmé étre d’accord
avec le projet de loi parce que s’il devait étre rejeté, cela
créerait un vide juridique et que ce vide juridique
n’aiderait en rien les adeptes du mouvement anti-choix. Je
suis fermement convaincue que le Parlement ne sera plus
saisi d’une loi sur l’avortement avant bien longtemps
encore. Je prétends au contraire que le vide juridique
arrangerait plutot les adeptes du mouvement pro-choix.

Mme Ferraton: Voulez-vous nous forcer a dire que
nous sommes d’accord avec le projet de loi?

Mme Bourgault: Si vous voulez. Quoi qu’il en soit, je
vous remercie et je céde la parole a mon collegue.

M. Reimer (Kitchener): Je vous remercie de vos
mémoires et d’avoir consenti a venir nous expliquer votre
position.

Vous avez déja dit combien de membres comptait votre
organisme. De nombreux témoins, dont certains
représentent des femmes d’un peu partout au pays, nous
ont laissé entendre que la majorité des Canadiennes
veulent avoir le libre accés a I'avortement et le controle
de leur fécondité, ce qui implique le droit de se faire
avorter, si elles le décident. Vous qui représentez
beaucoup de Canadiennes, comment conciliez-vous le
point de vue que vous avez exprimé ici et celui des autres
groupes féministes selon qui les Canadiennes veulent
pouvoir choisir en toute liberté? Comment réagissez-
vous?

Mme Ferraton: Celles qui prétendent cela ne nous
représentent certainement pas, et nous sommes icCi
aujourd’hui pour représenter celles qui ne sont pas
d’accord.
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Mr. Reimer: How many other women would agree
with your point of view? To the best of your ability,
where do you think the majority of women stand?

Mrs. Ferraton: Outside of our organization?

Mr. Reimer: Yes.
Mrs. Ferraton: [ really have no idea, sir.

Mr. Reimer: Okay. You have gone to a lot of work to
have the women of Canada sign a petition. I have been
pleased to assist you with that. How many women in total
have signed?

Mrs. Ferraton: To date, 202,000.
Mr. Reimer: And the purpose of the petition?

Mrs. Ferraton: To protect the pre-born—recognize,
value, respect and protect the pre-born.

Mr. Reimer: Some women’s groups that have come
before us said if we believe in the full equality of women
then we must vote against this law. Would you agree?

Mrs. Ferraton: [ do not think so.

Mr. Reimer: You would vote against it for a different
reason. You have mentioned three things about this law.
You have said there are some good things in it.

First, it is not a gestational approach because it
recognizes the protection of the fetus is implicit
throughout pregnancy. You also are in favour of the fact
that it should be in the Criminal Code. Then you point
out some of the deficiencies in the law. Do you think it is
a law we perhaps should adopt in order to build upon, as
opposed to rejecting in order to start over?

Mrs. Ferraton: If you could guarantee what you are
going to build upon and what the end result would be I
would be able to answer that question, but. . .

Mr. Reimer: [ would be in great difficulty guaranteeing
that.

Mrs. Ferraton: Yes, [ know.

Mr. Reimer: [ guess what [ am getting at is similar to
questions that have already been asked. We do have three
of the key things we want: it is in the Criminal Code; it
recognizes implicitly the right of the fetus or protection of
the fetus, however inadequate, from conception; it has a
criminal sanction against those who break it. My question
is whether we can build on that as opposed to saying no,
take it away and start over again.

| Translation]|

M. Reimer: Combien sont ces autres femmes qui sont
d’accord avec vous? Dans la mesure de vos connaissances,
savez-vous de quel coOté se place la majorité des
Canadiennes?

Mme Ferraton: Celles qui n’appartiennent pas a notre
organisme?

M. Reimer: Oui.

Mme Ferraton: Je n’en sais vraiment rien.

M. Reimer: Bien. Vous avez déployé beaucoup
d’énergie pour faire signer votre pétition par le plus grand
nombre de Canadiennes. J’ai eu d’ailleurs plaisir a vous
aider dans votre entreprise. Combien de femmes au total
ont signé?

Mme Ferraton: Deux cent deux mille, a ce jour.

M. Reimer: Et quel était 'objectif de la pétition?
’enfant a naitre,
I'apprécier, de le

Mme Ferraton: De protéger
c’est-a-dire de le reconnaitre, de
respecter et de le protéger.

M. Reimer: Certains groupes féministes qui ont
comparu ont affirmé que si nous voulons étre vraiment
fideles au principe de I’égalité pleine et entiere des
femmes, nous devons rejeté le projet de loi. Etes-vous
d’accord?

Mme Ferraton: Non, je ne crois pas.

M. Reimer: Vous, vous étes contre le projet de loi, mais
pour d’autres raisons. Vous avez fait trois remarques au
sujet du projet de loi et vous avez aussi dit qu’il présentait
certains aspects positifs.

Tout d’abord, vous dites que le projet de loi ne se
fonde pas sur le principe de la gestation puisqu'il
reconnait implicitement qu’il faut protéger le foetus tout
au long de la grossesse. Vous étes également d’accord avec
I'inclusion au Code criminel. Mais vous avez également
parlé des lacunes du projet de loi. Pensez-vous qu’au lieu
de le rejeter et de recommencer a zéro, le projet de loi ne
pourrait pas, une fois adopté, servir de pierre angulaire a
un projet plus vaste?

Mme Ferraton: Si vous pouviez nous dire exactement
ce que serait cet édifice que I’on construirait a partir de la
pierre angulaire, je pourrais peut-étre vous répondre,
mais. . .

M. Reimer: J'aurais beacoup de mal a vous garantir
quoi que ce soit.

Mme Ferraton: Je le sais.

M. Reimer: Ce que je cherche a vous faire dire a
beaucoup a voir avec les questions qui ont déja été posées.
Nous avons déja en main, dans le projet de loi, trois des
¢léments fondamentaux recherchés: d’abord, il fait appel
au Code criminel; deuxiémement, il reconnait
implicitement le droit du foetus a étre protégé des la
conception, meéme Si cette protection peut sembler
inadéquate; je voudrais savoir s'il vaut mieux le rejeter de
but en blanc pour revenir a la case départ, ou se servir
plutot du projet de loi comme d’une pierre angulaire.
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Mrs. Ferraton: I do not know what the guarantees
would be, so I still find that hard to answer.

Mr. Reimer: [ am sorry I cannot give any guarantees.

Mrs. Ferraton: [ am concerned about the health aspect.
The interpretation of health could be very broad. One
person might have a narrow one, the next one could have
a very broad definition.

The Chairman: Mr. Skelly.

Mr. Skelly (Comox—Alberni): First of all, I apologize
for not being here on time. I had another obligation and I
have just finished reading the brief.

You have stated your position on this piece of
legislation, Bill C-43. A lot of women today feel they are
in a corner, that contraceptive devices and birth control
information are very difficult to come by. It is not free
under any of the medical plans in our province or in any
of the provinces, whereas abortion under some of our
medicare legislation is free, so women who cannot afford
the advice or cannot afford contraceptive pills or
equipment in some cases end up being forced into a
difficult position. I am wondering what your position is
with respect to contraception.

Mrs. Howard: I find that a very difficult statement to
even try to agree with, because I am counselling in the
schools, I am following counsellors who come from
public health departments and all over, and they are
giving the children, young people from the age of maybe
nine or ten years of age, full knowledge of every method
of contraception available. So I find the availability of
contraceptives, not being able to get them, is not a true
picture at all.

< 1610

Mr. Skelly: What is the position of the CWL with
respect to contraception and the availability of
counselling and contraceptive medications and devices?

Mrs. Howard: We do not go into our people’s
bedrooms, but we certainly agree with the teaching of the
church. And we also know—and I know full well from
my own counselling—a woman is fertile for so short a
period in her cycle that the natural method can certainly
be followed. In fact, we are teaching 2,000 or 3.000
couples a year natural family planning, and it works if
they are taught correctly. So the idea of contraception and
family planning, the knowledge, the accessibility, to me
does not wash. It does not wash.

[Traduction]

Mme Ferraton: Tant que je ne connaitrai pas I’édifice
que vous voulez bdtir sur cette pierre angulaire, je ne
pourrai répondre.

M. Reimer: Mais je ne peux rien vous dire la-dessus.

Mme Ferraton: C’est la question de la santé qui me
préoccupe, car on pourrait l'interpréter de bien des
fagons. La définition des uns peut-étre trés étroite, alors
que celle des autres pourrait étre trés large.

La présidente: Monsieur Skelly.

M. Skelly (Comox—Alberni): Permettez-moi d’abord
de m’excuser d’étre arrivé en retard, car j’avais d’autres
engagements préalables. Mais je viens tout juste de finir de
lire votre mémoire.

Vous avez pris position treés clairement au sujet du
projet de loi C-43. Beaucoup de femmes ont |'impression
d’étre prises entre l'arbre et I’écorce, puisque les moyens
de contraception et I'information sur le planning familial
sont parfois tres difficiles a obtenir. Dans notre province
et dans certaines autres, rien de cela n’est gratuit ni
remboursé par les régimes d’assurance-maladie, alors que,
dans certains cas, l’avortement est gratuit, de sorte que
celles qui ne peuvent se permettre d’acheter les pilules
contraceptives ou de se procurer des moyens de
contraception peuvent se retrouver acculées au pied du
mur. J'aimerais savoir ce que vous pensez de la
contraception.

Mme Howard: J’aurais beaucoup de mal a accepter
sans broncher ce que vous venez de dire: moi qui fais de
I'orientation dans les écoles et qui suis de pres le travail
des conseillers socio-psychologiques que nous envoient les
ministéres de la Santé publique, je sais trés bien qu’ils
disent aux enfants, méme aux tout jeunes de neuf ou dix
ans, tout ce qu’il faut savoir sur tous les moyens de
contraception qui existent. Vous avez tort, d’aprés moi,
d’affirmer qu’il est difficile d’obtenir des contraceptifs.

M. Skelly: Que pense la ligue de la contraception et de
’accés au service d’orientation ou aux moyens de
contraception.

Mme Howard: Nous ne nous mélons pas de ce qui se
passe dans la chambre a coucher, mais nous respectons la
doctrine de I’Eglise. Je sais pour I’avoir si souvent dit au
cours de mes séances d’orientation, que la période de
fertilité d’une femme est si courte qu’il est tout a fait
possible de suivre les méthodes de contraception
naturelles. De fait, nous enseignons a quelque 2,000 a
3,000 couples par année les méthodes naturelles de
planning familial, méthodes qui donnent de trés bons
résultats si elles sont correctement appliquées. Ce que
vous avez dit au sujet de la contraception, du planning
familial, du manque de connaissances et des difficultés de
se procurer les moyens de contraception, tout cela ne
prend pas avec moi.
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Mr. Skelly: But the position of your church, and
therefore your organization. is against the use of
contraceptive devices or contraceptive—

Mrs. Howard: Yes.

Mr. Skelly: [ was just reading an article from Air
Canada’s in-flight magazine that talks about the United
Nations Children’s Emergency Fund. It says that
thoughout the world 12 million children die every single
year—one million children per month, 250,000 under the
age of five die every single week. And you indicated in
response to a previous question that if a child were born
as a result of an incestuous relationship that perhaps that
child should be adopted out or provision should be made
for adoption. Yet it seems—

Mrs. Ferraton: That is what [ would do.

Mr. Skelly: —that world-wide there are millions of
children, hundreds of millions, who are facing the
problem of death and nobody seems to want these
children, or nobody seems to be concerned about them as
living children with the right to look forward to a happy
life. [ am wondering why your concern is not directed to
an area where living children are actually dying. Children
between the ages of birth and five years old are dying at
the rate of 250,000 a week.

Mrs. Cullen: I would like to respond to that, because
you have opened up a whole new area that through the
work of the parishes, through our support of
Development and Peace, we have been directly involved
in. We were the first organization in 1967 to support
Development and Peace when it was founded by
Canadian bishops to help particularly the children in
Third World countries. We contribute thousands and
thousands of dollars that are matched by CIDA; and it is a
priority, passed in 1969 as a resolution, that 1% of all our
funds raised is directed toward Development and Peace.
Yes, indeed, we care about those children. In so many
ways, besides Development and Peace, we have been
involved in helping them. Very strong support of
UNICEF.

Mrs. Howard: I would also like to respond to that.
From the St. Andrew the Apostlie Church in London, two
members of the Catholic Women’s League have set up an
orphanage in Bangladesh. We have another group that
sponsors refugee children from South America. In fact
they have had a family arrive of five children this week.
So indeed we are very concerned. We only wish we could
do more.

Mr. Skelly: [ look at some countries on the globe, and I
guess Brazil is an example, where the population of
children who are abandoned, who are unwanted children,
exceeds almost the population of some of the major
provinces in Canada. The law in Brazil with respect to
abortion is the kind of law you would like to see here in
Canada. and yet each year in Brazil tens of thousands of
women are mutilated as a result of induced abortions that
they either induced themselves or else have induced by

[Translation)

M. Skelly: Mais votre Eglise, et par conséquent votre
organisme, est contre le recours a des moyens de
contraception. . .

Mme Howard: En effet.

M. Skelly: Je lisais justement un article tiré de la revue
qu’Air Canada distribue a bord de ses vols et qui porte sur
le fonds d’urgence des Nations-Unies pour les enfants.
L’article affirme qu’il meure dans le monde 12 millions
d’enfants chaque année—soit un million d’enfants par
mois, et 250,000 de moins de cinq ans chaque semaine.
Vous avez dit plus tdt que si un enfant était né d’une
relation incestueuse, qu’il faudrait prendre des mesures
pour qu’il soit adopté. Or, il semble. . .

Mme Ferraton: C’est ce que je ferais.

M. Skelly: . .. que dans le monde, il y a des centaines
de millions d’enfants qui sont a la veille de mourrir et
dont personne ne veut;, personne, a tout le moins, ne
semble s’inquiéter du droit de ces enfants—qui sont déja
en vie—a mener une vie heureuse. Pourquoi ne pas vous
inquiéter plutét de ces 250,000 enfant de moins de cinq
ans qui meurent chaque semaine?

Mme Cullen: J’aimerais répondre: nous nous en
sommes directement occupés, par l’entremise de nos
paroisses et par I’aide que nous fournissons a 'organisme
«Développement et paix». En 1967, nous avons été le
premier organisme a aider «Développement et paix»
lorsqu’il a été fondé par les évéques canadiens dans le but
d’aider particuliérement les enfants des pays du tiers-
monde. Nous avons versé des milliers de dollars a ce
fonds, ’ACDI ayant donné l'équivalent; deés 1969, nous
avons, par une résolution décidé que un pour cent de tous
nos fonds levés serait envoyé de fagon prioritaire a
«Développement et paix». Vous voyez qu’en effet, le sort
de ces enfants nous inquiéte. Outre notre appui financier
a «Développement et paix», nous avons cherché a les
aider en appuyant aussi I"'UNICEF.

Mme Howard: Puis-je ajouter quelque chose? Deux
membres de la Catholic Women’s League, appartenant a
I’Egise St-André Apbtre de London, sont allés ouvrir un
orphelinat au Bangladesh. Un autre groupe de chez nous
parraine des jeunes réfugiés d’Amérique du Sud, et cette
semaine, nous avons justement regu une famille
comprenant cinq enfants. Le sort de ces enfants nous
inquiéte terriblement. Si seulement nous pouvions faire
plus!

M. Skelly: Prenons le cas du Brésil: le nombre
d’enfants non désirés qui sont abandonnés dépassent
presque la population de certaines de nos grandes
provinces canadiennes. Or, la loi brésilienne sur
I'avortement est du genre de celle que vous voudriez voir
adopter ici méme au Canada. Pourtant, chaque année, des
dizaines de milliers de Brésiliennes sont mutilées parce
qu’elles cherchent a se faire avorter elles-mémes ou parce
qu’elles se font avorter par des charlatans. Des dizaines de
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people who are not qualified. Tens of thousands of milliers d’enfants naissent aussi mutilés a la suite

children are born mutilated as a result of those botched
abortions, and many tens of thousands of women die, or
the children die, the fetus dies, sometimes by accident, of
a botched abortion.

My study of this issue indicates to me that the so-called
pro-life movement, in the case of Brazil and the case of
Ireland and the case of other countries, that succeeded in
getting anti-abortion legislation passed has probably killed
more women and children than abortions that are legally
done in a country like Canada, where you indicate there
are 80,000 abortions a year.
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[ am wondering if that never weighs on your
conscience: the fact that if you drive women into a corner
where they have virtually no choice but another
unwanted child, another mouth to feed, they are going to
attempt an illegal abortion, to the detriment of themselves
and their own self-multilation or the mutilation of the
fetus. Does it never weigh on your conscience what
happens to those women in countries where abortions are
illegal and where they resort to self-induced abortions or
illegal abortions?

Mrs. Ferraton: I certainly would like to see more
support services for those women, as part of the answer.

Mrs. Howard: [ also think the culture is totally
different and Canada cannot legislate a law for other
countries. If we begin with ourselves, then we show the
example. Certainly the support services that even Canada
lacks, to begin with, are a problem for us. They are a
problem for our own women, and it is time we looked at
it.

Mr. Skelly: Yet around the world both Catholic
organizations and so-called right-to-life organizations have
been putting countries and governments under pressure
to stop research into more effective contraception, to stop
the development of post-conception medications, for
example RU-486 or devices that are very inexpensive and
can be used with minimal medical training. Reports have
come out in the United States recently that as a result of
this lobbying effort by your organization and by other so-
called right-to-life organizations devices and medications
that would make the solution to the problem a little easier
have actually been thwarted, and as a result of that tens of
thousands of women and babies have been either
mutilated or killed.

Mrs. Howard: [ am wondering really what we mean
when we talk about “solutions” of drugs, gadgets, and
things like that. This is what we are speaking about when
we say women particularly are exploited, because it is
always the woman who has to take the contraceptive or do
everything else necessary to avoid an abortion. That is

d’avortements ratés; des dizaines de milliers de femmes ou
d’enfants meurent pour la méme raison.

Selon moi, le mouvement qui se prétend pro-vie a
réussi a faire tuer plus d’enfants et de femmes au Brésil
ou en Irlande, notamment, en faisant adopter des lois anti-
avortement, que si on légalisait I'avortement dans un pays
comme le Canada ou ceux-ci ne se chiffrent qu’a 80,000
par année.

Je me demande si cela ne pése jamais sur votre
conscience, le fait que vous acculez les femmes au pied du
mur en ne leur laissant pratiquement d’autre choix que de
porter un enfant dont elles ne veulent pas, une bouche de
plus a nourrir, ou d’essayer d’obtenir un avortement
illégal, a leur propre risque, ou de se mutiler elles-mémes
ou de mutiler le foetus. Est-ce que cela ne pése pas sur
votre conscience tout ce qui arrive aux femmes dans les
pays ou lavortement est illégal et ou les femmes
s’avortent elles-mémes ou se font avorter illégalement?

Mme Ferraton: Pour répondre partiellement a votre
question, je vous dirai que je voudrais certainement
qu’elles aient acces a plus de services de soutien.

Mme Howard: Je pense également que leur culture
n’est pas du tout la méme, et le Canada ne veut pas
légiférer dans d’autres pays. Commengons donc par
montrer ’exemple nous-mémes. Tout d’abord, il est clair
que nous manquons de services de soutien méme au
Canada, et c’est un probleme pour nous. Cest un
probléme pour les Canadiennes, et il est temps de se
pencher sur cette question.

M. Skelly: Pourtant, aux quatre coins du monde, les
organismes catholiques comme ceux qui préchent le droit
a la vie ont exercé des pressions sur divers pays et
gouvernements pour qu’ils mettent un terme a la
recherche sur les méthodes de contraception, a la mise au
point de médicaments post-conception, par exemple le
RU-486 ou des dispositifs peu colteux qui peuvent étre
employés avec le minimum de formation médicale. On a
récemment publié des rapports aux Etats-Unis qui
concluent qu’a la suite des efforts de démarchage déployés
par votre organisme, par les organismes qui préchent le
droit a la vie, on n’a pu avoir acces aux dispositifs et aux
médicaments qui auraient légérement facilité la solution
du probléme, et des dizaines de milliers de femmes et de
bébés ont €té mutilés ou ont perdu la vie.

Mme Howard: Je me demande ce que l'on entend
vraiment par solution quand on parle de drogues, de
dispositifs ou de gadgets. C'est cela qu'on a a l'esprit
lorsqu'on dit que les femmes font I'objet d'une
exploitation particuliére: apres tout, ce sont toujours les
femmes qui doivent prendre les moyens de contraception
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what we are saying. It is time equal responsibility was
placed on both male and female.

Mr. Skelly: So are you suggesting that males be
sterilized or take vasectomies or some other—

Mrs. Howard: [ am saying it is time there was a
reasonable approach by the male to take some of the
responsibility.

Mr. Skelly: Being a vasectomy or sterilization.

Mrs. Howard: No.
Ms Greene: Self-control.

Mrs. Howard: The control and the responsibility. And
we do not see that.

Mr. Kaplan: [ would like to begin by saying how much
I appreciate, and how much we should appreciate, the
initiatives you take and the programs you have for
reducing the number of abortions. Whether it is from sex
education or encouraging people to look at the
alternatives, including adoption, these are commendable
activities. No matter how people feel about this law, or
the general public opinion, this is the kind of program I
can only hope will continue, whatever the fate of this law.

[ do not support this law. I do support legal limits on
abortion. But I also recognize the rights of women in a
way the Supreme Court has defined them but I do not
think you share with me. That is what [ want to ask you a
bit about. I have two points I would like to cover with
you.

You mentioned in your opening statement that many
women who choose abortion are not properly counselled
and do not know all the alternatives that are available to
them, and you are agreeing with me about having said
that. But in a sense for your position it does not make
much difference, really, does it, because whether they
know or not, you are not in favour of abortions being
given to them on the basis of how they feel about it. If I
heard your amendments correctly, it is not an informed
consent and decision from them that would justify an
abortion. For you, it is the consent of two doctors on the
basis of a tight definition of hell. Whether a woman is
well informed or badly informed, what difference does it
make?
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Mrs. Ferraton: I still feel they should be informed.

Mr. Kaplan: So they will not ask for one in the first
place?

Mrs. Ferraton: It might change their mind, yes.

[Translation |

ou faire le nécessaire pour éviter un avortement, et je
pense qu’il est temps que I'homme et la femme partagent
également la responsabilité.

M. Skelly: Vous proposez donc que l'on stérilise les
males ou qu'ils subissent des vasectomies ou tout autre. . .

Mme Howard: Ce que je dis, c’est qu’il est temps que
I’homme assume raisonnablement sa  part de
responsabilité.

M. Skelly: En subissant une vasectomie ou en se faisant
stériliser.

Mme Howard: Non.
Mme Greene: Par la maitrise de soi.

Mme Howard: En s’exercant a la maitrise de soi et en
assumant ses responsabilités. Or, ce n’est pas le cas.

M. Kaplan: J'aimerais vous dire tout d’abord a quel
point j'apprécie et quel point nous devrions apprécier les
initiatives que vous avez prises et les programmes que
vous avez organisés pour diminuer le nombre
d’avortements. Qu’il s’agisse de faire I’éducation sexuelle
ou d’encourager les gens a trouver des solutions de
rechange, y compris l'adoption, ce sont toutes la des
activités louables. Quelle que soit notre réaction vis-a-vis
de cette loi, ou quelle que soit 'opinion publique en
général, quoi qu’il advienne de cette loi, j'espére que c’est
le genre de programme qui survivra.

Je ne suis pas en faveur de cette loi. Je suis pour
I'imposition de limites juridiques a l’avortement. Par
contre, je reconnais que les femmes ont des droits tels que
la Cour supréme les a définis, mais je ne pense pas que
vous soyez de mon avis, et c’est sur cela que jaimerais
vous poser des questions. Il y a deux points que j'aimerais
discuter avec vous.

Dans votre allocution d’ouverture, vous avez
mentionné que bien des femmes qui choisissent
'avortement ont été mal conseillées et ignorent quelles
autres solutions s’offrent a elles, je vois que vous
confirmez ce que j'ai entendu. Mais de votre point de vue,
en un sens, cela ne change pas grand-chose vraiment, n’est-
ce pas? En effet, qu’elles soient au courant ou pas, vous
n’'étes pas en faveur de leur accorder un avortement pour
les motifs qu’elles invoquent. Si j'ai bien compris vos
amendements, ce n’est pas parce qu'une femme est au
courant et prend tout de méme sa décision d’avorter que
I’avortement est justifié. A vos yeux, il faut que deux
médecins y consentent s’appuyant sur une définition
extrémement rigoureuse. Alors, qu’est-ce que cela change
pour vous qu'une femme ait été mal ou bien informée?

Mme Ferraton: Je suis tout de méme convaincue
qu’elles devraient étre au courant.

M. Kaplan: Pour qu’elles ne songent méme pas a
I'avortement?

Mme Ferraton: Effectivement, cela pourrait les faire
changer d’idée.
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Mr. Kaplan: But take the case of a well-informed
woman who goes through the process of looking at the
alternatives and who decides that she wants to have an
abortion.

Mrs. Ferraton: [ suppose that is her right.
Mr. Kaplan: But would you want the law to allow that?

Mrs. Ferraton: No.

Mr. Kaplan: So it is her right to want an abortion but
not her right to have one in the legal system you want.

There are two points [ would like to make to you. I
believe most Canadians, and certainly most women, want
freedom of choice to a certain point—not only for
themselves but for Canadian society in general. The way I
read public opinion is that most people feel there should
be some limits on the right to abortion, but generally
there should be a right triggered by a woman who wants
to have an abortion. If [ am right and that is how most
Canadians feel, how—in a democracy—can we consider
any law other than one which accommodates the wishes
of the voters?

Mrs. Ferraton: The freedom of choice is really the
freedom to have an abortion, is it not? It really is not a
freedom—

Mr. Kaplan: Or not to have one.
Mrs. Ferraton: [ am not too sure.

Mr. Kaplan: [ also want our laws to be tied to reality. [
know a lot about the law. [ have been a Member of
Parliament for a long time, a lawyer, and [ have been
involved in police work and so on. I think your group
and other groups coming before us have more confidence
in the law than the law really can respond to.

[ do not think that the law you would like will reduce
the number of abortions. I think it will reduce the
circumstances. It will change the circumstances in which
abortions are committed. They will not be done above
board with advertising or with public information. I
honestly believe there will be the same number of
abortions and that many will be committed in
unfavourable circumstances which are disadvantageous to
women—it will cost them more and perhaps make a
difference for rich and poor. Do you really think your
law is going to 'reduce the number of abortions? I
challenge you—what gives you the confidence that your
law will change the way abortions are performed or the
number of abortions?

‘Wrs Howard: Yes, it will reduce the number of
abortions. It will reduce the number of abortions.

| Traduction|

M. Kaplan: Mais prenez le cas d’une femme bien
informée qui a étudié les autres possibilités qui s’offraient
a elle et qui décide qu’elle peut avoir un avortement.

Mme Ferraton: Je suppose que c’est son droit.

M. Kaplan: Mais la loi lui permettrait-elle d’y avoir
acces?

Mme Ferraton: Non.

M. Kaplan: En d’autres termes, elle a le droit d’avoir
un avortement, mais elle n’y a pas droit légalement dans
le systéme que vous souhaitez.

Il y a deux choses que jaimerais vous dire. Je pense
que la plupart des Canadiens, et certainement la plupart
des Canadiennes, veulent la liberté de choix jusqu’a un
certain point—pas seulement pour elles, mais pour la
société canadienne en général. Selon mon interprétation
de I'opinion publique, la plupart des gens estiment qu’on
devrait limiter le droit a I’avortement d’une fagon ou
d’une autre, mais, de fagon générale, la femme qui
souhaite avoir un avortement devrait avoir ce droit. Si je
ne me trompe pas et si les Canadiens pensent bien ainsi,
comment dans une démocratie comme la ndtre, peut-on
songer a avoir une loi qui ne réponde pas aux voeux des
électeurs?

Mme Ferraton: La liberté de choix veut dire la liberté
d’avoir un avortement, n’est-ce pas? Ce n’est pas vraiment
une liberté. . .

M. Kaplan: Ou de ne pas en avoir.
Mme Ferraton: Je ne suis pas convaincue.

M. Kaplan: Je veux également que l'on ait des lois
réalistes. Je suis assez versé en droit. Je suis député depuis
longtemps, mais je suis aussi avocat, et j’ai participé, entre
autres, a des activités de la police. Je pense que votre
groupe et d’autres groupes qui comparaissent devant nous,
font trop confiance a la loi.

Je ne pense pas que la loi que vous souhaitez
diminuera le nombre d’avortement. Je pense qu’il y aura
moins de possibilités. Je pense que les circonstances dans
lesquelles on peut avoir un avortement ne seront plus les
mémes. Il n’y aura plus de publicité ni d’information
publiques sur les avortements qui se font. Franchement, je
pense qu’il y aura autant d’avortements qu’avant et qu’'un
grand nombre d’avortements se feront dans des
circonstances défavorables pour les femmes—cela coutera
peut étre plus cher et on risque d’avoir une différence de
traitement entre les riches et les pauvres. Pensez-vous
vraiment que votre loi permettra de réduire le nombre
d’avortements? Je parie que non. Pourquoi pensez-vous
que la loi changera quoi que ce soit a la fagon dont les
avortements se font ou au nombre d’avortements qu’il y
aura?

Mme Howard: Il y aura certainement moins
d’avortements. La loi permettra de réduire le nombre
d’avortements.
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Mr. Kaplan: Do you not think people like Chantal
Daigle, prohibited from having an abortion, will just head
off to some American city?

Mrs. Howard: There has always been abortions. Since
time immemorial medical people have done abortions
without damage to the woman’s character in the news
media. It was done when there was a need for it to be
done. It was always a matter between patient and doctor.

I am not speaking for the league, but I believe that
when we legalize something it becomes the norm because
it is written in law. That is what we see looming. If the
law says it is legal, it will not stop. It will double, as we
have seen it double since 1967. The number of abortions,
because it has been legalized, has increased.

#1625

Ms Phinney (Hamilton Mountain): No, there has been
no increase at all.

Mr. Kaplan: We have different statistics. I think it is
important for you to know that the illegalization before
1969 and the period of no law and the legislation we
had—which I voted for—from 1969 until it was struck
down, through that whole period, I put to you the fact
that abortion has continued in numbers unaffected by the
legislation.

Of course the circumstances are different. There was an
abortion committee, there was not one, they were done in
public, they were done in private. There have been a lot
of changes. I think the number has to give us something
to think about. It means that if we want to reduce
abortions as you do—and I agree with you—it is not by
having a law. It is by having a moral attitude toward
abortion. [ know that you have put efforts. .. A lot of
groups that have appeared before us do not care about
anything but the law.

[ know your group is different. You are anxious also to
elevate the moral standard of this society. I support that,
but 1 do not think the law is a necessary part of your
program. I do not think it will make any difference.

Ms Greene: Dr. Marion Powell answered a question
that was afterwards corroborated by another fairly senior
doctor. Apparently 75% of all fertilized eggs are naturally
expelled by a woman. Of all the eggs that attach
themselves to the wall of the womb, 25% are also
naturally miscarried. I am wondering if you are
concerned about these. According to your definition these
too are potential human beings.

Mrs. Ferraton: [ think it is a natural phenomenon.

Ms Grgene: So if it is a natural phenomenon it is okay.
In addition, in the present day, through medical

[Translation]

M. Kaplan: Ne pensez-vous pas que les femmes comme
Chantal Daigle, a qui on avait interdit I’avortement, ne se
rendront pas simplement dans une ville américaine?

Mme Howard: Il y a toujours eu des avortements.
Depuis des temps immémoriaux, les médecins ont
pratiqué des avortements sans pour autant diffamer les
femmes dans les médias. Les femmes ont été avortées
lorsque c’était nécessaire. La décision ne concernait que la
patiente et son médecin.

Je ne parle pas au nom de la ligue, mais je suis
convaincue que lorsqu’une loi est adoptée, elle devient la
norme, parce que c’est une loi, et c’est ce que nous
craignons. Si la loi déclare I'avortement légal, il y aura des
avortements, il y en aura deux fois plus, comme on I’a
constaté depuis 1967. Parce que l’avortement est devenu
légal, le nombre d’avortements a augmenté.

Mme Phinney (Hamilton Mountain): Mais non, il n’y a
pas eu d’augmentation du tout.

M. Kaplan: Nous avons des statistiques différentes. Je
pense qu’il est important que vous sachiez que pendant la
période ou l’avortement était illégal, avant 1969, pendant
la période ou il n’y avait pas de loi, et a partir du moment
ou on a adopté une loi en 1969—et j’ai voté en faveur de
cette loi—jusqu’au moment ou elle a été abrogée, pendant
toute cette période, je vous affirme que le nombre
d’avortements n’a eu rien a voir avec la loi.

Les circonstances sont bien entendu différentes. On a
eu un comité sur I'avortement, il a disparu, les
avortements se sont faits en public, ils se sont faits en
privé. Il y a eu toutes sortes de changements. Mais le
nombre d’avortement nous donne matiere a réflexion.
Cela veut dire que si nous voulons comme vous réduire le
nombre d’avortements—et je partage votre opinion—il ne
faut pas de loi. [l faut une attitude morale vis-a-vis de
I'avortement. Je sais que vous avez déployé des efforts. . .
Un grand nombre de groupes ont comparu devant nous
qui ne s’intéressent a rien d’autre qu’a la loi.

Je sais que votre groupe est différent. Ce que vous
souhaitez, c’est rehausser les normes morales de la société,
et je suis avec vous, mais je ne pense pas que la loi soit
nécessairement la solution. Je ne pense pas que la loi
change quoi que ce soit.

Mme Greene: Le D' Marion Powell a répondu a une
question, et sa réponse a €té corroborée par la suite par
un autre éminent médecin. Apparemment, les femmes
expulsent 75 p. 100 de tous leurs oeufs fertilisés. De tous
les oeufs qui s’accrochent a la paroi de la matrice, 25 p.
100 avortent de fagon naturelle. Je me demande si leur
sort vous intéresse. Selon votre définition, ces oeufs
représentent en puissance des étres humains.

Mme Ferraton: Je pense qu'il s'agit 1a d’'un phénomeéne
naturel.

Mme Greene: Ainsi dong, il n’y a pas de probleme s’il
s’'agit d’'un phénomeéne naturel. N'oubliez pas non plus
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technology, many women are able to take hormone
supplements. These allow them to carry babies that would
previously not have been carried because of natural
miscarriage factors such as I have just described. They are
able to take these hormones and have fetuses that do
survive.

Similarly, through high-tech medicine in Canada, we
have examples of fetuses that are surviving at very low
weights. Dr. Pagtakhan is heavily involved in this area.
We have many more children that are able to be born
today. How do you feel about those? Do you feel that this
is progress in medicine or is this something you feel is
interfering with the natural process?

Mrs. Ferraton: We are not in favour of in vitro
fertilization. Is this what you are speaking about?

Ms Greene: No, I am speaking about—
Mrs. Ferraton: Just taking the hormones?

Ms Greene: With the hormones, they just take a
supplement and they are able to carry a fetus to term that
previously their body would have rejected.

Mrs. Howard: I think that is a very confusing question.
That is a different question altogether. If a child is
conceived and survives at the sixth month, which it can,
with assistance. .. In St. Joseph’s neo-natal surgery,
fetuses at six months or twenty weeks are surviving. If that
happens it is marvelous; babies survive.

Ms Greene: So you agree with those technological
improvements that help fetuses to survive.

Mrs. Howard: To survive the baby, definitely.

Ms Greene: How do you feel about things such as the
morning-after pill currently being dispensed?

Mrs. Howard: The morning-after pill actually leaves
you with many feelings. With raped women the usual
procedure is to get them quickly into the clinic and have
the normal medical procedures done. Usually that is
sufficient. Again I would reiterate that in the case of rape,
the rape must have taken place within the fertile period of
the woman'’s cycle, perhaps three to five days. If a rape
takes place just before or at the beginning of fertility,
there can be no child very often, because it delays
ovulation. So when we are talking about rape morning-
after pills and all this kind of thing, we have to know
from which angle we are speaking.

» 1630

Ms Greene: So you feel the morning-after pill is
acceptable?

 Mrs. Howard: No, I am not saying that. The medical
Intervention given at the time is the medical treatment for
a rape. If the morning-after pill is given a month later. . .

[Traduction|

qu’aujourd’hui, grace a la technologie médicale, un grand
nombre de femmes peuvent prendre des suppléments
hormonaux. Elles évitent ainsi ces avortements spontanés
que je viens de vous décrire et sont en mesure de porter
leurs bébés a terme, alors qu’autrefois elles ne l'auraient
pas pu. Grace a ces hormones, leurs foetus peuvent
survivre.

Parallélement, grace a la médecine de pointe, nous
avons vu des foetus au Canada dont le poids était trés bas
et qui ont pourtant réussi a survivre. Le D" Pagtakhan
s’intéresse fort a ce domaine. Il y a beaucoup plus
d’enfants aujourd’hui qui peuvent voir le jour. Que dites-
vous de cela? Pensez-vous que cela représente un progres
en médecine ou pensez-vous que c'est une interférence
dans un processus naturel?

Mme Ferraton: Nous ne sommes pas en faveur de la
fertilisation in vitro. Est-ce de cela que vous parlez?

Mme Greene: Non, je parlais de. . .

Mme Ferraton: hormones tout

simplement?

De prendre des

Mme Greene: Ces femmes prennent simplement un

supplément d’hormones et arrivent a porter le bébé a
terme, alors qu’autrefois leur corps aurait rejeté le foetus.

Mme Howard: Je trouve la question fort peu claire. Ce
n’est pas du tout la méme chose. Si un bébé est congu et
survit jusqu’au sixi€me mois, ce qui est possible, avec de
l’aide. . . A Saint-Joseph grace a la chirurgie néo-natale,
les foetus dgés de six mois ou de 20 semaines arrivent a
survivre. Et c’est merveilleux de voir ces bébés survivre.

Mme Greene: Vous reconnaissez donc que les progres
technologiques aident les foetus a survivre.

Mme Howard: Ils aident le bébé a survivre, c’est clair.

Mme Greene: Que pensez-vous des pilules comme les
pilules du lendemain qu’on vend actuellement?

Mme Howard: Ces pilules du lendemain provoquent
bien des réactions différentes chez moi. Dans le cas de
femmes qui ont été violées, la régle, c’est de les acheminer
rapidement a une clinique pour qu’elles subissent le
traitement médical normal. En général, cela suffit. La
encore, je le répéte, dans le cas d’un viol, il faut que le
viol ait eu lieu pendant la période fertile du cycle de la
femme, qui dure de trois a cinq jours. Si le viol a eu lieu
juste avant I’amorce du cycle de fertilit¢, ou au tout
début, trés souvent, la femme ne tombe pas enceinte parce
que cela retarde l'ovulation. Quand vous parlez des
pilules du lendemain dans les cas de viol et de ce genre de
choses, il faut savoir sous quel angle vous vous placez.

Mme Greene: Vous jugez donc que
lendemain est acceptable?

la pilule du

Mme Howard: Non, ce n’est pas ce que j'ai dit.
L’intervention meédicale qui est donnée a ce moment-la
est un traitement médical en cas de viol. Si la pilule du
lendemain est donnée un mois plus tard. . .
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Ms Greene: The morning after is the morning after.

Mrs. Howard: Not always. . .

Ms Greene: The new French pill can go later, but a
morning-after pill is currently in use. Do you not think
then that if your viewpoint carried in the House that we
have the potential to have an enormous population not
only in Canada but also throughout the world? Do you
not think ethics and morality are attached to
overpopulating the world?

Mrs. Ferraton: Just by bringing up the question, are
you not saying that abortion is being used as a population
control?

Ms Greene: Yes, I think it is.

Mrs. Ferraton: That is not the intent of abortion, is it?
That is not the intent of this bill.

Ms Greene: The intent of this bill is to allow women to
make the choice of whether or not they have a child.
Certainly many women will make it on a moral basis.

Mrs. Ferraton: But because of health reasons. . .

Ms Greene: Today, I think many people feel they do
not want to contribute to overpopulation to a great extent.
That is certainly a moral viewpoint prevalent in our
society.

Mrs. Ferraton: It might be a moral viewpoint, but I do
not feel it is the psychological reason to have an abortion,
Just because the contraception did not work.

Ms Greene: Certainly stress because of socio-economic
reasons and a forced pregnancy would be stressful on
many people and would be a psychological reason.

Mrs. Howard: [ would also like to answer the question
on this point. Germany, France, Spain, Norway at the
present time, Canada, and the United States are now way
below population replacement level. Canada itself is 1.5
replacement—

Ms Greene: A lot of people share that ethic.

Mrs. Howard: So basically we are not even replacing
ourselves. | read from a government paper that Canada
will have to increase its immigration tremendously in
order to provide Canada with its necessary population
down the road, because we are not providing population
for ourselves. So my question is whether we really want to
decrease again the population of Canada by abortion.

[Translation|
Mme Greene: La pilule du lendemain se donne le
lendemain.

Mme Howard: Pas toujours. . .

Mme Greene: La nouvelle pilule frangaise peut
s’administrer plus tard, mais en ce moment on utilise la
pilule du lendemain. Ne pensez-vous pas que si votre
point de vue était épousé par la Chambre, nous
risquerions d’avoir une population énorme, pas seulement
au Canada, mais dans le reste du monde? Ne pensez-vous
pas que la moralité et I’éthique ont quelque chose a voir
avec un monde surpeuplé?

Mme Ferraton: Le simple fait que vous posiez la

question ne veut-il pas dire que l'avortement sert
précisément de controle démographique?

Mme Greene: Oui, je pense que c’est le cas.

Mme Ferraton: Mais ce n’est pas la le but de

’avortement, n’est-ce pas? Ce n’est pas la le but de ce
projet de loi.

Mme Greene: Le but de ce projet de loi est de
permettre aux femmes de décider d’avoir un enfant ou
pas. Il est clair que bien des femmes prennent cette
décision pour des raisons morales.

Mme Ferraton: Mais pour des raisons de santé. . .

Mme Greene: Je pense qu’aujourd’hui il y a un grand
nombre de gens qui ne veulent pas contribuer a la
surpopulation de la planéete. C'est un point de vue moral,
qui se retrouve fréquemment dans notre société.

Mme Ferraton: C'est peut-€tre un point de vue moral,
mais je ne pense pas que ce soit un motif psychologique
pour avoir un avortement, parce que les moyens de
contraception ont fait défaut.

Mme Greene: Le stress est un motif, car pour des
raisons  socio-économiques, une  grossesse forcée
représente un stress pour bien des femmes, et ce serait
donc un motif psychologique.

Mme Howard: J'aimerais aussi vous donner une
réponse sur ce point. En Allemagne, en France, en
Espagne, en Norvége en ce moment, au Canada comme
aux Etats-Unis, le nombre de naissances est de loin
inférieur au taux nécessaire pour renouveler |la
population. Au Canada, le taux de renouvellement est de
1.5

Mme Greene: Un grand nombre de personnes
souscrivent a cette éthique.

Mme Howard: Essentiellement, donc, nous ne
maintenons  pas notre  niveau de  croissance

démographique. J’ai lu dans un document publié par le
gouvernement que le Canada devrait augmenter
I'immigration de fagon importante pour avoir la
population voulue dans quelques années, parce que notre
taux de naissances n'est pas suffisant. Je vous demande
donc si nous voulons que ce taux baisse encore davantage
grace a l'avortement.
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Mr. Skelly: [ have been sidetracked onto this issue of
population replacement. [ had the same experience with
the law as Mr. Kaplan has. I used to work in a jail back in
the 1960s while I was going to university. Some of the
people I worked with in jail were abortionists. If this law
passes and abortions cease to become legally available
because they have been recriminalized in Canada, you are
not going to stop abortions, you are just going to stop
people from having abortions with the kinds of people
you would like them to have them with.

I know people who work the back streets of Vancouver
in British Columbia who are charging thousands of
dollars for abortions. Their success rate was pretty limited.
I do not think there has been any increase in the number
of abortions in Canada.

I would like to ask about population replacement. Is
not immigration as legitimate a form of population
replacement as birth? Why is that a problem? As I
mentioned, there are tens of millions of kids who are
dying every year. If they had an opportunity to live in a
place as rich and as supportive as Canada, maybe that is a
way of looking at it in more global terms.

Mrs. Howard: If Canada allows, it would be
marvellous.
Mr. Skelly: So your concern about population

replacement has nothing to do with abortion. Maybe you
should be pursuing a change in the immigration laws.

Mrs. Howard: We have strongly pursued changes in the
immigration laws.

Mr. Skelly: It might be a more productive way to
approach it.

= 1635

Mr. Pagtakhan: [ would just like to be clear on your
position: that if one is truly concerned for the living poor,
your group would equally challenge people who are
concerned for the living poor to be equally concerned for
the equally living and wanted unborn.

Mrs. Ferraton: Yes, we are.
Mr. Pagtakhan: Thank you.

The Chairman: [ would like to thank the representative
of the Catholic Women'’s League. Is it agreed that the brief

submitted be appended to today’s Minutes of Proceedings
and Evidence?

Some hon. members: Agreed.

The Chairman: Ladies and gentlemen of the panel,
before we get to meet our next witnesses, we have a little
bit of housekeeping to do. Your subcommittee met this
morning to plan future business. It has been agreed to
make the following recommendation: that the following
organization be invited to appear before the committee. . .

[Traduction|

M. Skelly: Vous m’avez un peu €loigné de mon propos
en parlant de croissance démographique. Je pense que jai
la méme expérience que M. Kaplan en matiére de droit.
Dans les années 60, alors que j'étais a l'université, je
travaillais dans une prison. Parmi les gens avec qui je
travaillais, il y avait des avorteurs. Si cette loi est adoptée,
et que l'avortement au Canada devient illégal parce que
c’est a nouveau un acte criminel, vous ne mettrez pas
pour autant un terme aux avortements; vous empécherez
simplement les femmes de se faire avorter par les
personnes qui devraient s’occuper d’elles.

Je connais des gens qui travaillent dans les bas-fonds de
Vancouver en Colombie-Britannique et qui se font payer
des milliers de dollars pour avorter des femmes. Leur taux
de succes est assez limité. Je ne pense pas qu’il y ait plus
d’avortements au Canada qu’auparavant.

J’aimerais vous poser une question au sujet du
maintien de la croissance démographique. Est-ce que le
recours a l'immigration n’est pas aussi valable que le
recours aux naissances pour réaliser cet objectif?
Pourquoi ce probléme? Comme je l’ai dit, il y a des
dizaines de millions d’enfants qui meurent chaque année.
S’ils pouvaient vivre dans un pays aussi riche et aussi
généreux que le Canada, ce serait peut-étre une fagon de
considérer le probleme a I’échelle de la plancte.

Mme Howard: Si le gouvernement l’autorisait, ce serait
merveilleux.

M. Skelly: Ainsi donc, votre intérét vis-a-vis du
maintien de la croissance démographique n’a rien a voir
avec l’avortement. Vous devriez peut-étre tenter de faire
amender les lois sur I'immigration.

Mme Howard: Nous avons réclamé ces changements
avec assiduité.

M. Skelly: Vous auriez peut-étre plus de résultats de
cette fagon.

M. Pagtakhan: Je voudrais bien comprendre votre
position: selon votre groupe, ceux qui s’intéressent
vraiment aux pauvres d’aujourd’hui devraient s’intéresser
tout autant a des foetus, qui sont tout aussi vivants.

Mme Ferraton: C’est bien cela.
M. Pagtakhan: Je vous remercie.

La présidente: J'aimerais remercier la représentante de
la Catholic Women’s League. Estce que vous €tes
d’accord pour que 'on mette leur mémoire en annexe a
nos Procés-verbaux et Témoignages d’aujourd’hui?

Des voix: D’accord.

La présidente: Mesdames et messieurs les membres du
comité, avant de passer au témoin suivant, nous avons
quelques petites questions a régler. Votre sous-comité s’est
réuni ce matin pour décider des travaux futurs et a décidé
de présenter la recommandation suivante: que l'organisme
dont le nom suit soit invité a comparaitre devant le
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It is the Canadian Association for Community Living. Ms
Greene, do you wish to move that?

Ms Greene: Yes, I so move. Is there going to be a
discussion?

Mme Pierrette Venne (députée de Saint-Hubert):
Combien de personnes cette association représente-t-elle?
Est-ce que vous le savez?

Ms Greene: [ am not sure of the exact number, but it is
in the thousands. The Canadian Association for
Community Living is the former Association for the
Mentally Retarded. They are right across the country. In
Toronto they have a huge group home program for the
mentally retarded. It is quite a large organization in
Toronto, and I know that they are in every major city and
in many towns.

Mme Venne: Est-ce que ces gens nous ont soumis un
mémoire?

La présidente: IIs nous ont soumis un mémoire, mais
ils étaient en retard d’une journée. C’est pourquoi M™¢
Greene recommande que nous les recevions.

Mr. Pagtakhan: If it is in order, I have received copies
of letters sent to the committee from two groups, the
Canadian Catholic School Trustees’ Association and from
Dr. Hummerton, a geneticist from the University of
Manitoba. I do not know the specific views they will
propose to the committee. I wonder in fact whether any
consideration has been given to their requests to appear.

The Chairman: Yes, consideration was given this
morning by the subcommittee. There is just not enough
time anymore, but because we had not received many
requests from from mentally ill people and because it is a
national organization, we thought this was one we would
recommend to the panel. I am prepared to have a
consensus here. We have a few possibilities.

The last time we met I spoke of the possibility of
adding a Thursday. Now we do not think it will be
necessary. It could be that one of the Tuesdays, be it next
week on March 20 or on March 27, we might start 10
a.m. instead of 11 a.m., instead of adding another day.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Madam Chairman, the reason I support
the request of these two organizations—and as I said, I do
not know their views—is that we have not heard yet, and
perhaps the steering committee was not well advised, from
the genetics group. One of the issues that we will address
as we go into the consideration of this bill following the
completion of all witnesses would be the genetics aspect of
disease. I think the committee would be well advised and
informed if we were to welcome the group of geneticists,
Madam Chairman.

|Translation)

Comité. .. Il s’agit de I’Association canadienne pour
I'intégration communautaire. Madame Greene, voulez-
vous en proposer I’adoption?

Mme Greene: Je propose 'adoption de la proposition.
Va-t-on en discuter?

Mrs. Pierrette Venne (Saint-Hubert): Do you know
how many people this association represents?

Mme Greene: Je ne sais pas le chiffre exact, mais
plusieurs milliers. L’Association canadienne pour
'intégration communautaire s’appelait autrefois
’Association pour déficients mentaux. Cet organisme a
des chapitres aux quatre coins du pays. A Toronto, ils ont
un trés important programme de logements
communautaires  pour les  déficients  mentaux.
L'organisation de Toronto est trés importante et je sais
qu’il y en a une dans toutes les villes principales et dans
un grand nombre de petites villes.

Mrs. Venne: Did they send us a brief?

The Chairman: They did send a brief, but they were
one day late. This is why Mrs. Greene is moving that we
invite them to appear.

M. Pagtakhan: J’ai requ des copies de lettres adressées
au Comité par I’Association canadienne des commissaires
d’école catholique et par le D' Hummerton, généticien,
de I’Université du Manitoba. J’ignore quelles sont les vues
qu’ils souhaitent présenter au Comité. Je me demande si
on a étudié la possibilité d’accéder a leur demande de
comparaitre.

La présidente: Oui, le sous-comité a étudié cette
possibilité ce matin. Il ne nous reste plus de temps, mais
parce que nous n’avions pas regu beaucoup de demandes
de la part de déficients mentaux et parce qu'il s’agit d’un
organisme national, nous avons décidé de recommander
au comité d’inviter ce groupe. Je voudrais qu’on
s’entende. Nous avons quelques possibilités.

La derniére fois que nous nous sommes rencontrés, j’ai
parlé de siéger un jeudi de plus. Nous pensons désormais
que ce ne sera plus nécessaire. L'un des jeudis, soit le 20
mars, soit le 27 mars, on pourrait siéger a 10 heures au
lieu de 11 heures, plutét que de siéger une journée de
plus.

M. Pagtakhan: Madame la présidente, si jappuie ces
deux demandes—et. comme je vous l’ai dit. j'ignore leur
point de vue—c’est parce que nous n’avons pas encore
entendu ce groupe de généticiens. et c’est peut-€tre un
tort du Comité de direction. Une fois que nous aurons
entendu tous nos témoins, l'une des questions sur
lesquelles nous nous pencherons en étudiant ce projet de
loi sera l'aspect génétique de Ia maladie. Je pense,
madame la présidente, que ce serait sage de la part des
membres du Comité d’inviter un groupe de généticiens a
comparaitre.
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[ would like to move, Madam Chairman, that Dr.
Hummerton’s group from the University of Manitoba
faculty of medicine be invited to appear before our
committee. Madam Chairman, [ request that the Catholic
School Trustees’ Association also be invited to appear
before the committee.

I know some of my colleagues are having problems
with my suggestion, but the essence of democracy, Madam
Chairman, is to hear a request.

The Chairman: We have just received a group of
people representing the Catholic Church. I think your
idea on a généciste is a different situation. [ would like to
hear what Mr. Robinson has to say and others. Before we
move for concurrence on the report maybe we could add
one more group. [ am open to suggestions.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Madam Chairman, excuse me, [ am
still not finished. You interrupted me to maintain order
and now you are going to another speaker.

Mr. Robinson: Go ahead, Dr. Pagtakhan.

The Chairman: You go ahead, Dr. Pagtakhan. I would
not dare interrupt you.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Madam Chairman, [ think we have to
have civility in this House and I have always followed
rules of procedure. I would like to explain why the
committee ought to consider the Canadian Catholic
School Trustees’ Association. It is not because they are
Catholic. It is because we not heard many, if any,
educational institutions. Now, this comprises a group of
educators across the country. So [ would like the
committee to consider this request. Thank you.

The Chairman: Under the circumstances, what I will
do is ask that everyone remain here. I do not think we
can have our witnesses wait any longer. We will proceed
with the next witnesses. Once we have finished that, we
will come back to the subcommittee report and make the
decision.

Mr. Robinson: I have one brief comment with respect
to the subcommittee report. One of the major reasons for
having a subcommittee, with representatives of all three
parties on it, is presumably to weigh carefully the
different requests for witnesses who wish to appear before
this committee, to examine which witnesses have
appeared, which ones want to appear, and then to make
some very difficult decisions as to who can appear. Now,
as [ understand it, and correct me if [ am wrong, that is
the process which was undertaken earlier today.

{ certainly have been approached by many respected
national  organizations. My colleague and our

[Traduction|

Je propose donc, madame la présidente, que le groupe
du professeur Hummerton de la faculté de médecine de
I'Université du Manitoba soit invité a comparaitre devant
notre Comité. Je demande également, madame la
présidente, qu'on invite I’Association canadienne des
commissaires d’école catholique a comparaitre devant
nous.

Je pense que certains des collégues voient ma
suggestion d’un mauvais oeil, madame la présidente, mais
dans une démocratie, on entend les demandes.

La présidente: Nous venons d’accueillir un groupe
représentant I'Eglise catholique. Je pense que les
généticiens que vous souhaitez inviter offrent un point de
vue différent. J’aimerais savoir ce qu’en pense M.
Robinson, entre autres. Avant d’adopter le rapport, nous
pourrions peut-étre ajouter un témoin de plus. J’attends
vOs suggestions.

M. Pagtakhan: Pardonnez-moi, madame la présidente,
mais je n’ai pas terminé. Vous m’avez interrompu pour
rétablir l'ordre et vous étes sur le point de donner la
parole a quelqu’un d’autre.

M. Robinson: Allez-y, monsieur Pagtakhan.

La présidente: Allez-y, monsieur Pagtakhan. Je ne me
permettrais pas de vous interrompre.

M. Pagtakhan: Madame la présidente, je pense que dans
cette chambre nous faisons preuve de courtoisie et nous
suivons toujours le Réglement. J’aimerais expliquer au
Comité pour quelle raison nous devrions inviter
I’Association canadienne des commissaires d’école
catholique. Ce n’est pas parce qu’il s’agit d’une association
catholique, mais parce que nous n’avons pas entendu
beaucoup de représentants de maisons d’éducation, si
nous en avons entendu. Or, cette association représente
un groupe d’éducateurs canadiens. J’aimerais donc que le
Comité etudie cette demande. Je vous remercie.

La présidente: Dans les circonstances, je demande a
tout le monde de rester sur place. Je ne pense pas qu'on
puisse faire attendre nos témoins davantage. Nous allons
donc passer au témoin suivant. Quand ce sera terming,
nous reviendrons au rapport du sous-comité et nous
prendrons une décision.

M. Robinson: J’aimerais faire une bréve observation
relativement au rapport du sous-comité. Une des raisons
principales pour lesquelles nous avons créé ce sous-
comité, avec des membres représentant les trois partis,
C’est en principe afin de peser sérieusement les différentes
demandes adressées par des gens qui souhaitent
comparaitre devant le Comité, voir quels sont les témoins
qui ont comparu, ceux qui souhaitent comparaitre et
prendre ensuite des décisions fort difficiles sur le choix a
faire. Si je comprends bien, rectifiez-moi si je fais erreur,
c’est ce que nous avons commencé a faire en début de
journée.

Un grand nombre d’organismes nationaux bien connus
ont pris contact avec moi. C’est le cas également pour ma
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spokesperson, Dawn Black, has been approached by many
of them. But there obviously has to be some give and take
in terms of witnesses. As [ understand it, the
subcommittee did report and I would hope that we would
respect the integrity of that particular process.

The Chairman: The subcommittee came back with one
recommendation, which was to be put to the committee.

Mrs. Bourgault: On a point of order, Madam
Chairman, correct me if [ am wrong, but I thought that
this proposition was going to be made by our colleague
here.

La présidente: Madame Bourgault, nous étions
d’accord pour que M™¢ Greene fasse cette proposition. Il
semblait beaucoup plus facile d’intégrer cela comme une
recommandation dans le rapport du Sous-comité. Cela ne
change absolument rien. On peut tout simplement dire:
Nous ne I’adoptons pas; nous mettons. . .

» 1645
Est-ce que tout le monde est d’accord?

Mr. Pagtakhan: On a point of order. Madam
Chairman, again I would like to have an explanation on a
matter of procedure.

The Chairman: Yes, Dr. Pagtakhan.

Mr. Pagtakhan: The statement of my colleague, Mr.
Robinson, should not go unchallenged, and I would like a
clarification. Which has the ultimate authority to decide,
the mother committee or the subcommittee, which is only
a creation of the mother committee? For the hon.
member to imply we would be destroying the integrity of
the subcommittee were this committee to modify that
recommendation is to admit that this mother committee
will be a rubber stamp on the steering committee and
therefore is higher than the mother committee. That has
never been the intent of procedure.

Mr. Robinson: [ am just saying the mother should
listen with great care to her child.

Mrs. Maheu: Question of privilege, please. May I ask
that we stop this arguing, hear our next witnesses, and get
back to this at the end.

The Chairman: That was my suggestion a little while
ago. Is it agreed we will come back to it?

Some hon. members: Agreed.

The Chairman: Colleagues, [ would like to introduce
the delegation from Physicians for Choice. [ would ask
Dr. Cynthia Carver, who is a private consultant, to
introduce the other members of her delegation.

Dr. Cynthia Carver (Physicians for Choice): Thank
you, Madam Chair. [ would like to introduce Dr. Kathryn
Gauthier, a private practitioner in general practice from

[Translation)

collégue, notre porte-parole, Dawn Black, mais il est
évident que l'on doit faire un choix lorsqu’il s’agit des
témoins a inviter. Si je comprends bien, le sous-comité a
fait son rapport et j'espére que nous suivrons la procédure
en bonne et due forme.

La présidente: Le sous-comité peut présenter une
recommandation qui sera mise aux voix au comité
plénier.

Mme Bourgault: Rappel au Réglement, madame la
présidente. Rectifiez-moi si je fais erreur, mais je pensais
que notre collegue ici présent allait faire cette
proposition.

The Chairman: Mrs. Bourgault, we were in agreement
to let Mrs. Greene make the proposal. It appeared that it
would be much easier to include it as a recommendation
in the report of the sub-committee. That makes absolutely
no difference. We could simply say: We won’t adopt it; we
put. .

Does everybody agree?

M. Pagtakhan: J’invoque le Reéglement. Madame la
présidente, j'aimerais encore avoir une explication sur un
point de procédure.

La présidente: Oui, docteur Pagtakhan.

M. Pagtakhan: Je ne veux pas laisser passer la
déclaration de mon colléegue, M. Robinson, sans
demander un éclaircissement. Qui a le pouvoir final de
décision, le comité principal ou le sous-comité, qui n’est
que la création du premier? Laisser entendre, comme le
fait le député, que nous détruirions I’'intégrité du sous-
comité si ce comité modifiait la recommandation, revient
a admettre que ce comité principal se contentera
d’entériner ce que propose le comité directeur, plagant de
ce fait celui-ci dans une position de supériorité par
rapport au comité principal. Cela n'a jamais été ’objet de
la procédure.

M. Robinson: Tout ce que je dis c’est que la mére
devrait écouter son enfant avec beaucoup d’attention.

Mme Maheu: Question de privilége. Puis-je demander
que nous mettions fin a cette dispute, que nous
entendions les témoins suivants, et que nous revenions
la-dessus a la fin?

La présidente: C'est ce que j’ai proposé tout a I’heure.
Sommes-nous convenus que nous reviendrons plus tard a
cette question?

Des voix: Convenu.

La présidente: Mes chers collégues, permettez-moi de
vous présenter la délégation de Physicians for Choice. Je
demanderais au D" Cynthia Carver, qui est une
consultante privée, de présenter les autres membres de sa
délégation.

Dr Cynthia Carver (Physicians for Choice): Merci,
madame la présidente. Permettez-moi de vous présenter le
D" Kathryn Gauthier, médecin généraliste d’Ottawa, et le
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Ottawa, and Dr. Frances Kilbertus, who is also a general
practitioner in a community health centre here in
Ottawa. | was a family practitioner for ten years in
Toronto, and for the last five have been in public health. [
suppose the unique thing about us—and I will go a little
further into this about our organization—is that we are
physicians who are on the ground, as it were, where the
action is taking place, and who have to deal with the
situation that has surrounded abortion before, during, and
after the last abortion law.

[ had a telephone call about a week ago from the
assistant to some parliamentarian—I do not know whether
it was one of you—asking about the distinction between
our group and the Canadian Medical Association or the
Physicians for Life. I wanted to make it perfectly clear at
the time that we are indeed very different.

= 1650

The Canadian Medical Association of course is a very
large and general organization that represents most if not
all doctors in Canada for a whole host of purposes, not
the least of which is as a bargaining agent in the
individual provincial organizations, and it does a whole
host of other things. It also has mutual funds and
insurance and so on.

The two other organizations are quite different in that
they are single-issue organizations. In no way can I or
would [ speak for the Doctors for Life, but my
presumption—I was not here when they presented—is
that they propose a pro-life position, and ours is a pro-
choice position.

What is unique about our organization is that it is an
informal organization with no resources which has come
together in a variety of cities as groups and as individuals
across Canada, basically as physicians who are involved
with women at the community level and have faced, face
to face, the difficulties involved in obtaining abortions in
Canada. That is what we all do. It is not that some of us
are neuro-surgeons who have a position about abortion or
about women or about choice. So we are quite different.

We do not know how many we are. We know that
there are organizations of physicians like ourselves in
Vancouver, Montreal, Toronto, Hamilton, and Ottawa
and individual members across the country, but we
cannot offer you a number. We cannot say we are 125,000
or 27,000 or anything else. But we are people who are
committed to health and to women’s right to choose.

The brief we have presented to you takes great
exception to the law being proposed, and the first point
we would like to make is that there seems to be a general

[Traduction]

D" Frances Kilbertus, également généraliste, qui travaille
dans un centre d’hygiéne collective a Ottawa. J'étais
médecin de famille pendant dix ans a Toronto, et voici
cinq années que je travaille dans le domaine de la santé
publique. Je suppose que ce qui fait notre originalité—je
vous parlerai tout a I’heure un peu plus en détail de notre
organisation—c’est que nous sommes des médecins qui
sont, si je puis m’exprimer ainsi, au premiéres loges, et
que nous devons faire face a la situation entourant
I'avortement avant, pendant et aprés l’adoption de la
dernieére loi sur la question.

Jai requ un coup de téléphone, il y a environ une
semaine, de l’adjoint d’'un parlementaire—je ne sais pas
s’il s’agissait de l'un d’entre vous—qui voulait savoir
quelle était la différence entre notre groupe et
I’Association médicale canadienne ou les Physicians for
Life. J’ai tenu a bien préciser que notre organisation était
effectivement tout a fait différente.

L’Association médicale canadienne est, bien entendu,
une trés grande organisation qui représente la plupart,
pour ne pas dire la totalité, des médecins canadiens, et
cela, a toutes sortes de fins; parmi bien d’autres activités,
une de ses taches les plus importantes consiste a jouer le
role d’agent négociateur au sein des organisations
provinciales. L’association gére également un fonds
commun de placement et un régime d’assurance, etc.

Les deux autres organisations sont fort différentes en ce
sens qu’elles ont une vocation unique. Je ne me
permettrai certainement pas de parler au nom de Doctors
for Life, mais je crois—je n’étais pas présente lorsqu’ils
ont comparu—qu'’ils sont pro-vie, alors que nous sommes
pro-choix.

Ce qui fait l'originalité de notre organisation c’est
qu’elle n’a pas de caractére officiel, qu'elle n’a pas de
ressources, et qu’elle est représentée par des groupes et des
individus dans diverses villes du Canada; ce sont
essentiellement des médecins qui soignent des femmes au
niveau communautaire et qui ont ¢été directement
confrontés aux difficultés que celles-ci éprouvent a se faire
avorter au Canada. C’est ce que nous faisons tous. Parmi
nous, il n’y a pas de neurochirurgiens qui ont un avis sur
I’avortement, sur les femmes, ou sur le choix. Nous
sommes donc tout a fait différents.

Nous ne savons pas combien nous sommes. Nous
savons qu’il existe des organisations de médecins comme
nous a Vancouver, a Montréal, a Toronto, 2 Hamilton
ainsi qu'a Ottawa et qu'il y a également des membres
individuels dans tout le pays, mais nous ne pouvons pas
vous donner de chiffres précis. Nous sommes incapables
de vous dire si nous sommes 125,000 ou 27,000 ou autre
chose. Mais notre souci premier est la santé et le droit des
femmes de choisir.

Le mémoire que nous avons soumis est trés critique du
projet de loi, et la premiére remarque que nous tenons a
faire est que le consensus général—la-dessus, nous
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consensus—and this, by the way, is one point on which I
think we disagree with the CMA—that the decision to
have an abortion comes about as a result of a discussion
between a woman and her doctor.

The decision to have an abortion is actually two
decisions. The first of those decisions is the woman’s
decision. She does not need, and in most cases has really
no use for, a doctor’s input to make that decision. She
feels either she can or she cannot have a child at this
particular time in her life. In most cases, if a woman has a
doctor who is a particularly valued friend, ally, and so on,
she may go for advice or for counsel and so on, but the
decision ultimately is hers.

There is, however, a second decision, and that is very
important, especially with regard to the law being
proposed, and that is that somebody has to agree to
perform that abortion. That clearly is the physician’s
decision.

So there are indeed two decisions involved here. The
analogy can be made that if I have to have work done on
my house then I make the decision to have the work
done, but I have to contract with somebody to do it or it
is not going to be done.

This law, as I think actually was pointed out by the
previous group, is not going to affect the decision of a
woman that she needs to have or wants to have an
abortion. It may very well alter the number of abortions
being done if it is passed, because it will reduce access,
but I will get to that a little later on.

In other words, it is a personal decision. It is not just a
socio-economic decision. To say that something is just
socio-economic is really to minimize the effect and
importance of socio-economic decisions. It is often said
that something like 60% to 70% of all patients who come
to a general practitioner’s office have at the basis of their
complaint stress or tension or other psychosomatic or
psychogenic causes for their illness. We all know and we
all accept that stress, be it on the job or in the family, can
cause headaches, can cause backaches, can cause stomach
aches, can cause muscle cramps, can make diseases worse,
can make asthma worse, and so on and so forth. We know
that stress causes real physical illness as well as
psychological illness.

Now, if you are a woman who is pregnant with a child,
and you are contemplating 20 years of this relationship in
the future, and you know that you are not in a position,
financially, psychologically, educationally, emotionally,
whatever, to give the very best kind of life to that child,
you are going to be stressed. You are going to be under
tension, and there is absolutely no doubt in my mind that
this is going to affect your health.

| Translation|

sommes, je crois, en désaccord avec 'AMC—est que la
décision de se faire avorter se prend aprés un entretien
entre une femme et son médecin.

Cette décision est, en fait, double. La premiere, est celle
de la femme elle-méme. Elle n’a pas besoin de I’avis d’un
médecin pour prendre une telle décision, et dans la
plupart des cas un tel avis est inutile. Cela revient
simplement au fait qu'a ce moment précis de sa vie, elle
estime qu’elle peut avoir un enfant, ou au contraire,
qu’elle ne le peut pas. Dans la plupart des cas, si une
femme a un médecin qu’elle considére comme un ami ou
un allié précieux, elle peut aller lui demander conseil,
mais en derniére analyse, la décision lui appartient.

Il y a cependant une seconde décision a prendre, qui
est trés importante, en particulier compte tenu du projet
de loi, et c’est la suivante: il faut que quelqu’un soit
d’accord pour effectuer cet avortement. Manifestement,
c’est le médecin qui décide.

Nous avons donc bien affaire 2 deux décisions. C’est un
peu comme lorsque j’ai des travaux a faire chez moi; je
décide qu’ils doivent étre faits, mais il faut ensuite que je
puisse engager quelqu’un, sans quoi les travaux ne se
feront pas.

Comme I’a fait remarquer, je crois, le groupe
précédent, cette loi n’aura aucune influence sur la
décision d’une femme qui consideére qu’elle a besoin d’un
avortement ou qu’elle en veut un. Si le projet de loi est
adopté, il se peut fort bien que cela change le nombre des
avortements, parce que l’accés a un médecin consentant
sera plus difficile, mais je reviendrai sur ce point un peu
plus tard.

En d’autres termes, il s’agit d’une décision personnelle.
Ce n’est pas simplement une décision socio-économique.
Dire qu’elle n'est que cela minimise en fait 'effet et
I'importance des décisions socio-économiques. On dit
souvent qu’entre 60 et 70 p. 100 des malades qui se
présentent au cabinet d’un médecin généraliste souffrent
au départ de stress ou de tension ou d’autres problémes
psychosomatiques ou psychogéniques qui sont a l'origine
de leur maladie. Nous savons tous, et nous l’acceptons,
que le stress, que ce soit au travail ou au sein de la
famille, peut causer des maux de téte, des douleurs dans le
dos, des maux d’estomac, des crampes musculaires; qu’il
peut aggraver les maladies, 1’asthme, etc. Nous savons que
le stress peut causer des troubles physiques aussi bien que
psychologiques.

Eh bien, si vous étes enceinte, que vous songez au 20
années de responsabilités que cela représente, et que vous
savez que, financierement, psychologiquement,
émotionnellement, ou encore sur le plan éducatif ou
autre, vous n’étes pas en mesure d’assurer une excellente
qualité de vie a cet enfant, vous allez étre stressée. Vous
allez étre tendue, et il est absolument indiscutable, 3 mon
avis, que cela influera sur votre santé.
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On a note of levity, I could say that being on this
committee is affecting your health, because first of all
there is obviously the stress and tension involved, but
secondly are you aware that hemorrhoids from sitting all
this time, varicose veins, anything can affect your health.
It is not a light-minded thing to say. Any honest physician
will say that virtually anything can affect your health, so
when I say the health of the woman coming to me is
being affected by this pregnancy, I am not lying. I am not
making something up to get around a law. It is true.

However, many other physicians will interpret things
quite differently, and if there is a threat of criminal
sanction and jail, [ would venture to say there will be very
different interpretations. The arguments made both by
ourselves and by the Canadian Medical Association is that
physicians will indeed want psychological assessments,
will want to cover their behinds, because they will want to
make sure they are not sued.

The reality of the situation is—I do not know if you are
aware of the situation in the United States at the present
time, but now practice insurance for obstetricians, for
example, is in the neighbourhood of $100,000 a year. That
does something in terms of the incomes these people have
to generate in order to cover the cost of the insurance.
Well, if we know we have a fairly good chance of being
taken to court, with the attendant effects on our
reputations, with the stress that will be encountered, with
the amount of time that will be lost, a great many
physicians are going to say they can do without it, they
are not going to provide abortions any more, it is not
worth it any more for them to do.

The day this law was promulgated—not as a law, but
the bill was promulgated—I heard one of the lawyers for
the Right to Life, one of the pro-life organizations, say on
television that they were going to take them to court, and
they will. It is not an idle threat; this really is, in part, the
raison d’étre of the pro-life groups.

So there are going to be court actions. Doctors are
going to be intimidated. I am not sure to what extent
women will be intimidated, because as people have said
before, they can go to the United States. They can seek
somebody who will do the procedure. However, as always
in these kinds of situations, that is okay for women like
me and probably women like you, who can afford to fly
to wherever it can be done.

And always there will be a be a non-equitable effect.
The effect will be that those women from the poor
provinces, from the more rural locations, from the places
where there are fewer doctors performing abortions, as
always, will get it. They are the ones who will not be able

| Traduction|

Si je puis me permettre de plaisanter un peu, je dirais
que le fait d’appartenir a ce Comité influe sur votre santé;
tout d’abord cela crée manifestement un certain stress et
une certaine tension, mais savez-vous aussi qu'en passsant
tant de temps assis, vous risquez des hémorroides et des
varices? En fait, tout peut avoir une influence sur la santé
et je ne dis pas cela a la légére. Tout médecin digne de ce
nom vous dira que pratiquement tout peut influer sur
votre santé et c’est pourquoi, lorsque je dis que la santé de
la femme qui vient me voir est affectée par sa grossesse, je
ne mens pas. Je n’invente pas la quelque chose pour
€luder une loi. C’est vrai.

Cependant, beaucoup d’autres médecins interpréteront
les choses tout a fait différemment, et si le risque d’une
sanction criminelle et de 'emprisonnement existe, je suis
bien certaine qu’il y aura des interprétations tres
différentes. Les arguments présentés par nous comme par
I’Association médicale canadienne sont que les médecins
exigeront effectivement des évaluations psychologiques,
qu’ils voudront couvrir leurs arriéres, car ils voudront
étre bien certains de ne pas étre poursuivis en justice.

La situation réelle est la suivante. .. Je ne sais pas si
vous savez ce qu’elle est actuellement aux Etats-Unis, mais
I’assurance professionnelle pour les obstétriciens, par
exemple, est de 'ordre de 100,000% par an. Cela oblige les
gens a avoir un revenu considérable pour couvrir le cout
d’une telle assurance. Eh bien, si nous savons que nous
courons un risque assez sérieux d’étre trainés devant les
tribunaux, avec toutes les conséquences que cela peut
avoir sur notre réputation, avec le stress que cela créera,
avec le temps perdu, beaucoup de médecins vont dire
qu’ils peuvent s’en passer, qu'ils ne vont plus pratiquer
d’avortement que cela leur couterait trop cher.

Le jour ou cette loi a été déposée. .. je veux dire le
projet de loi. .. j’ai entendu un des avocats de Droit a |
vie, qui est une des organisations pro-vie, déclarer ala
télévision qu’ils allaient les trainer devant les tribunaux,
et ils le feront effectivement. Ce n’est pas une menace en
l'air. C'est, en partie, la «raison d’étre» des groupes pro-
vie.

Il va donc y avoir des procés. Cela va intimider certains
médecins. Je ne sais pas dans quelle mesure cela aura le
méme effet sur les femmes, car, comme on l'a déja dit,
elles peuvent toujours aller aux Etats-Unis. Elles peuvent
chercher quelqu'un qui pratiquera I’avortement.
Cependant, comme c'est toujours le cas dans ce genre de
situation, c’est bien beau, mais il faut que ce soit des
femmes comme moi et probablement comme vous, qui
ont les moyens de prendre l'avion pour aller se faire
avorter.

Comme toujours, I'équité ne sera pas respectée. Les
femmes des provinces pauvres. celles des zones rurales, les
endroits ou il y a le moins de médecins qui pratiquent
l'avortement, seront, comme toujours, les victimes. Ce
seront celles-la qui ne pourront pas obtenir un
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to obtain an abortion. This law cannot be applied in a just
or equitable fashion. It just cannot be.

There is another point that is not actually mentioned
in the brief. but [ would like to raise it and perhaps
somebody could explain something to me about it
afterwards when you do your speaking. Clause 3, under
“Interpretations”, says

inducing an abortion does not include using a drug,
device, or other means on a female person that is likely
to prevent implantation of a fertilized ovum.

I find this a little bit problematic as well, because I am
not entirely sure, for example, when the new drug
RU-486 works or could work, or some other new drug or
some other procedure. Menstrual extractions done the day
after a missed period—I am not sure whether there has
been implantation or not, and I am not sure anybody
knows, so indeed the whole question of the definition of
abortion—which I can only guess was defined thusly to
avoid hitting the IUD as an abortifacient—could be
problematic from a legal point of view, maybe not today,
but maybe two years from now, were this law to to be
implemented.

My feeling is that the way the law is now written says
anything that is a threat to health could be used to justify
an abortion. This is a publication you may be familiar
with. It comes out of the Department of Health and
Welfare Canada, and was published a couple of years ago
when the Hon. Mr. Jake Epp was minister. It gives you
some of the Government of Canada’s perception of
health. At one time we just said you were healthy if you
were not sick, and sick was physically sick. But some
years ago the World Health Organization and then the
Government of Canada defined health as the state of
complete—complete—physical, mental, and social well-
being. Social well-being is included in it.

- 1700

Then a new perspective on the health of Canadians
decided in 1974 that health was influenced by a broad
range of factors, including biology, lifestyle, health care
services, social environment, physical environment and so
on. But this is even more enlightened and will make even
more trouble for the carrying-out of this law, should it
ever be implemented. It says:

Today we are working with a concept which portrays
health as a part of everyday living, an essential
dimension of the quality of our lives.

In this context, quality of life implies the opportunity to
make choices and to gain satisfaction from living. Health

[Translation)
avortement. Cette loi ne peut pas étre appliquée de
maniére juste et équitable. C'est tout simplement
impossible.

Je voulais également soulever un autre point qui n’est
pas mentionné dans notre mémoire; peut-€tre que
quelqu'un pourra me donner une explication tout a
I’heure. A I’article 3, sous «Interprétation», on lit

l'utilisation d’un médicament, dispositif ou autre
moyen susceptible d’empécher I'implantation de I'oeuf
fécondé ne constitue pas un acte de nature a provoquer
un avortement.

Je trouve cela un peu problématique car je ne suis pas
absolument certaine, par exemple, du moment ou le
RU-486, le nouveau produit, fonctionne ou pourrait
fonctionner, pas plus que tout autre nouveau médicament
ou dispositif. Quant aux extractions effectuées le
lendemain de régles manquées. . . je ne suis pas sure qu’il
y ait eu implantation, et je ne suis pas sire non plus que
quelqu’un le sache, si bien que tout ce qui entoure la
définition de ’avortement. . . définition qui a été adoptée,
je l'imagine, pour éviter que le stérilet soit considéré
comme un abortif. .. pourrait poser des problemes du
point de vue juridique, peut-étre pas aujourd’hui, mais
peut-étre dans deux ans, si le projet de loi est adopté.

Jai limpression que la loi, telle qu’elle est
actuellement rédigée, signifie que tout ce qui constitue
une menace pour la santé pourrait étre utilis€é pour
justifier un avortement. Voici une publication que vous
connaissez peut-étre. Elle vient du ministére fédéral de la
Santé et du Bien-étre social et a été publiée il y a environ
deux ans, lorsque I’honorable Jake Epp était le ministre.
Elle vous donne un apergu de la maniére dont le
gouvernement du Canada congoit la santé. A une époque
on disait tout simplement qu’on était en bonne santé
lorsqu’on n’était pas malade et qu’on ne pouvait étre
malade que physiquement. Mais il y a quelques années,
’Organisation mondiale de la santé puis le gouvernement
du Canada ont défini la santé comme un état de bien-étre
complet. . . je dis bien complet. .. physique, mental et
social. Le bien-étre social est donc inclus la-dedans.

Puis, en 1974, on a adopté un nouveau point de vue:
on a déclaré que la santé était influencée par toute une
gamme de facteurs dont la biologie, le mode de vie, les
services de santé, I’environnement social, I’environnement
physique, etc. Mais cette brochure présente un point de
vue encore plus éclairé, ce qui veut dire que cela
compliquera encore plus I'application de cette loi, si elle
est jamais adoptée. Je lis:

Aujourd’hui, nous nous appuyons sur un concept qui
représente la santé comme un élément de la vie
quotidienne, une dimension essentielle de notre qualité
de vie,

Dans un tel contexte, la qualité de vie suppose la
possibilité de faire des choix et de tirer des satisfactions de
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is thus envisaged as a resource that gives people the ability
to manage and even change their surroundings. This view
of health recognizes freedom of choice and emphasizes
the role of individuals and of the community in defining
health.

In other words, the Government of Canada has, in at
least one of its major publications, gone on record as
recognizing an even broader definition of health than I, as
a physician, would be likely to use in an office setting.
This will be highly problematic in terms of interpretations
of the bill and of access.

The next point made in our brief is that the proposed
law does nothing to redress the uneven and inadequate
access to abortion across the country. There is nothing in
the law that will make access better in places where it
does not now exist. One can say that perhaps that is not
necessarily the purpose of the act, and I understand it is
not, but the Canada Health Act does say that:

It is hereby declared that the primary objective of the
Canadian health care policy is to protect, promote and
restore the physical and mental well-being of residents
of Canada and to facilitate reasonable access to health
services without financial or other barriers.

It essentially says we must provide for insured health
services on uniform terms and conditions under this act.
Surely if the definitions of health and hence of
impairment of or hazard to health differ not only across
the country but in the room, it will be impossible to
provide services on uniform terms and conditions or on a
basis that does not impede or preclude, directly or
indirectly, reasonable access by insured persons.

If not literally, then certainly in the day-to-day sense,
this law will make it harder for the Canada Health Act to
be applied—certainly with regard to this procedure,
which is recognized as a medical act.

Lastly, the proposed law does nothing to reduce the
need for abortion.

Dr. Kathryn Gauthier (Physicians for Choice): [ will
speak to that point. One of the issues that should be more
greatly emphasized is that abortion is an unfortunate
event. We, as physicians, and most members of the public
would like to reduce the need for abortion and we think a
bill should address that aspect.

There should also be much more support of family
services, which could make a big difference in the future.
We see women every day in our practices who feel they
are forced to make a decision to abort when if they knew
good infant day care was available they might choose to
continue their pregnancy. That is a particularly
heartbreaking decision and a lot of us in general practice
see this situation on a regular basis, even in a big city like
Ottawa.

[Traduction)

I'existence. La santé est donc considérée comme une
ressource qui permet aux gens de contrdler et méme de
modifier ce qui les entoure. Cette interprétation de la
santé reconnait la liberté de choix et souligne le role des
individus et de la collectivité dans sa définition.

En d’autres termes, le gouvernement du Canada a, du
moins dans une de ses publications les plus importantes,
officiellement reconnu une définition encore plus large
de la santé que je n’en utiliserais probablement moi-
méme dans mon propre cabinet de médecin. Les
interprétations du projet de loi et les possibilités d’acces
seront extrémement problématiques.

Nous indiquons également dans notre mémoire que ce
projet de loi ne fait rien pour corriger les inégalités et les
insuffisances d’accés a I’avortement dans le pays. Il n’y a
rien dans le projet de loi qui le faciliterait dans les
endroits ou il n’existe pas a I’heure actuelle. Certes, on
pourrait dire que ce n’est peut-étre pas la I'objet de la loi,
j’en conviens, mais la loi canadienne sur la santé précise
bien ceci:

La politique canadienne de la santé a pour premier
objectif de protéger de favoriser et d’améliorer le
bien-étre physique et mental des habitants du Canada et
de faciliter un acceés satisfaisant aux soins de santé, sans
obstacle d’ordre financier ou autre.

Cela revient a dire que nous devons fournir des
services de santé assurés dans des conditions uniformes. Il
est certain que si les définitions de la santé et, du méme
coup, de son affaiblissement ou des dangers pour celle-ci
difféerent non seulement a travers le pays mais dans une
méme piéce, il sera impossible de fournir des services
uniformes ou de les assurer d’'une maniére qui ne géne ni
n’empéche, directement ou indirectement, les personnes
assurées d’avoir un acces raisonnable a ces services.

Sinon litéralement, du moins dans la pratique
quotidienne, il est certain que cette loi rendra plus
difficile I'application de la Loi canadienne sur la santé—
en particulier en ce qui concerne cette procédure qui est
considérée comme un acte médical.

Enfin, la loi proposée ne fait rien pour rendre les
avortements moins nécessaires.

Dr Kathryn Gauthier (Physicians for Choice): Je
voudrais parler de ce point. Une des choses qu’il faudrait
le plus souligner c’est que l’avortement constitue un
événement regrettable. Nous autres médecins, ainsi que la
plupart des membres du public, souhaiteraient voir
réduire la nécessité des avortements et nous considérons
qu’un projet de loi devrait traiter de cette question.

On devrait également pouvoir bénéficier de meilleurs
services aux familles; ceci pourrait changer bien des
choses a I’avenir. Chaque jour, nous recevons des femmes
qui se considérent obligées de recourir a l’avortement
alors que si elles savaient qu’il existait une bonne creche
pour nourrissons, elles décideraient peut-étre de mener
décision

leur grossesse a terme. Clest la une
particulierement déchirante et une situation que
beaucoup de médecins généralistes rencontrent
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I do not have up-to-date figures, but I know it costs at
least $200 a week for infant day care and probably closer
to $250, if you can get a place in a good institutional day
care centre or in good home day care, and places in those
facilities are very limited. If you are a 30-year-old, well-
educated woman with lots of money, you can do it. But if
you are 19 it is almost impossible.

So we would like to see a lot more attention to this
whole issue of preventing the need for abortions. I think
there will always be failure of birth control, although we
hope that could be limited, but people might make
different choices if more services were available.

Dr. Carver: I would just like to conclude by saying that
in some respects I see this proposed law as a cop-out,
because it passes the responsibility of judgment to the
physician and does not allow the woman to make the
judgment, which is where I think it should lie. It is
putting it into the Criminal Code, which criminalizes the
act and the people involved in the act.

= 1709

In only the very smallest proportion of cases—and you
know this and I know it—is there some kind of gross
violation of a moral code where a fetus that is viable, for
example, is aborted or where a woman aborts for no
reason under the sun. This happens very, very rarely. This
is just absolute nonsense. To catch these few cases, to put
these people in jail, you are proposing to put into law
something that makes all women know they are dealing
with a criminal act except in certain circumstances, if
they can prove it will affect their health. Similarly, it
means all doctors are involved in a criminal act unless
they firmly believe that in their constructive thinking this
particular woman has a threat to her health.

What bothers me personally about it most is that [ see
it as a part of a continuum that has existed throughout my
- reproductive life, certainly. I can remember that when I
was 21 years old and engaged and sought contraception it
was illegal, and I had to find an underground clinic in
New York City, where [ was living at the time, in order to
get what was then available, the diaphragm. When I had
two children and did not want to have a third too close
and was living in Boston, it was illegal once again, and
once again there was a physician who essentially put his
credibility and his freedom on the line by writing me a
prescription for the oral contraceptive pill. That was
illegal at that time.

|Translation)|
réguliérement, méme dans une grande ville comme
Ottawa.

Je n’ai pas les tout derniers chiffres, mais je sais que la
garde d'un nourisson coute au moins 2003 par semaine et
le chiffre est probablement plus proche de 2503, a
supposer que vous trouviez une place dans une bonne
garderie ou que vous puissiez bénéficier d’'un bon service
de garde a domicile, services qui sont trés limités. Si vous
avez 30 ans, un bon niveau d’instruction et beaucoup
d’argent, c’est certes possible. Mais si vous avez 19 ans,
c’est presque impossible.

Nous souhaiterions donc que l'on accorde beaucoup
plus d’attention aux moyens qui permettraient de réduire
la nécessité de recourir a l'avortement. Le contrdle des
naissances ne sera jamais infaillible, méme si nous
aimerions qu’il n’y ait pas «d’accidents», mais les gens
pourraient prendre des décisions différentes s’il y avait
plus de services.

Dr Carver: Je concluerai simplement en disant qu’'a
certains égards je considere que ce projet de loi est une
fagon d’esquiver le probleme, car il transfere la
responsabilité de la décision au médecin et ne permet pas
a la femme d’en prendre une, alors qu'a mon avis, c’est a
elle de décider. C’est le fait de mettre cet acte dans le
Code criminel qui en fait un crime et les gens concernés,
des criminels.

Ce n’est que dans des cas extrémement graves—vous le
savez et je le sais—qu’il s’agit d'une violation évidente
d’un code moral, comme par exemple lorsqu’on avorte
un foetus viable ou lorsqu'une femme décide de se faire
avorter sans aucune raison valable. Cela arrive trés, trés
rarement. Il est tout a fait absurde que pour pouvoir
mettre ces quelques coupables en prison, vous vous
proposiez par une telle loi de faire savoir a toutes les
femmes qu’elles commettent 1a un acte criminel sauf en
certaines circonstances, si elles peuvent prouver que leur
santé est menacée. Cela signifie également que tous les
médecins se trouvent associés a un acte criminel a moins
qu’ils ne réussissent vraiment a se convaincre eux-meémes
que la santé de certaines femmes se trouve menacée.

Ce qui me déplait le plus dans tout cela c’est que j'y
vois un élément persistant de toute la période fertile de
ma vie. Je me souviens que quand javais 21 ans, que
j’étais fiancée et que je cherchais a trouver des moyens de
contraception, ceux-ci étaient illégaux. et javais été
obligée de trouver une clinique clandestine a New York,
ou je vivais a I’époque, pour obtenir un diaphragme, seul
moyen disponible. Lorsque jai eu deux enfants, je ne
voulais pas en avoir un troisiéme trop rapproché; je vivais
alors a Boston, et encore une fois la contraception était
illégale et ce fut une nouvelle fois un médecin qui voulut
bien risquer sa crédibilité et sa liberté en me donnant une
ordonnance pour me permettre d’obtenir la pilule. Celle-
ci était illégale a I’époque.
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Then a few years ago, when I was first in practice, if a
woman came to me to seek an abortion, no matter how
tragic the situation, I had to send her to a committee
somewhere. I had to send her to a clinic. The kind of
treatment she got was really scandalous at the time. There
were not enough services—and I was in Toronto at the
time, we are not talking about northern Ontario or Prince
Edward Island—and the services they received were not
very nice. It was really a very unpleasant situation.

The other side of that coin was that the health
insurance system did not pay me to counsel these women
for contraception, either. We got $6 to pay for an office
visit, whether we looked at a sore throat for two minutes
or whether we gave one hour’s worth of counselling on
the five or six different available methods of contraception
and the pros and cons and risks and benefits of each.

I understand what you are trying to do. You are trying
to get some kind of middle way, and I think there is some
merit in that, but I do not think this is the way to do it. In
order to catch a few flagrant violators you are really
putting all women and all physicians in a virtually
untenable situation. Thank you very much.

Mr. Pagtakhan: I thank you, as colleagues and as a
group, for appearing before us. To the best of my ability, I
would like to focus on the medical aspects on which you
are experts and about which I share an understanding.

I was a family practitioner, decided to be a
pediatrician, went to physiology and studied the initiation
of breathing, and ultimately decided to be a
parliamentarian. Now I am faced with this difficult issue,
and it is a difficult issue.

[ agree with the concept and with the broad definition
of health. I do not think I will dispute and argue with you
on that point. The question I am trying to resolve in my
mind as [ contribute my share to the deliberations of this
committee is: what is the most appropriate treatment for a
given medical condition? Is that still a valid principle?
What is the appropriate treatment for a given medical
condition?

Dr. Carver: [s that a question?

Mr. Pagtakhan:{ Yes, is that still a valid medical
principle?

Dr. Carver: What is the condition?

‘Mr. Pagtakhan: My question is is it still a valid medical
principle to ask the question—

Dr. Carver: Yes, it is.

Mr. Pagtakhan: —what is the most

: appropriate
treatment for a given medical condition?

347543

[Traduction)

I1 y a quelques années, au début de ma pratique, si une
femme venait me voir pour se faire avorter, si tragique
que fat la situation, j’€tais obligée de la renvoyer a un
comité quelque part. J’étais contrainte de l’envoyer dans
une clinique. En ce temps-la, le genre de traitement
qu’elle y recevait était vraiment scandaleux. Il n'y avait
pas suffisamment de services—pourtant j'étais alors a
Toronto; nous ne parlons donc pas du nord de [’Ontario
ou de I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard—et les services fournis a
ces femmes ne valaient pas grand-chose. C’était vraiment
une situation trés désagréable.

En plus, le régime d’assurance-maladie ne me payait
pas plus lorsque je conseillais ces femmes sur des mesures
contraceptives. Nous étions payées six dollars la visite, que
nous consacrions deux minutes a examiner quelqu’un qui
avait mal a la gorge ou une heure a donner des conseils
sur les cinq ou six différentes méthodes de contraception
existantes et sur les avantages et les inconvénients de
chacune d’entre elles.

Je comprends fort bien ce que vous essayez de faire.
Vous essayez de trouver une solution intermédiaire, ce
qui n’est pas sans mérite, mais je ne pense pas que ce soit
ainsi que vous devriez procéder. Pour pouvoir attraper
quelques personnes coupables d’infractions flagrantes,
vous placez en réalité toutes les femmes et tous les
médecins dans une situation presque intenable. Je vous
remercie.

M. Pagtakhan: Je vous remercie, en tant que collégues
et que groupe, d’avoir bien voulu comparaitre devant
nous. Je vais faire de mon mieux pour m’en tenir aux
aspects médicaux de la question, pour lesquels vous étes
compétents et que je comprends moi-méme.

J’étais médecin de famille et j'ai un jour décidé de
devenir pédiatre; je me suis spécialisé dans la physiologie
et I’étude de la respiration et, en fin de compte, j'ai décidé
de devenir député. Et me revoila confronté a ce difficile
probléme, car il I'est effectivement.

Je suis d’accord avec la définition générale de la santé.
Je n’ai pas l'intention de vous reprendre la-dessus. La
question que j'essaie de régler dans mon esprit, en
participant aux délibérations de ce Comité, est la suivante:
quel est le traitement le plus approprié pour un état
médical déterminé? Ce principe est-il toujours valide?
Quel est le traitement approprié pour un état médical
déterminé?

Dr Carver: Est-ce 1a une question?

M. Pagtakhan: Oui, est-ce toujours un principe médical
valable?

Dr Carver: De quel état s’agit-il?

M. Pagtakhan: Ce que je veux savoir c'est si cela
demeure toujours un principe médical valide de poser la
question—

Dr Carver: Oui, ga l'est.

M. Pagtakhan: —quel est le traitement
approprié pour un état médical donné?

le plus



14 : 66 Bill C-43 13-3-1990

[Text|

Dr. Frances Kilbertus (Physicians for Choice): That is a
basic principle all the time when you deal with any
medical problem, any patient that presents to you. In
most cases now and as medical technology advances, there
are more and more options that would be considered as
appropriate treatment. Sometimes there is no most
appropriate treatment. The role of the physician is then to
discuss the options with the patient and come to an
agreement on what would be the most appropriate
treatment for that particular person.
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Mr. Pagtakhan: I am glad you said the physician should
discuss with the patient what is most appropriate. The
earlier submission of your group is that this ought to be a
decision by the woman alone and that the physician must
agree.

Dr. Carver: Can [ just—
Mr. Pagtakhan: Did I hear you say that?

Dr. Carver: Yes, but I think it is important to make the
distinction. I would not argue with you about a “medical
condition”. But I do not regard pregnancy as a medical
condition. I certainly do not regard an unwanted
pregnancy as a medical condition.

Mr. Pagtakhan: What is it?

Dr. Carver: If I were having palpitations, shall we say,
then I would certainly go to my doctor and ask what my
doctor thought I might have—

Mr. Pagtakhan: If [ may interrupt you, of course my
teaching has been that pregnancy is a medical condition.

Dr. Carver: We would disagree.

Mr. Pagtakhan: I would like to ask the other
colleagues.

Dr. Kilbertus: As a medical practitioner who deals in
obstetrics as well, I would say a normal healthy pregnancy
is not a medical condition. It is a state of health.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Yes; it is still medical health.

Dr. Kilbertus: It is not—

Mr. Pagtakhan: I think we have to make a distinction
between illness and a healthy medical condition.

Dr. Kilbertus: I think you were discussing a healthy
physiological condition. You cannot label it as an illness.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Call it physiological; let us agree. It is a
healthy physiological condition.

Dr. Carver: Right, okay.
Mr. Pagtakhan: I have no problem with that.
Dr. Kilbertus: Then we agree.

[Translation)

Dr Frances Kilbertus (Physicians for Choice): Il s’agit
la d’un principe fondamental, quel que soit le probléme
médical, quel que soit le malade qui se présente & vous.
Dans la plupart des cas aujourd’hui, au fur et a mesure
des progrés de la technologie médicale, il y a de plus en
plus d’options qui s’offrent et qui peuvent étre considérées
comme des traitements appropriés. Il arrive parfois qu’il
n’y ait pas de traitement plus approprié que les autres. Le
role du médecin est alors de discuter des diverses options
avec son malade et de se mettre d’accord avec lui sur ce
qui serait le traitement le plus approprié.

M. Pagtakhan: Je suis heureux de vous entendre dire
que le médecin doit discuter avec le malade du traitement
le plus approprié. Pourtant, votre groupe nous a dit tout a
I’heure que cette décision devrait étre uniquement prise
par la femme et que le médecin devait s’y soumettre.

Dr Carver: Puis-je—
M. Pagtakhan: C’est bien ce que vous avez dit, n’est-ce
pas?

Dr Carver: Oui, mais je crois qu’il est important de
faire une distinction. Je suis d’accord avec vous, tant qu’il
s’agit d’'un «état médical». Mais je ne considere pas que la
grossesse en soit un. Je ne considére absolument pas une
grossesse non désirée comme un état médical.

M. Pagtakhan: Qu’est-il donc?

Dr Carver: Si j'avais des palpitations, par exemple,
j’irais certainement voir mon médecin pour lui demander
s’il pense que j’ai peut-étre—

M. Pagtakhan: Excusez-moi de vous interrompre, mais
lorsque j’ai fait mes études la grossesse était toujours
considérée comme un état médical.

Dr Carver: Eh bien, nous ne sommes pas d’accord.

M. Pagtakhan: J’aimerais poser la méme question a vos
autres collégues.

Dr Kilbertus: En tant que practicienne et
obstétricienne, je dirais qu’une grossesse normale n’est pas
un état médical. C’est un état de santé.

M. Pagtakhan: Oui; mais ¢a reléve toujours de la
médecine.

Dr Kilbertus: Ce n’est pas—

M. Pagtakhan: Je crois qu’il faut faire une distinction
entre la maladie et un état médical sain.

Dr Kilbertus: Je crois que ce dont nous parlons, c’est
d’un état physiologique sain. Vous ne pouvez pas dire
qu'il s’agit la d’une maladie.

M. Pagtakhan: Appellons donc cela physiologique; c’est
un état physiologique sain.

Dr Carver: D’accord.
M. Pagtakhan: Ca, je I’'accepte volontiers.
Dr Kilbertus: Nous sommes donc d’accord.
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Mr. Pagtakhan: [s there any surgical procedure to
terminate a normal function?

Dr. Carver: Vasectomy.

Mr. Pagtakhan: That is okay; that is good.
Dr. Carver: Tubal ligation.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Yes; what else?

Dr. Carver: Tonsillectomy.

Dr. Kilbertus: We could probably make the case for
gall-bladder—

Dr. Carver: Cosmetic surgery.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Okay; but the distinction—
Dr. Carver: Appendectomy.

Mr. Pagtakhan: I agree.

Dr. Carver: Wart removal.

Mr. Pagtakhan: I have no problem. But I think as
colleagues you have to accept that all of these conditions
do not involve terminating another human life.

Dr. Carver: I agree.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Good. Because the question of abortion
will terminate a human life, there ought to be some
restrictions, as we were told in medical school. I have no
problem doing abortion for a truly medically indicated
condition. When a truly medically indicated indication to
do an abortion exists, then I challenge the government of
any day, now and in the future, to provide those medical
services. My question to the physicians and ourselves, if [
may continue to include myself, is to insist that we do it
for a truly medical indication. In other words, we have
exhausted all avenues of therapy such as counselling.

Dr. Carver: Therapy for the pregnancy?

Mr. Pagtakhan: Yes, because if the question is
unwanted pregnancy, that is the condition. When [ was a
family practitioner my first patient happened to be a
woman asking for an abortion. You can imagine my great
difficulty. I counselled and I counselled; I am not a
psychiatrist. The child of that pregnancy is now in
California—

Dr. Carver: Left Canada?

 Mr. Pagtakhan: —this was in the Philippines—and he
1s a practising accountant. It can be done. Alternative
therapy other than the really radical abortion can be
offered. That is my point. I also admit that distress could
lead to physical illness. But when stress leads to physical
illness would you not agree that in general the
management ought to be psychiatry or psychological?

Dr. Carver: I think that really depends on the cause of
the stress. For example I think that when a person is
stressed by a socio-economic situation, or by a job that

[Traduction|

M. Pagtakhan: Y a-t-il une procédure chirurgicale qui
permet de mettre un terme a une fonction normale?

Dr Carver: La vasectomie.

M. Pagtakhan: Tres bien; excellent.
Dr Carver: La ligature des trompes.
M. Pagtakhan: Oui; quoi d’autre?
Dr Carver: L’ablation des amygdales.

Dr Kilbertus: On pourrait également prendre le cas de
la vésicule biliaire—

Dr Carver: La chirurgie esthétique.
M. Pagtakhan: Mais la distinction—
Dr Carver: L’appendicectomie.

M. Pagtakhan: Je suis d’accord.

Dr Carver: L'enlévement de verrues.

M. Pagtakhan: Pas de probléme. Mais je crois qu'en
tant que médecin, vous devez reconnaitre qu’aucun de ces
états ne suppose que l'on mette fin a une autre vie
humaine.

Dr Carver: En effet.

M. Pagtakhan: Bien. Car c’est ce que fait un
avortement et il faudrait donc qu’il y ait un certain
nombre de restrictions, comme on nous l’a appris a la
Faculté de médecine. Je n’ai rien contre un avortement
lorsqu’il s’agit indiscutablement d’un état médical.
Lorsque cet état exige un avortement, je suis le premier a
demander au gouvernement, aujourd’hui, comme
demain, de fournir ces services médicaux. Ce que je
demande aux médecins et a nous-mémes, Ssi vous me
permettez de m’inclure, c’est d’insister pour que cela ne
se fasse que lorsqu’il y a un état médical indiscutable. En
d’autres termes, lorsque nous avons épuisé toutes les
thérapies possibles, y compris le counselling.

Dr Carver: Une thérapie pour la grossesse?

M. Pagtakhan: Oui, s’il s’agit d’une grossesse non
désirée. Lorsque j’étais médecin de famille, mon premier
malade a été une femme qui voulait se faire avorter; vous
pouvez imaginer mon embarras. Je lui ai donné des
conseils a2 en perdre haleine; aprés tout, je ne suis pas
psychiatre. Eh bien, l’enfant de cette grossesse est
maintenant en Californie—

Dr Carver: Il a quitté le Canada?

M. Pagtakhan: —Cela se passait aux Philippines—c’est
aujourd’hui un comptable. Cela peut se faire. On peut
offrir une thérapie autre que l’avortement pur et simple.
C’est cela que je veux montrer. Je reconnais cependant
que le stress ainsi créé peut conduire a la maladie. Et
lorsque cela se produit, ne pensez-vous pas que le
traitement doit étre d’ordre  psychiatrique ou
psychologique?

Dr Carver: Je crois que cela dépend de la nature du
stress. Je pense, par exemple, que lorsqu’une personne est
stressée par une situation socio-économique, Oou par un
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makes them unhappy, or by family problems and so on,
there are a lot of ways to deal with it. One of those ways
certainly might be psychiatry. But by and large one wants
to deal with the underlying cause. If a person’s job is
causing the stress, my advice generally is to look for
another one.

Mr. Pagtakhan: I agree. If [ may interrupt again—
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Dr. Carver: But a psychiatrist is not necessarily going
to be the answer to the problem.

Mr. Pagtakhan: No. What I was saying is sure, you can
say to look for a job. But you will never say not to look
for a job, forget looking for a job, because the fact that
you are looking for a job is creating stress. Similarly, we
should not tell the women to forget the pregnancy
because it is causing stress. Let us support that woman.

Dr. Carver: But it is not just a pregnancy. It is 20 years
of obligation and commitment. [ think it is very difficult
for me or for you as a physician to purport to be able to
speak for what is right for a woman. It is just not right.

It is not a temporary situation. [ am not prepared to
support that women be encouraged to bear children to
give them up for adoption. This is The Handmaid’s Tale.
We have this, but only on film. We have seen what
happens when women are forced to bear children. We
have seen it in Romania. We are seeing other bizarre
situations with children in the United States right now.
We are seeing abandoned children of the cocaine addicts
of the United States. For the first time in years we are
seeing orphanages.

Mr. Pagtakhan: You indicated the Canada Health Act
would address the issue of physical and mental health. In
the bill as we are studying it there is an inclusion of
psychological health. Obviously if you are suggesting it be
in the Canada Health Act we do not have to worry about
psychological health.

Dr. Carver: Excuse me?

Mr. Pagtakhan: People have said the task of the Canada
Health Act has been to watch the alleviation or
promotion of aspects related to physical and mental well-
being. Nothing is mentioned about psychological well-
being.

Dr. Carver: What is the difference between mental and
psychological?

Mr. Pagtakhan: Perhaps I should ask you. Is there a
difference?

Dr. Carver: [ do not know. I am asking you; you said
it.

| Translation)

travail qui la rend malheureuse, ou encore par des
problémes de famille, il y a une foule de fagons de faire
face aux problémes. La psychiatrie est certainement une
des méthodes possibles. Mais de fagon générale, c’est a la
cause profonde que l'on doit vouloir s’attaquer. Si
quelqu’un souffre de stress a cause de son emploi, je lui
conseille en général d’en chercher un autre.

M. Pagtakhan: Je suis d’accord. Si vous me permettez
de vous interrompre encore une fois—

Dr Carver: Le psychiatre n’apportera
nécessairement de solution au probléeme.

pas

M. Pagtakhan: Il faut encourager la personne 2
continuer de chercher un emploi. II ne faut pas
I’enjoindre de ne pas le faire sous prétexte que cette
activité lui cause une tension. De méme, nous ne devons
pas dire aux femmes d’éviter d’étre enceintes parce que
c’est un état qui leur cause une tension. Essayons plutot
de les aider.

Dr Carver: Il ne s’agit pas que de la grossesse. C’est une
obligation et un engagement qui portent sur 20 ans. Nous
ne pouvons pas prétendre vous et moi, en tant que
médecins, de dicter leur conduite aux femmes.

Il ne s’agit pas d’une situation temporaire. Je ne suis
pas prét en ce qui me concerne a encourager les femmes a
donner naissance a des enfants pour qu’elles les mettent a
l'adoption. C’est The Handmaid’s Tale. C’est le genre de
choses qu’on voit seulement dans les films. Nous voyons
ce qui se passe lorsque les femmes sont forcées d’avoir des
enfants. Nous savons quelle a été la situation en
Roumanie. Nous sommes témoins de toutes sortes de
situations étranges aux Etats-Unis. Nous constatons que
des enfants de cocainomanes sont abandonnés. Aprés bien
des années, les orphelinats réapparaissent.

M. Pagtakhan: Vous avez dit que ce serait la Loi
canadienne sur la santé qui définirait la santé physique et
mentale. Le projet de loi dont nous sommes saisis fait état
de la santé psychologique. Si cela est dans la Loi
canadienne sur la santé, il n’y a pas de probléme.

Dr Carver: Je vous demande pardon?

M. Pagtakhan: D’aucuns prétendent que la Loi
canadienne sur la santé s’occupe de tous les aspects reliés
a la santé physique et mentale. Il n’y est cependant pas
question du bien-étre psychologique.

Dr Carver: Quelle est la différence entre mental et
psychologique?

M. Pagtakhan: C’est ce que je veux savoir.

Dr Carver: Je ne sais pas. Je vous renvoie la question.
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Mr. Pagtakhan: I said it because the psychiatrists who
appeared before us many days ago did make a distinction
between mental and psychological health.

Dr. Carver: I cannot make that distinction. I do not
know the difference.

Mr. Pagtakhan: Of course I would respect your view. I
am only depending on expert witnesses.

Dr. Carver: I am not an expert on psychiatry.

Mr. Pagtakhan: You indicated in your brief the lack of
a law has not caused problems. As a physician with a
condition—and I respect your view, whether you treat it
as medical or not—that has continued to exist, to have the
same magnitude. . . almost the same; that has been the
claim: it does not decrease, but neither has it increased:
68,000 or 70,000 a year. Does it not concern you as a
physician that physicians are not being challenged to find
truly the alternative therapy to reduce that number?

Dr. Carver: It concerns me incredibly, and I think this
bill is entirely the wrong way to go about it. If this
government were really brave and sat down and produced
a series of programs to support the pregnant woman—

Mr. Pagtakhan: Agreed.
Dr. Carver: —to have child care and infant care—

Mr. Pagtakhan: Agreed.

Dr. Carver: —to provide all kinds of counselling
support and education and decent income and so on. .. I
do not disagree with any of that. And do you know what I
think would happen as a result of that? I do believe—and
Kathryn made this point in her part of the presentation—
the abortion rate would indeed go down.

That is wonderful. We can agree on that. I do not know
whether you are a member of the government or the
opposition, but if you can get the government to do that I
am with you; I am absolutely with you. I would like to see
that rate go down. We all would.

Mr. O’Kurley: I would like to thank the doctors for
appearing before us. In your discussion you suggested the
decision to have or not to have a child should be that
person’s decision. You also suggested it may be justifiable
to make that decision on the basis of socio-economic,
physical, psychological, educational, financial, and other
reasons. Is that correct?

Dr. Carver: Yes.

Mr. O’Kurley: Much of the discussion in this
committee has dealt with the issue of the Charter of
Rights. . . well, maybe your presentation did not deal with
it. Others have dealt with the issue of equality, specifically

[Traduction|

M. Pagtakhan: Jattire votre attention la-dessus parce
que les psychiatres qui ont comparu devant nous l'autre
jour ont insisté pour faire la distinction entre santé
mentale et santé psychologique.

Dr Carver: Je ne puis vous dire quelle est la différence
en ce qui me concerne.

M. Pagtakhan: Je respecte votre point de vue. Je me
fiais seulement aux témoignages de témoins experts.

Dr Carver: Je ne suis pas experte en psychiatrie.

M. Patakhan: Vous faites valoir dans votre mémoire
que l'absence de loi n’a pas créé de probleme. En tant que
médecin, je me trouve devant un état—je respecte votre
point de vue, que vous considériez qu’il soit médical ou
non—qui reste a peu prés inchangé... cela n’a pas
augmenté ni diminué; il y a encore 68,000 ou 70,000 cas
par année. En tant que médecin, ne vous inquiétez-vous
pas du fait que les médecins n’aient pas l'air intéressé a
trouver une autre thérapie pour réduire le nombre de
cas?

Dr Carver: Je suis terriblement préoccupée par la
situation, et c’est la raison pour laquelle je dis que ce
projet de loi est tout a fait erroné. Si le gouvernement
était vraiment courageux, il mettrait sur pied toute une
série de programmes pour appuyer les femmes
enceintes—

M. Pagtakhan: Je suis bien d’accord avec vous.

Dr Carver: —pour créer des services de garde d’enfants
et de bébés—

M. Pagtakhan: Exactement.

Dr Carver: —pour créer des services d’orientation et
d’éducation, et pour améliorer les revenus, etc... Je
favorise toutes ces mesures. Que se passerait-il alors? Eh
bien—Kathryn [’avait remarqué dans son exposé—le taux
d’avortement diminurait.

Dans ces conditions, nous n’aurions pas de probléme.
J'ignore si vous étes député du gouvernement ou de
'opposition, mais si vous pouvez amener le
gouvernement a agir de la sorte, je suis avec vous. Je
souhaite de tout coeur que le taux diminue. Nous le
souhaitons tous.

M. O’Kurley: Je remercie ce groupe de médecins de
comparaitre devant nous. Au cours de la discussion, vous
avez indiqué que la décision d’'avoir un enfant ou non
appartient a la personne concernée. Vous avez également
fait valoir que la personne peut fonder sa décision sur des
facteurs socio-économiques, physiques, psychologiques,
éducationnels, financiers et autres. C’est bien cela, n’est-ce
pas?

Dr Carver: En effet.

M. O’Kurley: Il a beaucoup été question ici de la
Charte des droits. . . je sais que vous ne l’avez peut-€tre

pas mentionné directement dans votre exposé. D’autres
ont traité de la question de I'égalité, surtout entre les



14 : 70

Bill C-43

13-3-1990

[Text|
gender equality, and they have tied the issue of abortion
to gender equality.
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The idea is that laws in this country should provide
rights that are equally available to both men and women.
As a father of four children under the age of seven, I
recognize there are times when children can provide a
man with certain physical and I suppose psychological
and emotional difficulties as well. I know it is very, very
difficult at times to—

Dr. Carver: Women too.

Mr. O’Kurley: —bathe three children, and after putting
in a day of work here to go home and deal with all those
children.

However, if we accept the premise that women can
offer socio-economic, psychological, emotional and
financial justification for the cancellation of fetal life, and
if we also accept the premise that laws should provide
equal rights to men and women alike, then would you
also accept that a man should be able to demand that his
family not be unintentionally expanded because of
financial, social, physical, psychological, emotional or
career reasons?

Dr. Carver: Wait a second. Just go back a step here.
You are asking me whether a man can prevent his family
from being expanded; in other words, can a man demand
an abortion on the part of his wife?

Mr. O’Kurley: Right. Because if we agree the
Constitution should provide equal rights to both men and
women. . . you have suggested it is justifiable for a woman
to use economic or emotional reasons for terminating a
pregnancy. Would the man not be afforded those same
rights?

Dr. Carver: | was here earlier in the day when one of
the other delegations—I do not remember whether it was
the LEAF delegation or what—addressed this point, and I
really think it is the only way to come to grips with it,
and that is to say that in a decent relationship, of course
all these issues are going to be dealt with by both persons.
[ think it is important to note the two cases that did go to
the courts last summer were cases in which the
relationships had broken down, and there is really
nothing to say.

Mr. O’Kurley: You are not answering my question. We
are not asking whether or not a man should demand that
a woman does not have an abortion; [ am asking can a
man demand that she does have an abortion?

Dr. Carver: No, he cannot demand anything.
Mr. O’Kurley: Why not?

Dr. Carver: Because he cannot demand anything of
her.

Mr. O’Kurley: So what you are saying—

| Translation|

sexes, et ont lié le dossier de l'avortement a celui de
I’égalité entre les sexes.

Le principes est que les lois de notre pays devraient
accorder des droits également aux hommes et aux
femmes. Comme peére de quatre enfants de moins de sept
ans, je reconnais qu’il y a des moments ou les enfants
peuvent donner a un homme certaines difficultés
physiques, et je suppose aussi psychologiques et émotives.
Je sais qu’il est parfois extrémement difficile—

Dr Carver: Aux femmes aussi.

M. O’Kurley: —de donner le bain a trois enfants et de
rentrer a la maison aprés une journée de travail pour
s’occuper de tous ces enfants.

Toutefois, si nous acceptons le postulat que les femmes
peuvent présenter une justification socio-€conomique,
psychologique, émotive et financiére pour I’annulation de
la vie du feotus, et si nous acceptons également le postulat
que les lois devraient accorder des droits égaux aux
hommes et aux femmes, alors accepteriez-vous €galement
que 'homme puisse exiger que sa famille ne s’élargisse
pas de fagon non intentionnelle pour des motifs
financiers, sociaux, physiques, psychologiques, émotifs ou
liés a sa carriére?

Dr Carver: Un instant. Revenons un peu en arriére.
Vous me demandez si un homme peut empécher
I'’expansion de sa famille; en d’autres termes, 1’homme
peut-il exiger que sa femme se fasse avorter?

M. O’Kurley: C’est ¢a. En effet, si nous acceptons que
la Constitution doit garantir des droits égaux aux hommes
et aux femmes... vous avez laissé entendre qu’il est
justifiable pour une femme d’utiliser des motifs
économiques ou émotifs pour mettre un terme a une
grossesse. L'homme ne devrait-il pas avoir les mémes
droits?

Dr Carver: J'étais ici plus tot au moment ou l'une des
autres délégations—je ne me souviens pas exactement
laquelle, probablement le FAEJ—a traité de ce sujet et je
crois vraiment que c'est la seule fagon de I’aborder,
c’est-a-dire que dans une bonne relation toutes ces
questions seront discutées par les deux personnes en
cause. J'estime qu’il est important de signaler que les deux
cas qui sont allés devant les tribunaux I'été dernier étaient
des cas ou la relation était rompue, et il n’y a vraiment
rien a dire.

M. O’Kurley: Vous ne répondez pas a ma question.
Nous ne demandons pas si 'homme devrait exiger que la
femme ne se fasse pas avorter; je me demande si un
homme peut exiger qu’elle le fasse?

Dr Carver: Non, il ne peut rien exiger.
M. O’Kurley: Pourquoi pas?
Dr Carver: Parce qu'il ne peut rien exiger d’elle.

M. O’Kurley: Ainsi, vous dites—
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Dr. Carver: She is not his property.

Mr. O’Kurley: What you are suggesting is the condition
of pregnancy justifies, in certain cases, inequality of rights.

Dr. Carver: [ am not going to argue the legal or the
Charter situation with regard to gender equality. [ am not
a lawyer, [ am a physician. [ do not know enough about
it, and your point is—

Mr. O’Kurley: Okay, if you are a physician, I have one
more question for you then.

Dr. Carver: If [ am not a physician?

Mr. O’Kurley: With regard to your premise here and
your argument that abortion is not a medical procedure,
or it is not a decision based on medicine. . .

Dr. Carver: Wait, [ did not say abortion was not a
medical procedure.

Mr. O’Kurley:
pregnancy. . .

The decision to continue a

Dr. Carver: [s not a medical decision.

Mr. O’Kurley: Right. Your suggestion is that because it
is a natural physiological condition, then it is not really a
medical decision.

Of course you are aware there are medical procedures
like liposuction, cosmetic surgery, sex changes, and so
on—one could argue, I suppose, that those existing
physiological conditions may create certain social,
economic, career disadvantages, and it could also result in
psychological, physical, emotional and mental health
difficulties. How would you compare the idea of rights to
these medical procedures on the same basis that you
would justify abortion? Would there be any comparison,
or would you draw any distinction between those two?

Dr. Carver: There is a distinction. I do not know the
other provinces, but in the Ontario payment code and
coverage code for procedures there is indeed a criterion
for that. For example, I have a daughter who had
extremely large breasts. The procedure of mammoplasty,
reduction mammoplasty, was indeed covered by the
health insurance program because it was deemed to be

causing her physical and psychological problems, medical
problems.

So in fact there is a component for what I think you
are meaning, cosmetic procedures. I am sure the case
could be made and has been made for grossly obese
people to have procedures that are covered. For example,
somebody with my minor degree of obesity might not be
covered because on me it would be just cosmetic, but on
somebody else it might in fact be a health factor. So there
is already a provision for that, and I have no problem
with that. However, once again, in most of those cases, the
decision to have that procedure done is going to be made

[Traduction]
Dr Carver: Elle n’est pas son bien.

M. O’Kurley: Ce que vous laissez entendre, c’est que la
grossesse justifie, dans certains cas, 1’'inégalité des droits.

Dr Carver: Je n’ai pas l'intention de discuter de la
situation juridique ni de la Charte en ce qui concerne
I’égalité entre les sexes. Je ne suis pas avocate, je suis
médecin. Je ne suis pas assez au courant de cette question
et vous dites—

M. O’Kurley: D’accord, si vous étes médecin, j'ai une
autre question pour vous alors.

Dr Carver: Et si je ne suis pas médecin?

M. O’Kurley: En ce qui concerne votre postulat et
votre argument selon lequel I’avortement n’est pas une
intervention médicale ou n’est pas une décision fondée
sur la médecine. . .

Dr Carver: Un instant, je n’ai pas dit que 'avortement
n’est pas une intervention médicale.

M. O’Kurley: La décision de poursuivre la grossesse. . .

Dr Carver: N’est pas une décision médicale.

M. O’Kurley: D’accord. Vous dites que parce qu’il
s’agit d’un état physiologique naturel, ce n’est pas
vraiment une décision médicale.

Vous étes bien sar au courant du fait que certaines
interventions médicales, comme la liposuction, la
chirurgie esthétique, les changements de sexe, etc.—
j'imagine qu’on pourrait faire valoir que ces situations
physiologiques peuvent entrainer certains désavantages
sociaux, économiques ou sur le plan de la carriére et
qu’elles pourraient également entrainer des difficultés
psychologiques, physiques, émotives et liées a la santé
mentale. Comment comparez-vous le principe du droit a
ces interventions médicales pour les mémes motifs que
vous utilisez pour justifier l’avortement? Y a-t-il une
comparaison entre ces deux cas, ou feriez-vous une
distinction?

Dr Carver: Il y a une distinction. Je ne sais ce qui se
passe dans les autres provinces, mais en Ontario le code
de paiement et de couverture des interventions prévoit
effectivement un critére a cet égard. Par exemple, ma fille
avait les seins extrémement développés. L’intervention de
mammoplastie, la réduction mammoplastique, était
effectivement couverte par le régime d’assurance-maladie
parce que son état était réputé lui causer des problémes
physiques et psychologiques, des problemes meédicaux.

Il y a effectivement une composante pour ce dont vous
parlez, je crois, soit les interventions esthétiques. Je suis
certaine qu’'on pourrait faire valoir, et qu'on l'a fait, que
les personnes grossierement obéses devraient étre
couvertes pour de telles interventions. Par ailleurs,
quelqu’un qui souffrirait d’une obésité mineure ne serait
peut-étre pas couvert; dans mon cas, ce serait seulement
esthétique, mais pour quelqu’un d’autre, il pourrait s’agir
d’une question de santé. Donc, il existe déja une
disposition et je ne vois pas de problemes. Cependant,
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by the patient, and the patient is going to go, whether a
woman or man, to the doctor to ask that person to
provide—

= A725

Mr. O’Kurley: And the doctor should provide that
service regardless of—

Dr. Carver: No. And that is not true for abortion
either. In fact, I was going to say that women can go to a
doctor, and this has happened in many circumstances, for
cosmetic surgery and the doctors have said no way. Either
you do not need it or the risk is not worth the benefits
you are likely to receive from that procedure. And so for
abortion as well.

Somebody said earlier today that there are only 300 or
so physicians providing abortions in Canada. I do not
know if that is true or not, but it is not very many; and as
a result of this law there will be fewer, so do not worry.

Mme Venne: Mesdames, j'aimerais revenir a ce que M.
O’Kurley disait, mais d'un autre point de vue. Dans votre
mémoire, vous dites ceci:

Nous nous réclamons du principe suivant: la décision
de mettre fin a une grossesse doit étre prise
uniquement par la femme enceinte elle-méme en
consultation avec le médecin qui pratiquera
’avortement.

Je suis tout a fait d'accord, et j'estime que notre projet
de loi remplit exactement cette fonction-la. La-dessus je
vais vous donner deux arguments.

Vous dites que c’est uniquement la décision de la
femme. On ne forcera jamais une femme a avorter. Si elle
va voir un médecin, c’est qu’elle a déja pris cette décision.
Au paragraphe 287(1) proposé, on dit que le médecin est
autorisé a provoquer l’avortement quand il en arrive a la
conclusion que la santé ou la vie de la personne est
vraisemblablement menacée. La conclusion, c’est son avis
formé selon les normes généralement admises dans sa
profession. Je ne trouve pas que c'est le médecin qui
décide. Il joue son rdle de médecin comme il le devrait.

Deuxiémement, vous dites:

Nous ne sommes pas d'accord avec l'idée que la
décision de mettre fin a une grossesse est
essentiellement une décision médicale.

Encore 13, ce que vous dites est erroné. Je suis d’accord
avec vous pour dire que c’est la décision de la femme,
mais vous nous dites ici le contraire et, finalement, vous
en arrivez a dire que vous ne voulez pas prendre vos
responsabilités de médecins. Vous dites a la page 9:

Certains meédecins pourraient également décider
d'arréter de pratiquer des avortements en attendant
d’étre mieux informés des conséquences de la nouvelle
loi.

[Translation]
dans la plupart de ces cas, c’est le patient qui décide s'il
veut subir lintervention et il devra s’adresser a un
médecin. . .

M. O’Kurley: Et le médecin devra faire ce qu’on lui
demande, quel que soit. . .

Dr Carver: Non, et ce n'est pas ce que nous disons
pour l'avortement non plus. J’allais justement faire
remarquer que les femmes qui demandent une
intervention de chirurgie esthétique peuvent essuyer un
refus. Le médecin peut décider que ce n’est pas nécessaire
ou bien que le risque I'emporte sur les avantages
éventuels, et le meéme principe s’applique aussi a
I’avortement.

Quelqu’un a dit tout a I’heure qu’il y a seulement 300
et quelques médecins qui pratiquent des avortements au
Canada. Je ne peux pas confirmer I'exactitude du chiffre
mais ils ne sont pas nombreux, et vous pouvez étre surs
que grace a cette loi ils seront encore moins nombeux.

Mrs. Venne: Ladies, I would like to return to the point
raised by Mr. O’Kurley but looking at it from another
angle. In your brief you say:

Our principles state that the decision to terminate a
pregnancy should be made solely by the pregnant
woman herself, in consultation with the physician who
will perform the abortion.

I am in full agreement with you and I believe that our
bill is in accordance with this principle. Let me give you
two arguments to support this contention.

You say that it is solely the decision of the pregnant
woman. A woman will never be forced to have an
abortion. If she goes to see a doctor, it is because she has
already made her decision. Subclause 287(1) states that a
medical practitioner may perform an abortion when he is
of the opinion that the health or the life of the female
person would be likely to be threatened. This medical
opinion is based upon generally accepted standards in the
profession. I do not see it as the physician who is making
the decision, he is simply being called upon to play his
role as physician.

You also say:

We reject the idea that the decision to terminate a
pregnancy is basically a medical one.

Here again, your statement is erroneous. I agree with
you that the decision is up to the woman but here you are
maintaining the opposite and you eventually reach the
point where you say that you are unwilling to carry out
your reponsibilities as physicians. On page 3 you say:

In addition, some physicians may decide to stop
performing abortions until the consequences of the
new legislation are clearer.
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Je regrette, mais quand on fait partie d’un corps
professionnel, on sait prendre ses responsabilités. Je fais,
moi aussi, partie d'un corps professionnel. De plus, on a
des assurances. Je ne suis pas d'accord que l'on essaie
d’utiliser un tel moyen de chantage quand on n’aime pas
la loi proposée.

Ala page 8 de votre texte frangais, vous dites:

Si le médecin qui pratique des avortements exige
d’abord I'opinion d’un psychiatre ou d’un psychologue,
la situation deviendra semblable a celle qui existe en
Grande-Bretagne. . .

Vous dites que cela augmenterait les délais. Je dois vous
dire que, si vous commenciez a exiger systématiquement
I'opinion des psychiatres ou des psychologues pour faire
votre travail, vous auriez probablement des poursuites
dans un autre sens. C’est mon opinion. Si vous avez des
commentaires a faire, je suis préte a vous écouter.

Dr Kilbertus: Vous dites que les médecins rejettent
leurs responsabilités s’ils arrétent de faire les avortements
a cause de la loi ou a cause des problemes juridiques ou
d’assurances. Je voudrais vous dire que beaucoup des
décisions qui sont prises de jour en jour par les médecins
dans leur pratique le sont selon des problemes
d’assurances ou d'ordre juridique. Par exemple,
auparavant, il y avait beaucoup de médecins de famille
qui faisaient des accouchements. Aujourd’hui, de moins
en moins de médecins de famille et d’obstétriciens
choisissent de faire des accouchements parce que les
assurances sont beaucoup plus élevées s'ils en font.

* 1730

Dong, il y a toujours une décision personnelle dans le
cadre professionnel. C’est peut-étre la méme chose dans
votre cas. Je ne le sais pas.

Mme Venne: Je suis tout a fait d’accord avec le fait que
vous avez des décisions a prendre, mais ce n'est pas le fait
de dire qu'on a peur d’étre poursuivi, civilement ou
criminellement, qui va vraiment aider votre cause. De
toute fagon, on ne peut pas empécher les gens de
poursuivre au civil. Clest un fait et vous le savez
certainement: tout le monde est sujet a cela.

Dr Kilbertus: Vous ne pouvez pas empécher les gens de
vous poursuivre, mais vous pouvez faire augmenter le
nombre de poursuites avec une telle loi.

Mme Venne: Mais non! L'été dernier, il n’y avait pas
de loi, et il y a eu une poursuite au civil de la part de
notre copain Tremblay.

M. Robinson: Mais la Cour supréme lui a donné tort.

Mlpe Venne: D’accord, mais Chantal Daigle a été
obligée d’aller jusqu'a la Cour supréme, et il n'y avait pas
de loi a ce moment-la.

J'aimerais ajouter que l'ancien ministre de la Justice
nous avait dit qu’il était prét a apporter un amendement a
ce projet de loi, amendement obligeant les gens voulant

[Traduction|

I am afraid that members of a professional body have
no choice but to accept their responsibilities. I say this as
a member of a professional body myself. Moreover, we do
have insurance. I cannot go along with attempts at this
type of blackmail when the proposed legislation is not to
one’s satisfaction.

On page 2, you say:

If a consultant psychiatric or psychological opinion is
required by the abortion provider, there will be a
situation similar to that in Great Britain. . .

And you go on to refer to the increased delays. I must say
that if you start making a practice of requiring psychiatric
or psychological opinions in order to do your job, you
will probably be exposed to other types of litigation. That
is my opinion. If you have any comments to make, I
would be glad to hear them.

Dr. Kilbertus: You say that physicians are shirking
their responsibilities if they stop peforming abortions
because of the legislation or because of legal or insurance
problems. [ think you should know that many decisions
taken everyday by physicians in the course of their
practice relate to legal or insurance problems. For
example, at one time there were lots of family physicians
who did deliveries but nowadays there are far fewer
general practitioners than obstetricians who choose to do
deliveries because their insurance premiums are a lot
higher if they do.

So there is always the element of personal decision in
the exercise of one’s profession. It may not be true in
your case. I cannot speak for you.

Mrs. Venne: [ realize that you have decisions to make,
but mentioning your fear of possible criminal or civil
prosecution is not going to help your cause. In any case
we cannot prevent people from exercising their right to
sue, you know it is a fact and everyone is exposed to this
possibility.

Dr. Kilbertus: You may not be able to prevent people
from suing you, but you can increase the number of
actions with this type of legislation.

Mrs. Venne: Not at all! Last summer we did not have
any legislation but that did not prevent our friend
Tremblay from initiating a civil suit.

Mr. Robinson: But his case was thrown out by the
Supreme Court.

Mrs. Venne: Yes, but Chantal Daigle had to go as high
as the Supreme Court even though there was not any
legislation at the time.

I would like to add that the former Minister of Justice
told us he was willing to introduce an amendment to the
bill so that anyone wishing to undertake criminal



14 : 74

Bill C-43

13-3-1990

| Text|

poursuivre au criminel, puisqu’cn parle du Code criminel
dans ce cas-ci, a obtenir au préalable l’autorisation du
procureur général. C'est un amendement auquel il
semblait prét a consentir facilement. Est-ce que cela vous
conviendrait mieux?

Dr Kilbertus: Nous n’étions pas au courant de ce
changement.

Mme Venne: C’était une suggestion qui avait été faite a
ce moment-ia.

M. Robinson: Pour nous, en Colombie-Britannique,
demander le consentement du procureur général, ce n’est
pas trés rassurant. [l a déja espionné les groupes pro-choix
a plusieurs reprises.

Je veux vous souhaiter la bienvenue au Comité et vous
dire, comme vous le savez bien, que nous sommes tout a
fait d’accord sur votre position. Nous sommes contre la
recriminalisation de l'avortement. M™¢ Venne dit que
c'est la décision de la femme. Selon ce projet de loi, ce
n'est pas la décision de la femme, mais la décision du
médecin. Supposons qu'une femme aille voir un médecin
et lui dise: J'ai 47 ans, et je suis devenue enceinte a cause
d’'un échec de contraception. Je ne suis pas malade, ma
vie n'est pas menacée, mais j'ai décidé de ne pas avoir un
autre enfant. C'est le médecin et non la femme qui
décidera si elle a droit a un avortement. C’est la réalité
selon ce projet de loi. Ce n'est pas une décision qui
revient au médecin. [l faut clarifier cela.

[ would like to take this opportunity of having
professional witnesses, the Physicians for Choice, before
us to ask some questions, particularly in their area of
expertise.

One argument we sometimes hear—certainly those of
us who over the years have taken a strong pro-choice
position—is that there is another option: there are many
couples out there waiting desperately for adoptions. It is
suggested that we are in fact being quite unfair and
unreasonable, that if only the woman who seeks an
abortion was prepared to have the child and then give it
up for adoption, it is a viable alternative. You are on the
front lines, as it were, in this area and you deal with
women who have to make this very difficult decision.
How do you respond to that suggestion?

Dr. Gauthier: I think it is a very good point. Every
week, all of us in general practice get letters from people
who would love to adopt children. I think most of us see
women who come to us saying that they are pregnant and
that they do not want to be. We devote a considerable
length of time to discussing the options. That is an option.
It is unfortunate, but many young women who are
pregnant feel they could simply not do it.

In my personal situation I always discuss it. It is a rare
person who feels she can go through nine months of this.
For emotional reasons many say that when they have this
baby they will not be able to give it up, even though they
know they cannot raise a child. They feel they cannot do
it; it is too emotionally difficult.

[Translation|

proceedings, since the reference is to the Criminal Code,
must first of all obtain the authorization of the Attorney
General. He seemed to be quite willing to accept this
amendment. Do you think it would be satisfactory?

Dr. Kilbertus: We were not aware of this change.

Mrs. Venne: It was a suggestion made at a committee
meeting.

Mr. Robinson: We in British Columbia do not find it
too reassuring to ask for the consent of the Attorney
General. He has already had spies infiltrate pro-choice
groups on a number of occasions.

I would like to welcome you to the committee and to
tell you, as you probably already know, tha we are in full
agreement with your position. We are against
recriminalizing abortion. Mrs. Venne says that it is the
woman'’s choice. As the bill is worded, the choice is not
up to the woman but to the physician. Let us imagine a
47-year-old woman who goes to see her doctor because
her contraception failed. She is pregnant, she is not sick,
her life is not in danger but she has decided not to have
another child. Nonetheless, it is the physician and not the
woman who willl decide whether she is entitled to an
abortion. That is the situation as it exists in the bill. The
decision must not be left up to the physician. That is
something that must be rectified.

Je profite de la comparution des médecins pro-choix
pour poser un certains nombres de questions concernant
leur domaine de compétence.

Ceux qui défendent la liberté de choix entendent
souvent dire qu’il existe une autre option a cause de
nombreux couples qui attendent désespérément la
possibilité d’adopter un enfant. On nous laisse entendre
parfois que notre position n’'est pas juste ni raisonnable
puisque la femme qui veut se faire avorter pourrait
décider de mener sa grossesse a terme et de donner
I’enfant en adoption. Puisque vous travaillez directement
avec des femmes qui sont aux prises avec cette décision
trés difficile, j’aimerais savoir ce que vous diriez aux
partisans de 1’adoption.

Dr Gauthier: Effectivement, c’est un aspect important.
Toutes les semaines nous recevons comme médecins des
lettres de personnes qui ne demandent qu’a adopter des
enfants. Nous voyons aussi des femmes enceintes qui ne
veulent pas I'étre. Nous prenons beaucoup de temps pour
envisager les différentes possibilités. L’adoption est une
option, effectivement, mais malheureusement de
nombreuses jeunes femmes enceintes ne sont pas
disposées a la considérer.

Dans ma pratique personnelle j'invoque toujours cette
option. On trouve rarement des femmes qui estiment
qu’elles pourraient endurer cette situation pendant neuf
mois. Beaucoup d’entre elles disent que, pour des raisons
affectives, elles seront incapables de laisser aller leur bébé
lorsqu’il arrivera, méme si elles savent qu’elles ne peuvent
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For some, there are very many practical problems: they
cannot support themselves, they know they could not
work, they are not eligible for unemployment insurance,
they are just barely managing now.

In theory it is wonderful, and I would hope that more
people in that situation would be willing to do that. It
does not seem that they can, in spite of what I think is
really excellent counselling on my part and the part of my
colleagues.

Mr. Robinson: Have any of you had to deal with a
situation in which a woman has made that decision to
have the child and give it up for adoption and then has
gone through a great deal of torment and stress at the
point of which she has the child? Perhaps you might
comment on that.

Dr. Carver: | had a patient who had actually given up a
child before she became my patient. She was in a
somewhat different era, by virtue of where she lived;
things were a bit different where she was, and it was
simply not acceptable for a young woman to be pregnant,
not be married and not be over 17. She got pregnant by
accident, she was a dumb teenager and so on and so forth.
I do not remember now whether it was that abortion was
not an option or that the family convinced her to have
the baby and give it up for adoption.

I saw her some years after this, and she said that the
anguish of the decision at the time and to that day. .. I
actually saw her through her subsequent pregnancy—I
also did obstetrics—and she would never, ever, ever do it
again were she to become pregnant under those
circumstances now.

It is a reality I think we just simply have to face. It is
not even so much the abortion issue. Even if abortion
were indeed illegal, the reality of today is that 99.9% of
women would keep those children if they bore them, they
would not give them up for adoption. That is because
social services are in place. They are just not adequate, but
they are there.

We know that in the United States, for example,
welfare teenagers know that they are better off if they
have babies than if they do not have babies. Therefore, at
14, 1S, 16, they start having babies, because in fact the
amount of money they have is better with those
circumstances than without. The consequence to the
country of those children—I mean these are the very
children most likely to be physically or sexually abused,
the children most likely not to complete their education,
the children most likely to cost all of us societal support
ad infinitum.

| Traduction|

pas l’élever. Elles s’en sentent tout a fait incapables; ce
serait trop difficile affectivement.

Certaines doivent surmonter toutes sortes d’obstacles
pratiques: elles ne peuvent pas subvenir a leurs besoins,
elles savent qu’elles ne pourront pas travailler, elles n’ont
pas droit a l’assurance-chomage, elles arrivent déja tout
juste.

En théorie, c’est merveilleux, et j'aimerais bien qu’il y
ait plus de femmes dans cette situation qui soient prétes a
agir ainsi. Mais il semble qu’elles ne le sont pas, malgré
I’excellent travail que nous effectuons, mes collégues et
moi.

M. Robinson: Avez-vous déja, l'une ou lautre,
rencontré des femmes qui avaient décidé de poursuivre
leur grossesse et de donner leur bébé en adoption, et qui
avaient ensuite eu tellement de mal a assumer cette
décision qu’elles avaient fini par garder l’enfant?
J’aimerais avoir vos commentaires a ce sujet.

Dr Carver: J'ai eu une cliente qui avait abandonné un
enfant avant de commencer a venir me voir. Vu I’endroit
d’ou elle venait, elle vivait a une autre époque; les choses
étaient différentes la-bas, et il n'y était tout simplement
pas acceptable qu'une jeune femme de 17 ans, qui n’était
pas mariée, puisse avoir un bébé. C’était une adolescente
écervelée, qui était tombée enceinte par accident, vous
voyez le genre. Je ne rappelle plus si elle avait pris cette
décision parce qu’elle se refusait a envisager 'avortement
ou parce que sa famille I’avait convaincue de mener sa
grossesse a terme et de donner son bébé a I’adoption.

Je l'ai rencontrée quelques années aprés cela, et elle
m’a dit que cette décision l’avait angoissé terriblement a
I'époque, et qu’elle en restait encore marquée. . . En fait,
je I’ai vue pendant une grossesse subséquente, puisque je
faisait également de l'obstétrique, et elle m’a dit que, si
c’était ‘a refaire, elle ne prendrait certainement pas la
méme décision.

C’est une réalité a laquelle nous devons faire face. Cela
n'a méme pas tellement a voir avec l'avortement lui-
méme. Méme si I'avortement était effectivement illégal, la
vérité, c’est que 99,9 p. 100 des femmes garderaient ces
enfants si elles devaient les porter a terme; elles ne les
donneraient pas a l’adoption. Cela s’explique par le fait
qu’il existe des services sociaux. Ils ne sont certes pas
suffisants, mais ils existent.

Nous savons qu’aux Etats-Unis, par exemple, les
adolescentes qui touchent des prestations d’aide sociale
savent que leur situation s’améliorera si elles ont un bébé.
Elles commencent donc a avoir des enfants a 14, 15 ou 16
ans, parce qu’elles peuvent toucher un chéque plus €leve.
Mais il faut songer aux conséquences de cette situation
pour le pays: ces enfants sont ceux-la mémes qui risquent
le plus d’étre victimes de sévices corporels ou d’abus
sexuel, de ne pas poursuivre leurs études, et de nous
couter cher a tous, en termes d’aide sociale: et cela n'a
plus de fin.
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Quite aside from whether adoption is a good or viable
option, the reality is that it is not going to happen, unless
you make it compulsory, in which case we are back to
The Handmaid’s Tale.

Mr. Robinson: [ think this is very helpful for those of
us who must respond to the—

Dr. Carver: This is the way it is today, it really is.

Mr. Robinson: You referred to the stress involved in
the denial of an abortion in a variety of circumstances. [
assume that it would be your position that for all practical
purposes a woman who is forced to bring to term a child
against her will would in almost all circumstances be in a
position of stress and that this stress in turn, to use your
words, would affect her health. That being the case I
would that there would at least be some doctors,
Physicians for Choice among them, who would take a
very broad view of the legislation as it is written now. I
think that is the reality, that you would say she is in a
position of stress, which affects her psychological or
mental health. Effectively the decision would be hers, for
practical purposes. I think we have to recognize that.

Is it not also the case that for many other doctors—and
we know that there are already a very small number of
doctors practising abortions, which we have heard from
the CMA—they are simply not going to take the risk?
They are not going to take the risk of possible harassment
and the risk of possible criminal prosecution, even with
the safeguard of an Attorney General’s permission being
required. They are not going to take the risk and they will
stop performing abortions. The number of doctors
performing abortions therefore will be reduced, which of
course directly affects access. Is that your sense from
talking to your colleagues?

Dr. Carver: [ do not think there is any question about
that. When [ said it before it was not meant as a threat. [
really think it is a reality. One of the things that I
personally find very satisfying right now is the fact that
midwifery is likely to come on the scene, but the irony is
that the reason midwifery is likely to come on the scene is
that the doctors are all leaving the field of obstetrics. It is
a combination of the fact that it does not pay enough and
the risk of getting sued is too high. They just do not want
the bother. So someone has to fill the gap.

= 1740

The same thing could happen with abortion, but I do
not think that is a very good solution either. If doctors
become less available, the woman who is extremely
perturbed, who is ill, who had a horrible experience and
who needs an abortion right away. . . When I was making
these referrals there were several options. She could go to

[Translation)

Que l’adoption soit ou non une option viable, elle ne
deviendra tout simplement jamais populaire, a moins
qu’elle ne devienne obligatoire, ce qui équivaudrait a la
situation mise en scéne dans «The Handmaid’s Tale».

M. Robinson: Je pense que vous observations seront
trés utiles pour ceux d’entre nous qui doivent
répondre. . .

Dr Carver: C'est vraiment ainsi que les choses se
passent aujourd’hui.

M. Robinson: Vous avez parlé du stress qu’entraine le
refus de pratiquer un avortement dans diverses
circonstances. Je suppose que vous estimez que, a toutes
fins utiles, une femme qui serait forcée de mener un
enfant a terme contre sa volonté en subirait dans presque
tous les cas un stress qui, a son tour, pour employer votre
expression, serait nuisible a sa santé. Je suppose qu’il y
aurait donc certains médecins, dont ceux qui font partie
du groupe «Physicians for Choice», qui interpréteraient le
projet de loi actuel de maniére trés large. Et je pense qu’il
est vrai que le stress engendré par une situation de ce
genre pourrait étre dangereux pour la santé psychologique
ou mentale de cette femme. Dans les faits, ce serait donc a
elle de décider a toutes fins utiles. Je pense qu’il faut le
reconnaitre.

N’est-il pas vrai également que beaucoup d’autres
médecins ne voudront tout simplement pas prendre le
risque, alors que nous savons qu’il y a déja trés peu de
médecins qui pratiquent des avortements, comme nous l’a
dit TAMC? IIs ne voudront pas risquer de se faire harceler
et d’étre poursuivis au criminel, méme s’ils pouvaient
invoquer l'autorisation du Procureur général pour se
protéger. [Is ne voudront pas prendre de risques, et ils
vont cesser de pratiquer des avortements. Le nombre de
médecins qui en pratiquent sera donc réduit, ce qui aura
bien sir des conséquences directes sur I’accés a ce service.
D’aprés vos entretiens avec vos collegues, avez-vous
I'impression que c’est ce qui va se produire?

Dr Carver: Je pense que cela ne fait aucun doute.
Quand j’ai dit cela tout a I’heure, ce n’était pas une
menace. Je pense que c’est vraiment une réalité. L'un des
aspects que je trouve trés satisfaisants a I’heure actuelle,
c’est que les sages-femmes vont probablement gagner en
importance, mais l'ironie de la chose, c’est que, si les
sages-femmes entrent en scéne, c’est parce que les
médecins abandonnent 'obstétrique. C'est a la fois parce
que ce domaine n’est pas assez payant et parce qu’il y a
trop de risque de poursuites. Les médecins ne veulent tout
simplement pas de ces probléemes. Il faut donc que
quelqu’un d’autre comble le vide.

La méme chose pourrait se produire dans le cas de
I’avortement, mais je ne pense pas que ce soit non plus
une trés bonne solution. Si les médecins sont moins
nombreux a vouloir pratiquer des avortements, les
femmes qui sont gravement perturbées, qui sont malades,
qui ont connu une expérience horrible et qui ont besoin
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a private gynecologist if she had him or her as a personal
physician. Frequently that was not the case, and in those
days there was extra billing, so she had to be prepared to
pay a couple of hundred dollars for this service. I used to
call those guys and ask them if they would waive the fee
because [ had a patient in dire straits. Or she could go to a
clinic. That meant calling every morning before 8 a.m. to
see if she could be first on the list. Frequently these
women had to wait four to six weeks before they could
even be seen for the first observation. Then they had to
return in anywhere from 24 hours to a week for the rest
of the procedure. The complications go up, the stress goes
up. The whole situation gets more and more awful.

This is going to happen. It is not an idle threat. I am
not trying to be a fearmonger. It is a reality—doctors can
pick and choose what they do and nobody wants to do
abortions. It goes without saying. Doctors do not want to
do them, women do not want to have them. If you make
it worse for them, if you make them out to be criminals
or allow someone to take them to court for saying it is
going to affect somebody’s health—why would [ bother? It
is just ridiculous.

Mr. Robinson: I want to follow up on some witnesses
from the Atlantic provinces who we heard from earlier
today. One woman was from Prince Edward Island and of
course no abortions are performed there. The last
abortion performed there was in 1980. Women are forced
to leave the island.

[ asked whether there were doctors who were in a
position to perform abortions. The problem is that the
boards of the two or three hospitals will not allow
abortions to be performed in their hospitals. Is it feasible
for a doctor in a situation like that—does a doctor have to
g0 to a hospital, or is it a medical procedure that can be
undertaken in a doctor’s office?

Dr. Gauthier: Sure, look at the Morgentaler clinic.
Perhaps not in a doctor’s office but in a free-standing
clinic. I think Morgentaler has shown that it can be done
very safely, perhaps more safely.

Dr. Carver: The statistics from the States—

Mr. Robinson: But in terms of a doctor’s office, that is
not the kind of operation—

Dr. Gauthier: You need back-up. You need
anaesthetic. It need not be in a hospital. A properly
equipped clinic can do it and a lot of people are

[Traduction]

d’un avortement tout de suite. . . Quand je renvoyais des
clientes a d’autres services, elles avaient plusieurs options.
Elles pouvaient aller voir un gynécologue privé si c’était
leur médecin personnel. Mais c’était rarement le cas et, a
ce moment-la, certains médecins pratiquaient la
surfacturation; les clientes devaient donc étre prétes a
débourser quelques centaines de dollars pour ce service.
Souvent, j’appelais ces médecins pour leur demander de
ne pas percevoir ces honoraires parce que la cliente était
dans une situation trés difficile. Les femmes pouvaient
aussi aller en clinique. Mais elles étaient alors obligées
d’appeler tous les matins avant huit heures pour voir si
elles pourraient étre les premiéres sur la liste. Elles
devaient souvent attendre de quatre a six semaines avant
méme de pouvoir étre regues pour leur premiere
consultation. Elles devaient ensuite retourner a la
clinique, ce qui pouvait prendre de 24 heures a une
semaine, pour le reste de la procédure. Plus les
complications s’additionnent, plus le stress s’aggrave. Et
toute la situation devient de plus en plus difficile.

C’est ce qui va se produire. Ce n’est pas une menace en
lair. Je n’essaie pas de semer la peur, mais il faut voir la
réalité en face: les médecins peuvent faire ce qu'’ils
veulent, et personne ne veut pratiquer d’avortement. Cela
va sans dire. Les médecins ne veulent pas en pratiquer, et
les femmes ne veulent pas en avoir. Mais si on leur rend
la situation plus difficile, si on fait d’eux des criminels ou
qu'on permet a quiconque de les trainer devant les
tribunaux pour avoir déclaré qu’une grossesse peut nuire
a la santé d’une patiente, pourquoi se donneraient-ils tout
ce mal? C’est tout simplement ridicule.

M. Robinson: Je voudrais en revenir au témoignage
que nous avons entendu plus tot de la part de certains
témoins des provinces de I’Atlantique. Nous avons
entendu une femme de I’Ile-du-Prince-Edouard, ou aucun
avortement ne se pratique. Le dernier remonte a 1980. Les
femmes doivent donc quitter I'ile.

J’ai demandé a cette femme s’il y avait des médecins en
mesure de pratiquer des avortements. Le probleme, c’est
que les conseils d’administration des deux ou trois
hopitaux de la province interdisent a leurs médecins de
pratiquer des avortements. Dans ces circonstances, ces
médecins sont-ils obligés d’aller a I’hdpital, ou s’il s’agit
d’un acte médical qu’il peuvent pratiquer dans leur
bureau?

Dr Gauthier: Bien sir, il suffit de regarder la clinique
Morgentaler. Cela n’est peut-étre pas possible dans un
cabinet de médecin, mais certainement dans une clinique
indépendante. Je pense que Morgentaler a démontré qu'’il
était possible de pratiquer ainsi des avortements en toute
sécurité, peut-étre encore plus qu’ailleurs.

Dr Carver: Les statistiques américaines. . .

M. Robinson: Mais ce n’est pas le genre d’acte qui peut
étre pratiqué dans un cabinet de médecin. . .

Dr Gauthier: [l faut des services de soutien, par
exemple un anesthésiste. Mais il n’est pas necessaire que
ce soit dans un hopital. Une clinique bien équipee
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proponents of this. I think Morgentaler has shown that it
is quite safe. His statistics are excellent in terms of good
outcomes and low complication rates.

Mr. Robinson: This is speculation, but presumably the
reason doctors in Prince Edward Island would not be
performing that procedure at a clinic would be because of
the resources necessary to—

Dr. Gauthier: It is also because of the laws, just like in
Ontario.

Dr. Carver: I do not think it is that. I think the real
reason is harassment. Even if there were a few doctors
personally disposed—you know what is going on in
British Columbia. You know what is going on at the
Morgentaler clinic in Toronto. There is no doubt in my
mind the same thing would happen there. If the
government really wants to reduce the abortion rate, the
kind of thing we were talking about earlier in terms of
supporting women who are pregnant and who have
children is one method. And the other method is to get
RU-486 into use here. The beauty of that drug is that any
doctor can prescribe it and the effectiveness rate is 97%. It
has been used in' France for quite a few years with a very
low complication rate. It avoids having to perform surgery
on the woman. It can be done in the early stages of
pregnancy.

* 1745

I grant that the one thing it does that is problematic in
terms of the pro-life arguments, I think, is that it could
conceivably—and I do not even like to use that word—
could potentially take the whole abortion issue kind of
sub rosa, because this way it is easy to count how many
procedures are done. It is rather more difficult to count
how many doctors are giving out how many pills. But it
could be a requirement; there is no reason why not.

Dr. Kilbertus: Just regarding why doctors would choose
to do it or not to do it, there is a big leap from the theory
to practice. You have to consider philosophically what
you think about abortion, and then you have to take that
a step further if you are a medical practitioner. In fact, [
must admit that the thought has come through my mind:
when [ speak publicly about it, will I personally be
harassed? It is very easy to find out if the clinic in which [
work does abortion referrals or not. The more stories you
hear, the more worrisome it is. There is a physician in the
neighbourhood in which I work who performs abortions
and who is weeks on end, in a residential neighbourhood,
picketed with horrible-looking placards. The reality is that
you take a personal leap to do it, perhaps at a cost.

The Chairman: Thank you very much. Unfortunately,
the time at our disposal is over. Dr. Kilbertus, Dr.
Gauthier, and Dr. Carver, thank you very much for
appearing in front of the committee.

[Translation|

pourrait le faire, comme le proposent d’ailleurs beaucoup
de gens. Je pense que le D' Morgentaler a montré que
c’était une solution trés sire. Comme le montrent ses
statistiques, il obtient de trés bons résultats et les
complications sont tres rares.

M. Robinson: Ce n’est qu’une hypothese, mais on peut
supposer que, si les médecins de I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard
ont décidé de ne pas pratiquer d’avortement en clinique,
c’est a cause des ressources nécessaires. . .

Dr Gauthier: C’est également a cause des lois, tout
comme en Ontario.

Dr Carver: Je ne pense pas que ce soit pour cela. La
vrai raison, c’est le harcélement. Méme s’il y avait
quelques médecins préts personnellement a pratiquer des
avortements. . . vous savez ce qui se passe en Colombie-
Britannique, ainsi qu’a la clinique Morgentaler a Toronto.
Il ne fait aucun doute d’aprés moi que la méme chose se
produirait la-bas. Si le gouvernement veut vraiment
réduire le nombre d’avortements, il pourrait notamment
mettre en place les services dont nous parlions tout a
I’heure, afin d’aider les femmes qui sont enceintes et qui
ont des enfants. Il pourrait également autoriser
I’utilisation de la pilule RU-486 au Canada. L’avantage de
cette pilule, c’est que n’importe quel médecin peut la
prescrire et qu’elle a un taux d’efficacité de 97 p. 100. Elle
est utilisée en France depuis un certain nombre d’années,
et n'a entrané que de trés rares complications. Elle
permet d’éviter des interventions chirurgicales et peut étre
prise au tout début de la grossesse.

Je reconnais que l'un des inconvénients pour les
partisans de la liberté de choix, c’est que la question de
I’avortement pourrait devenir quelque chose de secret car
s’il est possible d'avoir des statistiques sur le nombre
d’avortements, il est plus difficile de savoir combien de
médecins distribuent ce genre de pilule. Mais il pourrait y
avoir une obligation a ce sujet, il n’y a rien qui
I'empéche.

Dr Kilbertus: Quant a savoir si les médecins acceptent
ou n’acceptent pas de le faire, il y a un écart important
entre la théorie et la pratique. Il faut d’abord formuler
une position personnelle concernant l'avortement et
ensuite accepter d’appliquer son principe en tant que
médecin. Je dois avouer que quand je prends la parole
publiquement sur cette question, je me demande si je vais
étre persécutée. Il est trés facile de savoir si la clinique ou
je travaille arrange des avortements. Plus on en entend
parler, plus on s’en inquiéte. Dans le quartier ou je
travaille il y a un médecin qui pratique des avortements et
pendant des semaines et des semaines on y fait des
manifestations avec des pancartes épouvantables. Ceux qui
acceptent de le faire ont parfois un prix a payer.

La présidente: Je vous remercie. Malheureusement le
temps qui nous est alloué touche a sa fin. Je voudrais vous
remercier, madame Kilbertus, madame Gauthier et
madame Carver, d’'étre venues parler au Comité.
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Colleagues, is it agreed that the brief presented be
printed and annexed to today’s proceedings?

Some hon. members: Agreed.

La présidente: Je sais que plusieurs d’entre vous devez
quitter rapidement. Revenons la ou nous nous sommes
arrétés tout a ’heure. Pour faciliter les choses, est-ce que
tout le monde serait d’accord pour que I'on commence
par ces problémes de budget 3 15h20 demain au lieu de
15h30, pour pouvoir régler cela avant de commencer avec
nos premiers témoins?

Mme Bourgault: Parfait.
La présidente: La séance est levée.

[Traduction]

Collégues, étes-vous d’accord pour joindre en annexe le
mémoire présenté par le groupe?

Des voix: D’accord.

The Chairman: [ know that several of you must leave
in a hurry. Let’s return to where we left off. To facilitate
matters, would you agree to our discussing the budget
problems at 3:20 p.m. tomorrow, instead of 3:30, so that
everything can be settled before we begin with our first
witnesses?

Mrs. Bourgault: Very good.
The Chairman: The meeting is adjourned.
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Introduction

In January 1988, the Supreme Court of Canada struck down Canada's abortion
law, ruling it unconstitutional because the therapeutic abortion committee
process caused unnecessary delays and the whole process itself was a
profound interference with a woman's right to freedom and security of
person, as guaranteed by the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms. The
judgement also cited the inequity in the application of the therapeutic

abortion committees and access to abortion services in general in Canada.

Since that historic judgement, the government has already tried to present
resolutions for approval concerning the requlation of abortion in Canada.
These resolutions failed for a lack of a majority vote in the House of
Commons. The four Atlantic Councils believe that the substance of the
proposed abortion legislation does not differ significantly from the 1968
law struck down in January 1988. The new bill (C-43) now before the
Parliamentary Committee was apparently proposed to fill the vacuum left by
the 1988 decision, a vacuum which may have encouraged, in public
perception at least, the Dodd and Daigle cases of July and August 1989,
and which prompted widespread discussion on accessibility to abortion

services in Canada.

The four Atlantic Advisory Councils on the Status of Women categorically

reject the proposed legislation on the grounds that
1) it makes women, and their doctors (or other medical professionals)
liable for criminal charges by regulating abortion services through the

Criminal Code of Canada;

2) it fails to ensure equal access to abortions across the country; and
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3) it does not regulate nationally the provision of abortion services in

this country.

Any interference with a woman's decision to end her pregnancy, whether
through legislation, committees, second doctor's approval, or other
criteria (for example, through a very narrow definition of health),
implies that someone may stop or cause delays in the delivery of this
medical procedure. In this way, the proposed bill definitely contradicts
the spirit of the 1988 Supreme Court decision. To force a woman to go
through a pregnancy against her will is a violation of her fundamental
rights, her dignity and her freedom of conscience (Charter of Rights and

Freedoms).

Re-criminalization of abortion

In the proposed legislation, abortion remains a criminal offence unless a
woman's health is endangered, and it does nothing to ensure that all
Canadian women have access to safe, affordable abortions if they so
choose. The Atlantic Advisory Councils recommend that abortion be removed

from the Criminal Code since it is a health matter, not a criminal one.

The decision concerning the termination of a pregnancy should be left to
the individuval woman in consultation with her doctor. The provisions for
an abortion should be the same as for any other medical or surgical
procedures, equal access to which is guaranteed through the Canada Health
Act. Neither the woman nor her physician should be liable to criminal
prosecution or punishment of any kind for seeking, obtaining or providing

an abortion.
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One prosecution, even if it is unsuccessful, will stop many doctors from
performing needed abortions. The mere threat of having charges laid
against them will discourage many from performing the procedure and will
force others to adopt strict health criteria, causing more women to
experience difficulty in getting abortions. Hospital boards exert pressure
on their medical staff and the new Bill could be used to justify stricter
conditions under which abortions will be allowed to be performed in

hospitals.

The bill also invites abuse in the form of the '‘bogus'' patient who
provides false urine samples, schedules procedures and then creates
unfavourable publicity, a tactic used by the anti-choice movement in the
United States. In Newfoundland, for example, some doctors have stopped
performing abortions because once they were publicly identified, they

experienced much harassment from anti-choice demonstrators.

The bill puts the onus of the decision squarely on the doctors, not the
women desiring the procedure. We may think that all medical decisions are
made by doctors, but a patient has a right to treatment whether it is a
broken bone or an unwanted pregnancy. Under this bill, it is the doctor
who decides if the woman's health is in danger, and this can create a lot
of uncertainty as to how unwell a woman has to be in order to be

admissible, thus causing stress both for her and for the doctor who has to

make the decision.

‘‘various expert doctors testified at the trial (Morgentaler, Smoling and
Scott v. Her Majesty the Queen and the Attorney General) that therapeutic

abortion committees apply widely differing definitions of health'' (Day
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and Persky, 52). Since therapeutic abortion committees were made up of
individual doctors, there is no reason to suppose the ambiguousness of the
term '‘health'' will be any less problematic under the proposed

.

legislation, and it still will not be '‘possible for women to know in

advance what standard of health will be applied'' (Day and Persky, 52).

Furthermore the bill implies that it is the doctor who knows better than
the woman how an unwanted pregnancy would affect her well-being. We
believe that the woman can best evaluate the impact that an unwanted
pregnancy would have on her well-being, because only she knows and
appreciates the conditions in which she is living. This belief is based on
the knowledge that health, as the World Health organization defines it, is
‘‘a state of complete physical, mental and social well-being and not
merely the absence of disease or infirmity.'' WHO also describes health as
‘“the extent to which an individual or a group is able ... to realize
aspirations or needs and ... to change or cope with the environment.
Health is therefore seen as a resource for everyday life, not the object

of living.''

No criminal law will stop abortions. Women make this very serious decision
only after careful consideration, because they care about the gquality of
their lives, the lives of their families, as well as consideration for the
quality of life they can offer a child. Motherhood is such an important

responsibility that under no circumstances should it be imposed upon a

woman.

Accessibility

In the 1988 Supreme Court ruling concerning section 251 of the Criminal
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Code, women's access to abortion services was an important consideration.
If a woman experiences delays after making a decision to seek an abortion,
or must travel outside of her area to find a doctor or a hospital where
she can obtain this medical procedure, it increases the risk to the
woman's physical and psychological health. Women, particularly young,
poor, rural, or married women, may not be able to obtain therapeutic
abortions '‘without great trauma, expense, and inconvenience'' (Dickson,

quoted in Day and Persky, 188).

In the Supreme Court decision, the majority of the justices found that
section 251 of the Criminal Code restricted '‘the number of hospitals in
which abortions can be performed legally'' (Day and Persky, 184). Indeed,
‘‘ensuring that fair and reasonable access to abortion is not denied'' |is
purportedly one of the three "‘guiding principles'' in the new legislation

(New Abortion Legislation Background Information, 4).

To be sure, access to abortion is not explicitly denied, but neither is it
ensured, and this serves to effectively limit abortion services. While the
delays experienced by women seeking abortions may be lessened or
eliminated in some cases by replacing the approval of a hospital
therapeutic abortion committee with the approval of one doctor, in many
cases, women will be denied access completely if they cannot find a doctor

willing to perform an abortion or a hospital that allows the procedure.

For obvious examples of restricted access, we can look to the refusal of
Prince Edward Island hospital boards to allow any legal abortions to be
performed there or to that provincial government's refusal to fund any
abortions performed outside Prince Edward Island; the attempts by the

government of Nova Scotia to limit access by preventing the opening of a
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free-standing abortion clinic; and the recent decision by a British
Columbia hospital to ban abortions despite the opposition of an
overwhelming majority of the medical staff (87 per cent) to say nothing of
the numerous other Canadian regional and tertiary care hospitals which
have the necessary facilities but refuse to allow abortions even in cases

of rape or incest.

As a result, hospitals that formerly limited or disallowed abortion by
having no therapeutic abortion committee to approve abortions, or by
having an abortion quota, can now merely refuse permission for doctors
seeking to perform abortions, either by revoking or threatening to revoke
hospital privileges, or by enacting policies to refuse abortions

altogether.

Bill C-43 simply does not address the problem of access to abortion.
Access would have been addressed had the federal government recognized

abortion as an essential health service within the Canada Health Act.

To have ready access to abortion, a woman must first know that such a
service exists, and where it is available. Then she must have the means to
get there and she must observe the legal conditions under which the
medical procedure is to be performed. As the following accounts indicate,
abortion services for women in the Atlantic provinces are neither

accessible nor affordable. NEW BRUNSWICK

In New Brunswick, an abortion must be " 'medically required'' as defined by
two physicians (chosen by the women) and performed in an accredited
hospital by a specialist in obstetrics or gynaecology. There are 33 such

specialists and four hospitals in New Brunswick performing abortions:
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Saint John Regional; Dr. Chalmers, Fredericton; Moncton City; and Oromocto
Public. The four hospitals are all in the southern part of the province
and they only take patients from their own health region. As a result,
women from other regions must usually go to another province (often

Quebec) or state (usually Maine).

A woman who does not live in Southern New Brunswick or who cannot find two
doctors to approve her request for an abortion simply does not have access
to the procedure. A woman living in Edmundston (northwest), Campbellton
(north central) or Newcastle (northeast), simply has no choice but to

leave, not only her community, but her province.

Furthermore, travelling expenses are never reimbursed, and payment of the
medical procedure is only ever covered by Medicare New Brunswick when the
rule of two doctors and one specialist in a hospital is followed. The
average wage for New Brunswick women is a little over $10,000 per year,
but in northern New Brunswick, there are fewer women in the labour force
with lower salaries than those women in the southern part of the province.
Many women simply cannot afford to travel outside the province to get an
abortion, which can cost as much as $1000 including travel, accomodation

and the costs of the procedure itself.

In 1988-89, there were 427 abortions in New Brunswick, all performed in
the southern region. There are only 68 known abortions performed on women
outside New Brunswick on New Brunswick residents. Of the 68 women who
requested reimbursement from Medicare, only B were accepted and reimbursed
a maximum of $120. Women in isolated regions, especially poor women, have

no choice but to go through with unwanted pregnacies.




13-3-1990

Projet de loi C-43

14A: 9

NEWFOUNDLAND

According to the provincial department of health, all provincial hospitals
have the capability to provide therapeutic abortions. Although those
outside of St. John's only perform them occasionally, currently ther is
only one hospital in the province regularly performing abortions, and that
is the General Hospital in St. John's, the largest urban centre in the
province. In 1988, 434 abortions were performed in Newfoundland, 369 of

them at the General Hospital.

Health department officials were unable to release the names of the other
hospitals performing abortions without first obtaining the permission of
the hospitals concerned. Hospitals which have been known to perform
abortions in the past include the ones in Corner Brook, St. Anthony,
Carbonear, Baie Verte and a second one in St. John's, the Grace General

Hospital.

The reality is that accessibility to abortion services in Newfoundland and
Labrador is severely limited. Many women are forced to gather together
meagre resources to fly to Halifax or Montreal to obtain an abortion in
another hospital, or most frequently, in a free-standing abortion clinic.
The provincial governement health care plan, MCP, will only pay for
abortions performed under ' ‘proper medical conditions'' in accredited
Canadian (including Newfoundland) hospitals, but they will not cover
travel expenses incurred in obtaining an abortion outside Newfoundland,

and nor, will they pay for abortions performed in free-standing clinics.

The process of obtaining a safe, legal abortion is physically stressful
and emotionally debilitating as one woman recently revealed in a news

story published in the St. John's Sunday Express (Nov. 5, 1989). Although
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the young woman was ten weeks pregnant, medical policy dates a pregnancy
from the first day of the last period, and therefore she was considered to
be 12 weeks pregnant. The General Hospital will not perform any abortions
after 12 weeks, forcing this young woman to consider more desperate
measures such as making inquiries for the services of a backstreet

abortionist.

She was lucky enough to be one of the last women to have an abortion at
Dr. Morgantaler's clinic in Halifax before the facility was closed down by
the Nova Scotian government. She paid for her airfare and her abortion by
using a credit card and money reserved for other bills, but other women
outside St. John's face additional costs in transportation, and many women
generally are unwilling or unable to use a credit card to pay for abortion

services.

There is no way of calculating the number of women who are forced to leave
the province for an abortion, since the provincial health care plan will
not release statistics on the numbers of patients requesting
reimbursements for abortions performed in out-of province hospitals, and
because there 1is no longer a statistical mechanism in place to calculate
the numbers of abortions performed in other provinces (either in hospitals
or in clinics) on women from Newfoundland ané Labrador. The lack of
accurate statistics on this health procedure is appalling and further

clouds the 1issue of accessibility and provincial responsibility for the

provision of health care.

NOVA SCOTIA

While ten hospitals have the necessary facilities and resources to perform
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abortions, only eight of these institutions have performed any abortions
in recent years. In 1988, 84 per cent of the 1,764 abortions performed in
the province took place at the Victoria General Hospital in Halifax and
seven per cent were performed at the Sydney City Hospital in Cape Breton;
the remaining nine per cent were performed in only six regional hospitals.
Two of these hospitals, Fisherman's Memorial in Lunenburg and Queen's

General in Liverpool, allowed only five and eight abortions respectively.

Unfortunately, there 1is no way of determining the number of Nova Scotian
women who are denied abortions by individual doctors or by hospital board
policies, or the number of women who travel outside the province to
clinics in other provinces or the United State. It 1is very clear, even
without these statistics, that access to this medical procedure is a
serious issue for Nova Scotian women since in much of the province, access

to abortion is at best difficult, at worst simply unobtainable.

In an effort to prevent the establishment of a free standing abortion
clinic in Nova Scotia, the provincial governement enacted legislation in
the form of the Medical Services Act in March 1989. The provincial chapter
of the Canadian Abortion Rights Action League was denied the right to
challenge this legislation by the Nova Scotia Supreme Court and this
legislation by the Nova Scotia Supreme Court and this group has
subsequently launched an appeal. Dr. Henry Morgentaler has since been
charged with 13 counts of violating the Act and his trial will begin in
March. ' Since the proposed legislation would include abortion in the
Criminal Code and would not specifically ensure or prohibit the operation
of free-standing clinics, Bill C-43 will not in any way affect the ocutcome
of the provincial Medical Services Act legislation. Under this proposed
Criminal Code legislation, the provinces will still have the legal means

to limit women's access to abortion services.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND

The present situation in PEI is intolerable since women on the Island do
not have any access whatsoever to abortion services, regardless of the
circumstances for which a woman wants one. Prince Edward Island's two
major hospitals refuse to provide the service, and have followed this
policy since 1982 (in the case of the Queen Elizabeth Hospital) and since

1986 (in the case of the Prince County Hospital).

In effect, the last abortion performed in PEI appears to have been in
1980. For the last ten years, an estimated 400 women per year must travel

hundreds of miles and leave their own communities to obtain an abortion.

It must be wunderstood that having to obtain an abortion in another
province, or in the United States, carries with it consequences beyond
those usually experienced by women in need of, and able to access the

procedure within their home provinces.

For example, a PEI woman finds herself pregnant, and decides that the
circumstances of her situation make it impossible to bear a child. She
becomes aware very quickly that this procedure is not available to her in
PEI, and that information about options outside the province is not easily
obtained. Often, her family doctor is unsympathetic and condemning, a

response which adds to her stress, and delays further enquiries.

If she 1is able to learn about an abortion information service and then
arrange to have an abortion (outside the province 1in either Halifax,

Montreal, Toronto, Boston or Bar Harbour for example), this woman
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discovers that only in exceptional circumstances is she able to receive

financial assistance from the provincial government.

These '‘circumstances'' require a three-member committee to decide
whether her life or health is at risk (this definition does not take into
account social factors); a physician who will take the time to submit the
documentation necessary to determine her eligibility; and an available
accredited hospital where the abortion must be performed according to the

government policy.

The woman must also come to terms with the fact that she must leave
PEI, an action which will tear her away from the support network that may
exist for her at home. She may also have to arrange for leave from work;
arrange for child care for her children; make expensive travel
arrangements; and reserve out-of-province accommodation. For women who
may not be familiar with their destination, the anxiety of travel to and
within an unfamiliar city can be truly intimidating. Perhaps the most
difficult part for many women is finding a way to explain a three-day

absence from the province to family, friends and co-workers.

In no other province is it so evident that women's reproductive lives
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